
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

11th November 2020

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Economic Development Board
DATE: 18 November 2020
TIME: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

PAUL GRANT
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Councillor Hook (ex-Officio)
Councillor Mrs Huggins (Mayor) and Councillor Philpott (Chairman)

Councillor Beavis (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ms Ballard
Councillor Bateman
Councillor Casey
Councillor Farr
Councillor Mrs Furlong
Councillor Hutchison
Councillor Jessop

Councillor Johnston
Councillor Mrs Jones
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Mitchell
Councillor Mrs Prickett
Councillor Scard

Public Document Pack



NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Economic Development Board
18 November 2020

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.  

3.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT BOARD HELD ON 23/09/2020 (Pages 1 - 12)

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 16th   November 2020 The 
total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
16th November 2020) 

6.  DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (Pages 13 - 36)

To request the Economic Development (ED) Board consider the 
outcome of the consultation for the 2021-31 Draft Economic 
Development Strategy and the supporting Draft Evidence Base and 
gives its approval to produce final versions for publication.

7.  INTERIM LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME FOR THE GOSPORT 
BOROUGH LOCAL PLAN 2036 (Pages 37 - 70)

The Council is required by legislation to prepare a Local Plan for its 
area. The timetable for the preparation of a Local Plan must be 
published in a Local Development Scheme (LDS). This report seeks 
approval to publish an interim Local Development Scheme.



Economic Development Board
18 November 2020

8.  INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT (Pages 71 - 184)

On 1 September 2019, the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 (“the CIL 
Regulations 2019”) came into force and amended the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as Amended). This report 
outlines the requirements of these regulations for Members’ 
consideration.

These regulations introduced a new Government requirement to 
produce the annual Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS). This 
report seeks approval for the publication of Gosport Borough 
Council’s IFS and ‘infrastructure list’ (Appendix 1) which covers the 
monitoring period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. This report also 
seeks approval for the introduction of a monitoring fee for Section 
106 agreements as allowed by the CIL Regulations 2019 and as 
detailed in Section 4 of the IFS



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WAS HELD ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2020

Councillor Hook

Councillors Mrs Huggins, Ms Ballard, Bateman, Beavis, Casey, Mrs Cully (Substituting for 
Farr), Mrs Furlong, Hutchison, Jessop, Johnston, Mrs Jones, Miss Kelly, Mitchell, Philpott, 
Mrs Prickett and Scard

11. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

An apology for non attendance was received from Councillor Farr. 

12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Casey declared a personal interest and subsequently a pecuniary interest in 
agenda item 10, Conservation Areas, as he was involved with the friends of Stokes Bay 
and the Diving Museum and owned a property within the Anglesey Conservation Area. 

13. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
BOARD HELD 01/07/2020 

Resolved: That the minutes of the Economic Development Board held on 1st July 2020 be 
signed as a true and correct record. 

14. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

15. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

There were none. 

16. 2021-31 DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND EVIDENCE BASE 

Consideration was given to a report of the Economic Development and Regeneration 
Manager requesting the Economic Development (ED) Board consider the contents of the 
2021-31 Draft Economic Development Strategy and the Draft Evidence Base supporting it 
and gives its approval to carry out a full public consultation exercise.

The Board was advised that there was no updates, and that the report had been provided in 
large type to allow it meet equality and diversity requirements and that the results of the 
consultation would be brought back to the meeting on the 18th November 2020.

Members welcomed the information and effort that had been done to produce the document 
, but also included ways to promote the town. 

Agenda Item 3



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

2

The success of the HAZ bids was recognised, and it was acknowledged that the bus station 
redevelopment was subjective. It was recognised that it would be interesting the public 
thoughts. In addition, it was hoped that improvements to the Haslar site would be 
forthcoming. 

The Board recognised the difficulties that MOD and government department land could 
bring and welcomed the proposals for an evening economy and a pop up market. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that Bay House School were able 
to make a contribution to the consultation if they wished to and were very active and the 
report could be amended to include any response received from them.

Members felt that the report was timely and that the benefit of a greater job density at a 
difficult time was welcome and supported the future growth on the Gosport Economy. 

Members questioned whether the consultation could be extended as the subject matter was 
so great and also questioned the methodology of the collection of data for those who were 
not tech savvy. In addition it was felt that arts and culture also had an important part to play 
in the Borough, in addition to historical elements and were a very important component to 
the Town.

The Board was advised that the consultation period had been set to fit with the budget cycle 
of the Council, but that it was possible to extend the period to 6 weeks. It wouldn’t be 
possible to extend it further if it was to be presented to the next Economic Development 
Board. 

There would be hard copy documents available, and conversations were ongoing with GVA 
to provide the large copies to those that need them. 

The importance of the arts was recognised, as was the importance of gauging the views of 
young people and it was felt that the extended consultation would help to do this.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the current Covid 
regulations allowed for the consultation take place and should any lockdown occur the 
Board would be advised of any proposed changes to the consultation if the contribution of 
the public was adversely impacted. 

It was proposed and seconded that the consultation be extended by an additional two 
weeks to the 4th November 2020.

RESOLVED: That 

 i) that the ED Board note the contents of the 2021-31 Draft Economic Development 
Strategy and the Draft Evidence Base 

ii) that the ED Board agree to the commencement of a full external consultation involving 
Members, residents, local businesses, community groups and regional/sub-regional 
stakeholders on the basis of the agreed draft documents.



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

3

iii) that the consultation period be extended by two weeks to 4th November 2020. 

17. PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE WHITE PAPER (AUGUST 2020) 

Consideration was given to the Manager of Planning Policy briefing Members regarding the 
content of the Government’s ‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper (August 2020) and set 
out key matters to form the basis of a formal response.

The Board was advised that there was no updates to the report. 

Members expressed concern about the environmental and heritage proposals to allow for 
specialists outside the area to determine heritage and conservation areas. It was felt that 
consents for heritage asset applications could be outsourced to those not local to the area 
and that there were concerns that this would mean visits to important sites would not take 
place. Members recognised the importance of the conservation team in place and 
expressed concern that this would be compromised. 

The Board was advised that this had been raised previously in 2012 and that the Council 
had previously raised concerns and made representations against the proposal. There were 
significant concerns about this and there was a worry that the holistic level of assessment 
would be lost and as a result there were six key concerns to be raised. 

Members expressed concern that the local input would be removed from the process, and 
recognised that although the planning process had evolved, the proposals to centralize it 
was unacceptable, and prevented local people having an input at the appropriate stages 
and expressed concern at the impact on the neighbourhoods that would result. 

The Board expressed concern that the public had not requested this change in process and 
felt that it was more likely to be under the pressure of developers. Members felt that the 
public were more likely to engage when there was impact on them at the planning 
application stage rather than the Local Plan consultation stage which contained Borough-
wide proposals over the long term and consequently often perceived not to have a direct 
impact. 

The Board felt that members of the public should engage with the consultation on the White 
Paper proposals to express any concerns they had about the centralisation of the process. 

Members expressed concern that the proposal was said to be streamlining and simplifying 
the process, but actually it would remove control from the Local Authority and give less 
opportunities for public engagement. 

It was acknowledged that Local Authorities did not build properties, but granted permission 
for them and that there was currently permission granted for over 1 million properties in the 
country that was outstanding and had not yet been built. 

Members expressed concern that housing numbers were based on a centrally set figure, 
rather than allowing the decisions to be made locally. Gosport was already 72% built on 
and had a large number of out commuters showing a high work ethic. 
The priority for the Borough was employment, and these centrally set targets did not allow 
for this. The release of MOD land should support employment opportunities for local 
residents, rather than default to housing. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

4

The Board expressed concern that the Local Authority were being punished for lack of 
progress, but it was the developers that had not built the properties that they had 
permission granted for. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised the Board that part of the representation to the 
government was requesting to see the clear methodology for the process as if it was based 
on an aerial photograph type assessment, central government would not know if the site 
was a country park, or a defence munitions site which were not suitable for development, 
but from the air would look like they could be. No details had been provided regarding how 
the detailed methodology would determine land restraints, and in addition confirmation was 
sought that employment sites would be protected. 

Members expressed concern at the retention of the Housing Delivery Test, particularly how 
the Council had previously been penalised for removing poor quality housing on the 
Rowner site, and replacing it with high quality housing. Members expressed concern that 
the local authority were punished and not the developer, an example was the Haslar site, 
which had been undeveloped for 10 years. 

It was acknowledged that Gosport was the highest density in Hampshire and that there was 
a great need for rented social housing and housing to meet an aging population. Much of 
the brownfield land was not attractive to developers. 

Members questioned the impact of nitrates on the housing delivery test and were advised 
that to date, no pause had been put in place but that PfSH authorities had written to the 
Government requesting this. The greatest impact would be felt in the next year. Some 
mitigation procedures were in place but there would be a knock on to the Housing Delivery 
test in the next year. The Manager of Planning Policy agreed to seek clarification from PfSH 
on securing a Government response on this matter. 

Members expressed concern that developers waited for a demand in properties, meaning 
less affordable housing was available and expressed concern that developers were driven 
by profit, often delaying completion to most benefit themselves. 

Members recognised that the Borough was 72% built on, with the national average 6%. 
Winchester, Test Valley and East Hants Districts were less than 6% built on. 
It was acknowledged that there was restrictions in these areas that meant that it was harder 
to build, such as national parks, but it was acknowledged that Gosport presented many 
difficulties, including the lack of railway station and an A road that was listed in the top 10 
most dangerous and the top 23 most polluted within a constrained peninsular location. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised that the white paper was leading to a shift in the 
way the standard method was calculated. Currently it took into account household 
projections over 10 years and incorporated a ratio of average house prices and average 
earnings. There was an interim change proposed to this, which brought in consideration of 
5% of the housing stock whilst the White Paper proposed to change the method 
considerably taking into account other geographical factors such as size of the urban area, 
affordability, extent of land constraints and amount of brown field and the need for other 
competing uses, ie. employment. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

5

It was difficult to consider how this would be done across England, if one element of the 
formula was changed, it would make significant changes to the housing need figure and 
that Gosport’s needs were specific and a national model did not suit. 

Members expressed concern that growth areas would get automatic planning permission, 
removing any input from the local councillors and residents that want to have a say about 
proposed development in their area. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised that the proposed zoning of Growth, Renewal and 
Protect was complex for Gosport as there was an overlap, for example the Town Centre 
was a conservation area and therefore protected in accordance with the White paper 
proposals, but there was also a desire for growth/renewal in some areas.This also could 
apply to the Blockhouse site, again showing that the proposals were inadequate and 
unsuitable for the Borough. 

It would be difficult to separate the areas in Gosport and would present conflict between 
protection, renewal and growth designations and that Gosport’s characteristics with 
significant heritage assets on brownfield sites meant it did not fit the proposals as currently 
proposed. 

Members expressed concern that the automatic consent would be granted after an area 
was designated as a growth area, and that proposals might not be apparent to residents 
until years later and it was felt that it was wrong to grant outline planning consent without 
consultation to the community. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised that the proposed timescale to prepare the Local 
Plan was actually 21 months (and 9 months with the Planning Inspectorate) and that the 
first time the public is able to view the consolidated plan, is at the same time that it is sent to 
the secretary of state. This does not allow the local authority to consider the representations 
made by the public nor make any appropriate amendments to the Local Plan before it is 
submitted to the secretary of state. This could also result in a long expensive examination 
without the opportunity to address the community’s concern. 

The main consultation would be in the first six months of the process when clear ideas may 
not be set out and therefore difficult for the community to make comments. Concern was 
also expressed that detailed proposals could be fast tracked if a proposal met the design 
code, meaning the public may not get an opportunity to comment. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the removal of the local 
planning policy, with a shift the National Planning Policy Framework would still allow for 
local policies to be associated with specific sites (similar to the first part of the current local 
plan) However, development management policies such as nature conservation areas open 
spaces and community buildings would switch to a national policy (as set out in a revised 
NPPF). 

It was recognised that this would be a national policy without the local detail, identifying 
nuances. The guidance did not rule out maintaining a local approach but the national policy 
was the preferred option. It was seen as important to include such local circumstances as 
Bird Aware Solent and the nitrates issue. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

6

Concern was also expressed that not all policy matters would necessarily be covered such 
as Marina Policy. It was acknowledged that marinas were not a priority to all, but they were 
of significant importance to Gosport.

Members recognised the importance of planning meetings allowing the public to have a 
voice at meetings of the Regulatory Board and that the amendment to the way in which 
business was currently undertaken would be detrimental. It was felt that a virtual way 
forward was not acceptable as the only method for the public having a voice. 

 Whilst Members appreciated the role of developers in the Borough, the proposal to 
streamline the application process through growth and renewal automatic outline consent 
removed local engagement and democracy in the process and felt like the proposal was a 
gagging of the local community. Whilst it was acknowledged there was a desire for housing, 
it needed to be through a democratic procedure. 

Members expressed concern at the use of the term beautiful as it was subjective and that 
the focus should be on attractive buildings that suited their surroundings. Members also 
requested that construction should take into account the environment. 

In answer to a Members question the Board was advised that it was not clear whether local 
implementation would need to be in line with National Design Guide and the National Model 
Design Code (due to be released this Autumn). When the template is released it would be 
clearer as to how prescriptive it would be. 

There were model types in place which were more prescriptive that Local Authorities could 
adopt. It was advised that it was best to wait until the templates were released but that the 
authority would like a say on the proposal. The Lee West SPD had utilised parameters to 
set a framework as an example of how a template could be adapted to work. 

Members reiterated the importance of environmental considerations in the Borough and felt 
that this should be fundamental to the process when building new properties. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the environmental proposals 
in the white paper was short and vague, and that previously there had been provision for 
sustainable properties, known as the Code for Sustainable Homes but this had been 
removed with responsibility placed onto building control. Clarification was sought as to 
whether this would come back to the planning process. 

Any improvement to buildings was welcomed in this way, with the benefits clear and also 
clarity was sought on the enforcement of such measures. 

In answer to a Member’s question regarding whether it was possible to reduce the burden 
of environmental assessment but deliver improved environmental outcomes, the Board was 
advised that there was some uncertainty of what was proposed but if the assessments 
focused on the key issues and how many outstanding consequences would be mitigated 
then there might be scope to do this. For example the current Sustainability Appraisal 
process which is a test of soundness is a detailed intensive piece of work, but the outcomes 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

7

were limited; whilst the plan-wide Regulations Assessment was quicker, focused and more 
effective and considered how local plan policies impacted on international habitats.

Members expressed concern about the proposed changes to CIL.The Council had spent 
significant time on delivering this and felt the proposal to remove section 106, and just use 
the new Infrastructure levy was dangerous as it proposed that payments were not due until 
completion. This raised concern about the ability to deliver infrastructure as had been seen 
in Tower Hamlets. 

Members expressed concern at the delivery of guaranteed money and were concerned at 
the proposals. 

Members felt that further answers were desired by both Gosport Borough and Hampshire 
County Council as the County Council were providers of significant infrastructure such as 
roads. 

It was felt that infrastructure such as schools needed to be in place by the time proposals 
came online, not after and if proposals never materialised or were delayed, the Council 
would suffer. 

Concern was also expressed for the removal of section 106 payments as some 
developments, such as those including flood defences, may be critical to make a proposal 
developable and safe yet could be below the payment threshold for the proposed 
Infrastructure Levy. The retention of the S106 mechanism would still enable necessary 
payments to secure essential infrastructure to make a site developable. 

Members felt that the Council was now expected to play banker and that if a developer had 
a proposal for a scheme that was sound, banks would be willing to fund them. Members 
expressed concern that leverage would be lost to support the type of development desired 
in the Borough. 

Members expressed concern that the white paper suggested the Councils were going to 
financially benefit from the changes but it was felt that it was overoptimistic. 

Members expressed concern that there was little experience from those developing the 
white paper on the planning issues that mattered.  

 RESOLVED: 

That this Council makes the following representations to the Government: (as expanded 
upon within sections 4-9  of this Report) 

 The Council strongly objects to the following proposals for reasons set out in the Report:

- the proposed lack of involvement of the local community at the detailed planning 
application stage; 

- the significant reduction of the role of locally elected Councillors in determining planning 
applications at the detailed proposal stage; and



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

8

- the proposed statutory 30 month timetable for preparing a new style Local Plan and the 
proposal for sanctions to be imposed by central Government should this timetable not be 
met. 

 That the Council raises concerns over other proposals in the White Paper in the absence of 
sufficient detail being provided at this stage (as set out in detailed in the Report) including:

- the lack of any information about the proposed transitional arrangements and at what stage 
local planning authorities should consider preparing a plan under the new arrangements 
instead of continuing with the current process;

- the lack of information regarding alternative arrangements to the Duty to Cooperate to 
ensure cross-boundary matters including infrastructure provision are appropriately 
addressed;

- further clarification  regarding additional resources from the Government to enable the 
proposed reforms to be undertaken;

- the potential risks and uncertainties relating to the proposed changes to the developer 
contributions system which could have significant implications.

 That the Council supports the following measures for reasons set out in the report (together 
with any specific reservations): 

- the removal of the Sustainability Appraisal system to be replaced by a simpler system;

- removal of the complex viability assessment process;

- abolition of the tests of soundness;

- a more proportionate approach to the level of evidence required; 

- the principle of increased use of design codes with local engagement (albeit with a number 
of concerns outlined in the report).

That delegated authority be granted to the Manager of Planning Policy in consultation with 
the Economic Development Board Chairman to respond to the Government’s proposed 
consultation questions based on the comments within this report.  

18. CHANGES TO THE CURRENT PLANNING SYSTEM- GOVERNMENT 
CONSULTATION (AUGUST 2020) 

Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager briefing Members 
regarding the content of the Government’s ‘Changes to the Current Planning System’ 
document (August 2020) and set out key matters to form the basis of a formal response.

Members expressed concern at the level of social housing required and felt it should remain 
at 40%. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the formula incorporated 
additional elements including a measure which considers changes in affordability within an 
area over time. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

9

In answer to a subsequent question the Board was advised that the standard method 
resulted in a figure of 309 dwellings per annum in Gosport, compared to the current 
Standard method figure of 344 dwellings per annum. The latest Standard Method also 
included provision of taking into account 0.5% of the overall housing stock which locked in a 
higher dwelling requirement even if household projections fell (as is the case in Gosport 
Borough with the latest 2018 projections). This latest Standard method would only be an 
interim measure as more comprehensive changes are proposed in the White Paper.

Members were advised that the Council had previously challenged the standards method 
formula and that the white paper proposals would change the methodology again. 

The Board was advised that the formula was produced to allow for the national target of 
300,000 dwellings. 

Members felt the Local Authority was best placed to identify the needs and requirements. 

A Member questioned what the risks would be if permission in principle for major 
developments were introduced. The Board was advised that the Planning in Permission 
system was currently available for developers as an option on small sites but to date the 
Council had not received any such proposals. 
It was felt that because Gosport had a 5.6km buffer from the Special Protection Area and 
developments were required to look at recreational disturbance instead it would mean that 
there was a habit regulation issue that meant there was exemption from the permission in 
principle. 

The Board was advised that residential developments would unlikely be eligible for the 
Planning in Principle route, and even for other types of major development there did not 
seem to be many benefits for developers to go down the route of permission in principle at 
this stage. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that clarification regarding the 
influence of a special protection area would need to be clarified before committing to the 
exemption of the entire Pfsh area from the permission in principle. 

. 
 
RESOLVED: That this Council makes the following representations to the Government: (as 
expanded upon within section 2)  

 Continues to object to the principle of the Standard Method for determining housing 
need;

 Object to the proposal which requires that 25% of affordable housing secured by 
planning obligations should be the ‘First Homes’ requirement. Instead this should be 
at the discretion of the local authority based on local need, site characteristics and 
viability issues in accordance with the Adopted Local Plan;

 Recognise the need to assist small and medium-sized builders by increasing the 
threshold at which affordable housing is required but the Government should 
introduce a new scheme in which Government funds the local authorities the 
equivalent amount in affordable housing contributions in order to facilitate new social 
housing;



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

10

 Object to the extension of Planning in Principle for major development for the 
reasons set out in the report

That the Manager of Planning Policy, in liaison with the Development Manager and 
in consultation with the Economic Development Board Chairman, has delegated authority to 
submit responses to the technical questions based on the principles of the above 
recommendations and comments set out in this Report.

19. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) NEIGHBOURHOOD FUND-REVIEW 
OF ARRANGEMENTS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Planning Policy Manager reviewing the 
arrangements for spending the neighbourhood portion of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) which the Council is currently collecting from developers.

It was requested that in future a chart could be provided detailing the success of the grants 
made and how recipients had benefitted them. 

Members recognised that GVA took on the role that many Parish Council’s did in other 
authorities. 

Members recognised that the amendments would help GVA to deliver the scheme. 

Members were advised that feedback would be provided in an annual report moving 
forward and this would detail the outcomes. 

Members felt that the timescale for recipients from the time applied, until the decision being 
issued was quite lengthy and it was requested that it be investigated to see if the timescale 
could be shortened. 

The Board was advised that a key factor in this was the two consultation periods carried out 
with Members, which had added a month to the proceedings. 

In addition to this the GVA Executive, which had Gosport Borough Council Members on 
also considered the applications, this added additional time. 

It was suggested and proposed that the second two week period of consultation be 
removed from the process to shorten the time that applicants needed to wait for a decision. 

It was clarified that applicants could apply for more sources of funding in addition to the 
fund and this would be encouraged. 

The Board was advised that GVA were very thorough in their analysis of the applications 
and that the timing had been useful for some groups to allow for additional paperwork to be 
completed. The Board was advised that the GVA Executive meeting was the key date in 
any timescale. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the email responses that had 
been sent to GVA had gone into their spam box, and as a result the information feedback 
had not been received which lead to a slight delay.



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

11

Members were advised that the scheme at Gosport Borough Council was ultimately unique 
as a result of the absence of Parish Council’s.

It was proposed that the second period of Members’ consultation be removed from the 
process. 

It was also proposed that GVA be written to with a request for them to shorten their 
process. 

Members were advised that GVA staff resources had been significantly stretched as a 
result of Covid-19

The Chairman requested that any response from GVA be shared with him and 
subsequently the Board. 

RESOLVED: 

That this Board:

 Agree to continue the arrangements for spending the neighbourhood portion of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy in association with the Gosport Voluntary Action 
(GVA), as approved at the Economic Development Board of 3rd July 2019 with the 
following amendments:

- To extend the period of spending the grant from 24 months to 36 months to 
reflect issues arising from Covid-19 and to review this position again in twelve 
months;

- To reduce the maximum grant for the 2020/21 application round from £50,000 to 
£10,000 to reflect the amount of money available;

- To provide flexibility with the application timeline (as shown by the tracked 
changes in Table 3 of this report);

- Introduce an additional funding priority which reads, ‘To support eligible 
organisations to improve the sustainability of buildings and open spaces and to 
tackle climate change and its effects- including supporting energy and water 
efficiency measures, promoting walking and cycling, and enhancing biodiversity.’;

- Introduce an additional funding priority which reads, ‘To support eligible 
organisations to assist them to make their buildings and operations Covid-19 
secure and support their recovery with a focus on infrastructure arrangements. 

- That GVA be written to request a shortening of the process and that the second 
period of Member consultation be removed from the process.

20. PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED STOKES BAY CONSERVATION AREA 
AND REVIEW OF ALVERSTOKE AND ANGLESEY CONSERVATION AREAS 

Councillor Casey declared a personal and pecuniary interest in the agenda item, left 
the room and took no further part in the meeting or voting thereon. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

12

Consideration was given to a report of the Heritage Action Zone Programme Manager 
seeking Members’ support to go out to public consultation on the proposal to consider a 
designation for Stokes Bay as a conservation area, and to review Anglesey and Alverstoke 
conservation areas, as set out in the Heritage Action Zone Delivery Plan.

Members welcomed the exciting proposition and recommendation and welcomed the 
military connection.

Members welcomed the proposals and questioned whether the boundaries of the Anglesey 
area could be amended to be titled Anglesey and Town as it included some of Town Ward. 

Members were advised that the existing boundary was set out in 1978 and that no formal 
review of the boundaries was due at this stage, but there would be the potential to, if 
necessary, amend the boundaries later on in the process. 

Members recognised that Conservation Areas did not necessarily mirror the ward 
boundaries and accepted that there was a report on ward boundaries was being considered 
by the Policy and Organisation Board imminently. 

Members recognised the importance of the history of Stokes Bay and felt it deserved to be 
Conservation Area. 

RESOLVED: To go out to public consultation on the proposal to consider the designation of 
Stoke Bay as a conservation area and to carry out reviews of Anglesey and Alverstoke 
Conservation Areas.

21. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

There were none. 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 10.15 pm



Board/Committee: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Date of Meeting: 18th November 2020
Title: 2021-31 DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

STRATEGY AND EVIDENCE BASE
Author: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & REGENERATION 

MANAGER
Status: FOR DECISION 

Purpose

To request the Economic Development (ED) Board consider the outcome of the 
consultation for the 2021-31 Draft Economic Development Strategy and the 
supporting Draft Evidence Base and gives its approval to produce final versions for 
publication.

Recommendation

i) that the ED Board note the outcome of the consultation on the 2021-31 
Draft Economic Development Strategy and the Draft Evidence Base as 
recorded in the Consultation Report and accompanying Strategy Review 
Document

ii) that the ED Board agree to a final version of the Strategy being 
produced for publication in January 2021

 
1.0 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

At its meeting on 23rd September 2020, the ED Board considered the 
2021-31 Draft Economic Development Strategy and accompanying 
Evidence base and gave its approval for the documents to be used in an 
external consultation exercise. (copy of September Report and ED Board 
Minutes attached).

A six week consultation has now been delivered resulting in 38 
responses (completed Survey Questionnaires) being shared with the 
Council’s Contractor.

A Consultation Report (attached) has been prepared outlining the sum of 
all these responses and making recommendations as to how the 2021-31 
Draft Economic Development Strategy should be amended to reflect the 
responses received.

Officers have now reviewed the contents of the Consultation Report and 
attached their comments in the Strategy Review Document, 

Agenda Item 6



1.5

1.6

recommending where and how the Strategy should be amended

Subject to ED Board approval, a revised version of the Strategy will now 
be produced and made available to ED Board Members for their further 
consideration

The contents of the Strategy will also be reformatted to reflect the new 
Gosport visual imagery and be published in both paper and electronic 
formats in January 2021.

      2.0     

      2.1

Outcomes

The outcomes remain the same as in the September ED Board Report

      3.0 Proposed Funding

      3.1

    
    
      3.2

The costs of developing the Strategy including the proposed reformatting 
have been fully funded within the Economic Development Budget agreed 
by Council.

There may be additional costs in developing and delivering those 
recommendations in the Strategy prioritised by the Council. These will, 
however, be considered and resourced by the Council in future Financial 
Years.

      4.0

      4.1

   
  
      4.2

   

      5.0

      5.1

    
      5.2

Risk Assessment

Publication of the Strategy will not progress as currently planned if the 
ED Board does not agree the recommendations proposed in the Strategy 
Review Document. 

Any delays in agreeing the content of the final Strategy risks introducing 
a degree of uncertainty regarding budget funding for 2021/22 priority 
recommendations within it.

Conclusion

The 2021-31 Draft Economic Development Strategy provides a strong 
framework for aligning ALL potential audiences and interest groups 
behind a mix of short, medium and longer term ED plans & proposals 
designed to secure the future economic growth of the Borough

Through a series of recommendations, it establishes a ‘logic model’ 
easily adaptable to help form a ‘Covid 19 Economic Recovery Plan’ for 
the Borough, in an attempt to secure a stronger economic future



Financial Services 
comments:

None

Legal Services 
comments:

None

Equality and 
Diversity:

No concerns, though recommend approved equality 
monitoring questions are included in future 
consultations.

Climate Change: None
Council Plan: The 2021-31 Economic Development Strategy 

directly addresses one of the Council’s five strategic 
priorities namely
“Develop the economy” through encouraging 
investment, protecting and improving infrastructure 
and land use, creating jobs and
generating wealth for residents

Risk Assessment:
Background papers: Draft 2021-31 Gosport Economic Development 

Strategy
Draft Evidence Base

Appendices Appendix ‘A’ – Consultation Report
Appendix ‘B’ – Strategy Review Document

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Andrew Sugden, Economic Development Manager



This page is intentionally left blank



Consultation Feedback 

2021-2031 Gosport Draft Economic Development Strategy

Gosport Borough Council

2nd November 2020

1



The highest ranked 

theme  by consultees  

was ‘creating 

employment & investment 

opportunities for business

Draft Economic Development Strategy – Consultation Feedback

Introduction

As part of the consultation on the Gosport Draft 

Economic Development Strategy (EDS), a 

Survey Monkey questionnaire was established 

and made available on the Council’s website for 

a period of 2 months. A total of 38 people 

responded and this report presents the main 

findings from this survey.  This feedback will be 

used to revise the Draft EDS and strengthen the 

relevant areas in order to reflect the comments 

received. 

Priority Themes

The Draft EDS sets-out the recommendations

2

into 10 themes. In order to achieve more

focussed feedback, the 10 themes were 

summarised into 5 key themes as set out in the 

table below. 

Respondents were asked to rank the order of 

priority of the themes; with 1 being the most 

important and 5 being the least. The higher the 

weighted average (score) the more important that 

priority is. Whilst overall, the highest total 

score(3.94) was the theme of ‘creating 

employment…’; 33.3% of respondents ranked 

this as their most important priority; the same 

proportion who ranked ‘stimulating investment in 

the town centre’ as their top priority. 

Economic Development Strategy 

Theme

Rankings Total 

Respond-

ents

Weighted 

Average

(Score)1 2 3 3 5

Creating employment & investment 

opportunities for business
33.3% 39.4% 18.2% 6.1% 3.0% 33 3.94

Stimulating investment in the town 

centre
33.3% 22.2% 16.7% 13.9% 13.9% 36 3.47

Focussing on the waterfront and 

‘place-making’
25.0% 13.9% 25.0% 30.6% 5.6% 36 3.22

Improving skills 13.5% 16.2% 21.6% 27.0% 21.6% 37 2.73

Focussing on the availability of 

land & commercial property
0.0% 8.6% 20.0% 14.3% 57.1% 35 1.80

Table 1: Responses on Draft Economic Development Strategy Theme, Survey Monkey, Nov 2020



The issue of improved 

access and public 

transport featured highly  

in the responses and as 

such may need to be 

considered separately

Themes – omissions

In terms of the themes that respondents felt had 

been omitted in the EDS; the majority of 

comments related to the need to improve road 

access and public transport. Others felt there 

should be more of a focus on Gosport’s historical 

distinctiveness and tourism and one respondent 

highlighted the provision/profile raising of arts 

facilities to encourage evening economic activity. 

More focus on start-ups was also referred to. 

Whilst the skills theme ranked 4th in the priority 

themes, there were references in this question on 

the skills. Dealing with anti-social behaviour was 

also referenced by two of the respondents. 

Sectors of opportunity

When respondents were asked which industrial 

sectors represent the best investment and 

employment opportunities; the overwhelming 

number of responses related to marine, boat 

building/repair, marina and tourism.  Other 

references included the importance of digital tech 

(e.g. autonomous systems), electronics, 

engineering, green tech and the hospitality 

industry. Creative industries was mentioned by 

one respondent.  Given the presence of the MOD 

and defence companies, there was surprisingly 

only one reference to the defence industry and  

3

two relating to the aerospace industry.

Collaborative / individual approach

The overwhelming response was the recognition 

that partnership working was more effective than 

‘going at it alone’. The need for a strong local 

voice was recognised, with the following 

comment typifying the responses: “Work in 

partnership where appropriate but ensure a 

strong independent voice for Gosport”.

As well as the need to work with government 

bodies, MOD, Hampshire County Council, Solent 

LEP etc, it was also suggested that schools 

should work more collaboratively with colleges/ 

universities to help raise local expectations and a 

suggestion to partner with Portsmouth University 

to establish a Gosport Campus. 

Approach to delivering change

Respondents overwhelmingly (71%) stated that 

given Gosport’s considerable economic 

challenges that the Council’s current approach 

would not be able to deliver the levels of future 

change required. Respondents who felt that the 

Council would not be able to deliver the required 

changes, were then asked for their views for the 

most effective  approach to deliver success. 

Draft Economic Development Strategy – Consultation Feedback



The greatest chance of 

success for Gosport was 

cited as taking a 

partnership approach and 

collaborative working to 

achieve a greater scale 

such as that represented 

by the Maritime 

Enterprise Zone

What could providing a greater chance of

success?

Out of 24 respondents to this question, the largest 

proportion cited the need to focus on developing 

stronger partnerships including with the Solent 

LEP, Hampshire CC, the MOD and the nearby 

universities etc. Examples where collaborative 

working to achieve greater scale included ‘Solent 

City’. The Gosport Task Force was also cited as 

an opportunity for success.

It was noted by one respondent that: “it may be 

productive to take a stronger line with 

Government/MOD in relation to the incremental 

release of MOD land within Gosport” particularly 

given Gosport’s long term role in supporting the 

country’s defences.  Additionally, some 

respondents noted the need for Gosport to 

develop a stronger position from which it could bid 

to government and other bodies for extra funding. 

Plymouth was cited as a good example of such a 

successful approach.  

Some respondents commented that the Council 

did not have the capacity to deliver all that it 

wanted to and that it should be more aspirational. 

For example: “Finding a visionary individual and/or 

company that will deliver within 2 years and not 

20, and then never. I also think there is an 

economy of aspiration - Gosport don't think big 

enough in planning for the future”.

4

It was also noted by one respondent there is a

need for more direct development and purchase

of commercial assets. Another highlighted the 

opportunity to create a thriving town centre by 

attracting independents/encouraging pop-ups 

etc. to create a more distinct offer.

Capitalising on Gosport’s potential

Respondents were asked which 2 - 3 

recommendations would most capitalise on 

Gosport’s economic development potential but 

not all numbered the specific recommendations. 

There were 29 responses to this question, of 

which 12 included references to tourism and 

maximising the waterfront/marina assets.  Seven 

responses highlighted the importance of 

delivering MOD sites and making the MEZ 

‘happen’. Five responses referred to improving 

access/road infrastructure.  Other comments 

related to improving the town centre, skills and 

for Gosport to develop a strong national voice.

Specific feedback from businesses

Respondents represented a Gosport business 

were asked which recommendations would 

‘most effectively capitalise on their company's 

future potential’. Only 9 answered, with 

responses relating to: fair rent/rates, expansion 

space and improving road links. 

Draft Economic Development Strategy – Consultation Feedback



Although the  area of 

skills was not in the most 

highly ranked themes, 

there was a consistent 

feedback about its 

importance in a number 

of the questions asked

Other comments relating to the Draft Economic 

Development Strategy (EDS)

Whilst references have been made in the EDS to 

a number of strategic documents and initiatives it 

was felt by a number of consultees that there is a 

need to make the linkages more explicit (e.g. the 

Adopted Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-

2029; the Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 

Supplementary Planning Document, the Heritage 

Action Zone, the Placemaking initiative etc).

Whilst skills was not one of the top 3 ranked 

themes, there was consistent feedback of the 

need to have more of a focus on skills. One 

respondent suggested that this theme might 

need its own Skills Strategy and Action Plan in 

collaboration with Hampshire County Council.

The impact of Covid-19 was also cited in relation 

to responding to increasing unemployment 

(particularly in younger people). The lack of 

aspiration and of work ready/soft skills in young 

people was also commented on. 

In relation to the tourism product, it was 

commented that the focus should be on mid-

market hotel brands and the need to maximise 

opportunities through the opening of indoor 

attractions during the winter months. 

5

Gosport’s distinct narrative and maritime heritage 

needs to be emphasised more strongly as well as 

the collaborations with Portsmouth Harbour 

Marine for example. 

The impact of Covid-19 in considerably 

increasing levels of home working has had an 

impact on the provision of superfast broadband 

and as such it was felt this needed to be included 

in the EDS. In addition, the town centre could be 

used more effectively to create localised 

employment opportunities through the creation of 

flexible workspaces for start-ups/micro 

businesses. The provision of such workspaces 

as well as the importance of smaller businesses 

needs to be more explicit in the report. 

Whilst Gosport town centre was cited as a priority 

there were a few references made in the Survey 

Monkey in relation to Stoke Road and Lee-on 

the-Solent.

The draft EDS was well received by the Defence 

Infrastructure Organisation/MOD and in particular 

the positioning of the MOD as a key partner for 

the area. However, it was felt that the EDS is 

very reliant on MOD sites and that more could be 

made of other non MOD sites including Daedalus 

and IRC Haslar.  

Draft Economic Development Strategy – Consultation Feedback



Mickledore 2020

6



Draft 2021-31 Gosport Economic Development Strategy

Strategy Review Document

1. Introduction
At its October 2020 ED Board Meeting, Members approved a draft version of a proposed new Economic Development Strategy to be 
used in a consultation involving businesses, strategic stakeholders, residents and interested community groups.

It was agreed by the Board that a six week consultation was the minimum required in order to gather feedback on the Strategy and this 
was implemented by Officers. The consultation went ‘live’ on 28th September 2020 and closed at noon on 2nd November 2020.

2. Following the consultation exercise, a Consultation Report was produced consolidating the output from the respondents for Officer and 
ED Board consideration.

3. In order to complete the consultation exercise, this Strategy Review Document has now been drafted and includes comments upon the 
contents of the Consultation Report and added recommended actions regarding whether or how the Strategy content should be 
amended

4. The Strategy Review Document will be used as a discussion document at the next ED Board (18th November 2020) for its consideration 
and comments, prior to the Strategy being amended and approved for publication.

5. This Strategy Review Document should be read in conjunction with the Consultation Report. Please note that the consultation closed on 
2nd November, therefore this represents an initial appraisal of the responses, with a fuller consideration to be undertaken as the Strategy 
is finalised.

6. The Strategy is being produced at a difficult time globally, with the effects of Covid 19 impacting heavily on economies at both national 
and local levels. It should be recognised that the Strategy has a ten year lifespan and whilst no-one can accurately predict the 
outcome of the pandemic or its longer term economic effects, recovery plans locally and nationally will be best placed to input 
shorter term economic initiatives designed to provide support to businesses or the local economy. 



Page Consultation Output Officer Comment Officer Recommendation Action Proposed for Strategy
2 “A total of 38 people responded and 

this report presents the main 
findings from this survey”

Despite considerable publicity and 
efforts by Officers to publicise the 
consultation the response level was 
disappointing.

The content received was however of a 
high quality and this to some degree 
helps compensate for the low numerical 
level of response

The Council accept that a full and 
transparent consultation process was 
carried out and that responses were 
received from a diverse cross section of 
the community 

None

2 “Respondents were asked to rank 
the order of priority of the themes;”

Most respondents fed back rankings for 
each of the Theme areas

The lowest number of respondents (33) 
commented upon the highest ranked 
theme. 72% of these respondents 
placed “Creating employment & 
investment opportunities for business” 
as their highest or second highest 
ranking.

55.5% of those responding placed 
“Stimulating investment in the town 
centre” as their highest or second 
highest ranking.

Whilst only 38.9% of those responding 
place “Focussing on the waterfront and 

The feedback from residents appears to 
confirm that the Council is focussing its 
resources in the areas that the majority 
of consultation respondents deemed 
the highest priority.

In terms of “Creating Employment” 
there is a clear message that the 
Council needs to continue and increase 
substantially its investment in this area 
and the Strategy sets out a number of 
recommendations that will help achieve 
this if resource can be identified.

Recent success in securing 
‘Transforming Cities’ funding for the 
Bus Station redevelopment, allied to the 
High Street and Stoke Road being 
designated as a ‘High Street Heritage 
Action Zone’ will together act as a 
catalyst for securing further investment 
for the Town Centre. The Council does 
however need to identify and work with 
appropriate partners and local key 
stakeholders in order to secure further 
investment in order to maximise 
opportunities under this theme.

Maximising the potential of Gosport’s 
unique Waterfront location will form an 

More emphasis in the final Strategy on 
business engagement and support, 
plus enterprise development, innovation 
and targeted sector development

Update Strategy content to reflect 
outcome of ‘Transforming Cities’ 
funding and the proposed future 
Waterfront development.

Link Strategy content more closely with 
Local Plan, Town Centre& Waterfront 
SPD and Gosport Infrastructure 
Investment Plan 

Link Strategy content more closely with 
Local Plan, Town Centre& Waterfront 



‘place-making’” as their highest or 
second highest ranking, 25% placed 
this theme overall as their highest 
ranking for this theme.

The “Improving skills” theme did not 
score as highly as highest/second 
highest ranking (29.7%), although 
overall was ranked as important in 
weighted average terms.

The “Focussing on the availability of 
land & commercial property” theme did 
not score well on highest /second 
highest ranking, with over 57% of 
respondents  ranking this as least 
important

important component of the future 
economic growth of the Borough.
Efforts to secure and deliver  changes 
to the Town Centre (above) and the 
Waterfront will provide a platform for 
continued place making investment that 
will benefit both local residents and 
visitors and help attract further 
subsequent investment

The overall perception of “Improving 
Skills” as a Strategy theme was 
disappointing. It is clear from the case 
study comparators that Gosport has a 
very significant ‘educational attainment’ 
deficit and this carries through in terms 
of follow on skills & training attainment. 
As part of efforts to assist local 
companies and address the need for 
inbound commuting, the Council needs 
to be at the heart of efforts at a regional 
and sub-regional level designed to 
secure the resources required to 
support the two Academy Trusts and 
other schools to improve outcomes and 
opportunities for local students

The overall responses here were 
disappointing. 

Respondents did not appear to 
associate the availability of land for 
development or the provision of 
modern, environmentally friendly 
premises as assets in securing future 
investment and employment by mobile 
companies at either a sub-regional or 
national level

SPD and Gosport Infrastructure 
Investment Plan

Recognise the place making efforts to 
date and link this theme to ‘Gosport’s 
Story’ and Solent LEP 2050 Strategy 
contents regarding ‘coastal 
communities’

Explore linkages with Solent LEP Skills 
Advisory Panel plan and identify 
whether there are key initiatives of 
relevance.

Explore whether (vis Taskforce?) 
further content is available via the 
Trusts/Schools/HCC there are any 
plans or proposals that the Strategy 
needs to link closely to

Reinforce Strategy content making 
clear the need for Council/Partner 
activity under this theme in providing 
opportunities in other theme areas 
above



Themes – omissions
3 “In terms of the themes that 

respondents felt had been omitted in 
the EDS; the majority of comments 
related to the need to improve road 
access and public transport”

As contextual information such 
responses were inevitable

The Strategy is intended to establish a 
ten year framework for economic 
development and whilst transport is an 
important consideration, such 
access/public transport issues are best 
dealt with regionally with the Highways 
Authority under wider transport 
strategy/policy

Continue to liaise and input towards 
regional transport policy and initiatives

One line reference to be included at an 
appropriate section of Strategy (if not 
already covered??)

3 “Others felt there should be more of 
a focus on Gosport’s historical 
distinctiveness and tourism and one 
respondent highlighted the 
provision/profile raising of arts 
facilities to encourage evening 
economic activity”

The Council is already prioritising 
heritage and tourism activity within its 
current annual Plan (Gosport 
HAZ/HSHAZ, Tourism Marketing Plan)

A Cultural Consortium has been 
created to lead on the cultural 
programme associated with the 
GHSHAZ and discussions have started 
with Arts Council regarding a potential 
‘Cultural Compact’

Continue to raise awareness of heritage 
locally through the Community 
Engagement Plan being finalised for 
HSHAZ/HAZ and seek to utilise 
heritage investment/assets as part of 
wider tourism promotion

Work with Cultural Consortium via 
Cultural Compact (business plan), in 
order to identify any longer term 
initiatives or investments required in 
arts facilities capable of boosting night 
time economy development

None

Allude in Strategy towards potential 
development of Cultural Compact and 
its place in identifying and validating a 
need for future potential arts-focussed 
capital investment

3 “More focus on start-ups was also 
referred to. Whilst the skills theme 
ranked 4th in the priority themes, 
there were references in this 
question on the skills.”

Council currently funds small scale 
business support for start-ups via a 
third party provider

If resources are identified, this is an 
area that should receive considerably 
greater Council investment, as 
individuals begin to consider self-
employment as a response to recent 
changes in job availability. 

Business plan for the HSHAZ 
supported training centre, business 
incubator/co-working space will help 
identify the scale of increased support 
that the Council may need to invest

Increase scale of Strategy content 
regarding start-up/small business 
support, innovation, enterprise 
development

3 “Dealing with anti-social behaviour 
was also referenced by two of the 
respondents.”

The Strategy is intended to establish a 
ten year framework for economic 
development 

Issues around anti-social behaviour are 
best dealt with via other Council 
policies/initiatives 

Feedback response to appropriate 
Council colleagues 

None



Sectors of opportunity
3 When respondents were asked 

which industrial sectors represent 
the best investment and employment 
opportunities; the overwhelming 
number of responses related to 
marine, boat building/repair, marina 
and tourism.  

These represent most of the ‘target’ 
sectors likely to be included in any 
future sector development work

There is a need for the Council to better 
understand the make-up of its company 
base and how best to support it. 

Identify resource to allow the 
recruitment of a Business Engagement 
Officer in order to prioritise the profiling 
of the Borough’s  existing company 
base 

Based upon the above, propose a 
Sector Development Strategy in order 
to support key existing sectors and to 
target – with partners – potential new 
ones for future development

Ensure Strategy contents properly 
reflects these two priorities

3 Other references included the 
importance of digital tech (e.g. 
autonomous systems), electronics, 
engineering, green tech and the 
hospitality industry. Creative 
industries was mentioned by one 
respondent

There is a need for the Council to better 
understand to what extent such 
companies currently form part of its 
company base plus the development 
activity required to develop new 
opportunities in these sectors

Identify resource to allow the 
recruitment of a Business Engagement 
Officer in order to prioritise the profiling 
of the Borough’s  existing company 
base 

Based upon the above, propose a 
Sector Development Strategy to 
establish a plan helping existing 
companies to diversify in order to 
exploit opportunities in these sector or – 
with partners – target potential new 
investors in such sectors to consider 
relocation, as part of wider MEZ 
development

Ensure Strategy contents properly 
reflects these responses and the 
opportunities provided

3 Given the presence of the MOD and 
defence companies, there was 
surprisingly only one reference to 
the defence industry and two 
relating to the aerospace industry. 

This is disappointing and possibly 
reflects the lack of knowledge locally of 
the borough’s industrial make-up.

Activity within the Educational sector is 
certainly high in terms of attempting to 
address the limitations of such 
perceptions and inform both students 
and their parents of the industrial 
diversity and opportunities available 
locally

 

Identify resource to allow the 
recruitment of a Business Engagement 
Officer in order to prioritise the profiling 
of the Borough’s  existing company 
base 

Use the outputs of the Sector 
Development Strategy to create case 
studies of leading companies in these 
sectors to use in promotional activity 
locally/regionally/nationally

Ensure Strategy contents properly 
reflects these responses and addresses 
the need to increase local 
understanding of company presence in 
these sectors



Collaborative / individual approach
3 The overwhelming response was the 

recognition that partnership working 
was more effective than ‘going at it 
alone’. 

This is the Council’s preferred approach 
and significant effort and resource has 
been expended in achieving this

There may however be occasions when 
the Council needs to work alone when 
circumstances dictate or possible 
conflicts of interest?

Council continues to initiate and 
develop close partnership working at 
sub-regional and regional level across 
all areas of its economic development 
activities.

Council seeks to work with these 
partners to build stronger relationships 
with Government or Government 
Agencies in order to put across its case 
for ongoing or specific investment 
needs

Ensure that the Strategy reflects the 
fact that partnership working and 
reaching out to Government are 
properly reflected

3 The need for a strong local voice 
was recognised, with the following 
comment typifying the responses: 
“Work in partnership where appropriate 
but ensure a strong independent voice 
for Gosport”.

Initiatives such as ‘Gosport’s Story’ 
represent  the start of efforts to more 
strongly advocate the Borough’s 
aspirations and develop further – via 
the Ambassador’ programme - 
appropriate channels for ‘vocalising’ 
local opportunities

It is the intention to encourage partners 
to utilise – where appropriate – the 
Gosport messaging and assist in 
spreading the local message through 
their own communication channels

Continue the recent place-making 
efforts and develop appropriate 
messages and communications 
channels in order to spread the 
‘Gosport Story’

Ensure that the Strategy contains an 
appropriate level of place-making and 
communications content

3 As well as the need to work with 
government bodies, MOD, Hampshire 
County Council, Solent LEP etc, it was 
also suggested that schools should 
work more collaboratively with 
colleges/ universities to help raise 
local expectations 

Educational attainment in Gosport is 
one of the key findings emerging from 
the case study comparisons (included 
in the Evidence Base).

Academy Trusts, Schools and Colleges 
are aware of the need to maximise both 
curriculum and extra-curricula activity in 
order to provide Gosport students the 
opportunity to maximise their potential

Through projects forming part of the 
HSHAZ there is the potential to initiate 
High Street-based multi-partner, multi-
age educational opportunities in the 
location of perhaps greatest need

Identify current educational Leadership 
groupings and establish whether 
Council has any role to play in 
furthering their activities or brokering 
any greater level of collaboration

Advocate a Borough-wide educational 
attainment improvement plan and 
establish key partners in delivery. 
Ensure that soft skills are included 
along with wider educational targets

Identify potential funding routes and 
establish dialogue with Government

Ensure that appropriate Strategy 
content exists and that local aspirations 
of both students and employers are 
articulated



a suggestion to partner with 
Portsmouth University to establish a 
Gosport Campus.

Much closer collaboration with all 
Southampton/Portsmouth universities is 
articulated within draft Strategy and key 
areas of cooperation highlighted.

Such collaborative aspirations are 
replicated by host cities, therefore a 
strong, well presented case for a 
Gosport presence needs to be 
developed establishing a strong 
rationale and set of USP’s. 

Perhaps best explored as part of wider 
discussions of the role Gosport can 
best play in terms of MEZ development, 
with a focus on university/business 
interaction based upon access to deep 
water frontage? 

Gosport needs to commission research 
input into industry/university USP’s in 
terms of alternative sub-regional 
locations.

This should be informed by the overall 
Sector Development Strategy research, 
but then be more highly developed in 
order to articulate an aspirational 
statement of intent for sharing 
regionally/nationally

Review of Strategy required in terms of 
establishing whether the ‘statement of 
intent’ is strong or clear anough

Approach to delivering change
3 Respondents overwhelmingly (71%) 

stated that given Gosport’s 
considerable economic challenges 
that the Council’s current approach 
would not be able to deliver the 
levels of future change required.

Respondents who felt that the 
Council would not be able to deliver 
the required changes, were then 
asked for their views for the most 
effective  approach to deliver 
success 

Need to be careful in terms of reviewing 
the output here as much of the 
response may have been influenced by 
the question asked.

What is it that respondents believe that 
the Council would ‘not be able to 
deliver’ in terms and how much of that 
perceived shortfall is influenced by the 
levels of resources (pounds & people) 
that have historically been available? 

How much of this relates to ‘vision, 
drive or energy’ and how much is based 
upon perceptions of the previous levels 
of delivery?

More work required on establishing the 
optimum level(s) of ‘form & function’ 
required in terms of delivering the 
Strategy, plus the associated 
governance and leadership required in 
order to ensure delivery. 

Consideration also required regarding 
the financial resource impacts of 
moving from the Council led model to 
any alternative, with a realistic appraisal 
of where alternative sources of funding 
might emerge from

GIIP provides outlines of different 
functional models plus the opportunity 
exists for the identification of a Gosport 
‘hybrid’ via accessing ‘New 
Development Corporation’ funding from 
MCHLG?

Significant debate and discussion 
required on this topic

No change to Strategy until further 
discussions held with Members and 
other key stakeholders



What could provide a greater chance of future economic success?
4 Out of 24 respondents to this 

question, the largest proportion 
cited the need to focus on 
developing stronger partnerships 
including with the Solent LEP, 
Hampshire CC, the MOD and the 
nearby universities etc. 

Officers would agree this topic

Partnership interaction is developing 
with most strategic partners and 
Council now needs to move on towards 
having structured conversations 
regarding priority topic matters, rather 
than general discussion and update 
sessions

A more ‘planned’ approach to 
partnership interaction is likely to yield 
better outcomes

Gosport needs to use the Strategy to 
develop a priority list of actions and 
then work up ‘business plan’ type 
proposals around which to have 
stronger, better and more focussed 
dialogues

Evaluation required of where Gosport 
aspirations most closely match sub-
regional and regional priorities as 
articulated in partners strategies and 
business plans

Ensure that Strategy content and 
recommendations are aligned wherever 
possible with Solent LEP 2050 Strategy 
and published Covid 19 Recovery 
Plans (HCC & Solent LEP)

4 The Gosport Task Force was also 
cited as an opportunity for success

The Taskforce provides a strong 
opportunity for Gosport partners to 
articulate their current ‘state of play’ 
and give thought to future likely 
developments

Taskforce achieves its current remit 
however is not resourced to go beyond 
this  

There exists an opportunity for the 
Taskforce to evolve into a much more 
formalised strategic grouping, capable 
of fronting bids for Government funding 
(Town Fund, Future High Street Fund, 
Cultural Development Fund, etc) where 
a ‘Strategic Board’ is increasingly 
required to put forward proposals as 
part of funding qualifying criteria.

If the Taskforce is to remain as it is, a 
‘Strategic Board’ of some other type is 
required and needs to be established 
BEFORE any competitive funding 
bidding process is announced by 
Government, in order to begin 
identification of Gosport strategic 
priorities 

Ensure that the Strategy captures the 
outcome of ED Board/Council position 
on future role of Taskforce or 
alternative ‘Strategic Board’

4 It was noted by one respondent that: 
“it may be productive to take a 
stronger line with Government/MOD 
in relation to the incremental release 
of MOD land within Gosport” 
particularly given Gosport’s long 
term role in supporting the country’s 
defences.  

This represents only one person’s 
opinion therefore care needs to be 
exercised

Messaging to government needs to be 
carefully considered as part of wider 
place making and economic 
development activity

There will be the need for some focus 
group work as part of the proposed 
HSHAZ Community Engagement Plan

Through such work a revised, well 
researched set of new messages for a 
limited number of communications 
target audiences can be identified and 

Ensure Strategy captures the proposal 
to engage with business and the 
community in order to identify new 
messaging in support of future 
economic development activity 



rolled out in support of key initiatives 
going forwards

Additionally, some respondents 
noted the need for Gosport to 
develop a stronger position from 
which it could bid to government 
and other bodies for extra funding. 
Plymouth was cited as a good 
example of such a successful 
approach.

Messaging to government needs to be 
carefully considered as part of wider 
place making and economic 
development activity

Plymouth represents one strong 
example, however Gosport needs to 
evaluate how a number of other areas 
are positioning themselves to 
successfully secure Government 
support

Further case study work is required to 
assess how ‘successful’ locations in 
England are positioning themselves 
and engaging with Government, in 
order to secure high levels of funding

There will also be the need for some 
focus group work as part of the 
proposed HSHAZ Community 
Engagement Plan

Through such work a revised, well 
researched set of new messages for a 
limited number of communications 
target audiences can be identified and 
rolled out in support of key initiatives 
going forwards

Ensure Strategy captures the proposal 
to engage with business and the 
community in order to identify new 
messaging in support of future 
economic development and funding 
activity 

4 Some respondents commented that 
the Council did not have the capacity 
to deliver all that it wanted to and 
that it should be more aspirational. 
For example: “Finding a visionary 
individual and/or company that will 
deliver within 2 years and not 20, and 
then never. 
I also think there is an economy of 
aspiration - Gosport don't think big 
enough in planning for the future”.

Once again this represents the  opinion  
of a limited number of respondents 
therefore care needs to be exercised

The comment appears to refer to 
perceptions regarding the ‘quality’ of 
Council staff however there is no 
evidence that the respondents are able 
to evidence such statements

The Council will be increasing the 
levels of community engagement as 
part of the HSHAZ roll-out and as a 
consequence hopefully local residents 
and business should be in a position to 
make more informed decisions 
regarding the Council’s performance in 
these areas

None

4 It was also noted by one respondent 
there is a need for more direct 
development and purchase
of commercial assets..

Once again this represents the  opinion  
of a limited number of respondents 
therefore care needs to be exercised

Council’s elsewhere which pre-Covid 
invested in commercial assets either 
within their boundaries or elsewhere 
have been significantly negatively 
impacted this year as rental payments 
have been delayed or will not be made 
as the result of retailers in particular 
closing units both on the High Street 
and in retail parks

If there is strong evidence of ‘market 
failure’ in terms of private development 
of low cost, good quality industrial 
space in the Borough, there may be an 
argument for Gosport BC – working  
with strategic partners - to remove 
some old stock from the market in order 
to create sites for future development.

Given the extremely limited resources 
and level of risk, the likliehood of the 
Council getting involved in this area in 
isolation is minute 

Ensure that the strategy accurately 
records that a significant amount of the 
industrial stock in the Borough no 
longer meets tenants operating 
requirements and that there may be a 
risk of market failure in due course if 
private landlords are not willing to 
invest in upgrading their commercial 
premises 



Another highlighted the opportunity 
to create a thriving town centre by 
attracting independents/encouraging 
pop-ups etc. to create a more 
distinct offer

Once again this represents the  opinion  
of a limited number of respondents 
therefore care needs to be exercised

Activity of this type is envisaged as part 
of the delivery of the Gosport HSHAZ 
and Markets development

None

Capitalising on Gosport’s potential
4 Respondents were asked which 2 - 3 

recommendations would most 
capitalise on Gosport’s economic 
development potential 

There were 29 responses to this 
question, 

 12 included references to 
tourism and maximising the 
waterfront/marina assets

 Seven responses 
highlighted the importance 
of delivering MOD sites and 
making the MEZ ‘happen’.

 Five responses referred to 
improving access/road 
infrastructure.  

Other comments related to;
  improving the town centre,

 
 Skills, and 

 for Gosport to develop a 
strong national voice.

Included within broader ED plans & 
objectives, plus place making 
component of HSHAZ

Ongoing as part of the Council’s wider 
regeneration efforts

Outside the scope of the Strategy – 
Highways Authority responsibility

GHSHAZ focus

Officers accept that more work is 
required in this area

Officers accept that more work is 
required in this area

None

None

None

None

See section above

See section above

None

None

None

None

As above

As above

Specific feedback from businesses
4 Respondents representing a Gosport 

business were asked which 
recommendations would ‘most 
effectively capitalise on their 
company's future potential’.

 

Council has limited capacity to act in 
any of the areas specified:

Rents: Set by landlords – unless the 
Council is the landlord, it has no role to 
play in setting rents

Council to monitor the market for 
commercial property demand/supply as 
part of business engagement activity

Npne



Only 9 answered, with responses 
relating to: 

 fair rent/rates, 
 expansion space and
 improving road links. 

(Business) Rates: These are set by 
Government nationally and the Council 
has no role to play in establishing there 
level

Expansion Space: Again the Council 
only has a role to play if it is the 
landlord or if there is evidence of 
considerable market failure

Road Links: Highways Authority issue 
not Council

Other comments relating to the Draft Economic Development Strategy (EDS)
5 Whilst references have been made in 

the Strategy to a number of strategic 
documents and initiatives it was felt 
by a number of consultees that there 
is a need to make the linkages more 
explicit (e.g. the Adopted Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029; the 
Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 
Supplementary Planning Document, 
the Heritage Action Zone, the 
Placemaking initiative etc).

Officers fully accept this 
recommendation

Stronger linkages to and listing of other 
strategic documents to be included

Stronger linkages to and listing of other 
strategic documents to be included

5 Whilst skills was not one of the top 3 
ranked themes, there was consistent 
feedback of the need to have more of 
a focus on skills. 

Officers fully accept this 
recommendation

Increased content required regarding 
the effects of educational attainment 
levels in Gosport and the impacts on 
both vocational and softer skills

Increased content required regarding 
the effects of educational attainment 
levels in Gosport and the impacts on 
both vocational and softer skills

One respondent suggested that this 
skills theme might need its own 
Skills Strategy and Action Plan in 
collaboration with Hampshire 
County Council

Officers will review this comment

Both HCC and Solent LEP now have 
skills strategies and it may be that the 
way forward is to convince them that 
‘one size definitely does not fit all’ and 
that disadvantaged areas of South 
Hampshire probably need some 
element of additional input so as ’not to 
be left behind’ 

Continue to lobby and make 
representations to HCC/Solent LEP in 
order that they understand that not all 
areas of Hampshire are seeking to get 
residents ‘from Level 3 to 4or5’ with 
some seeking to shift attainment in 
many cases from ‘1 to 2 or potentially 3’ 
wherever possible

Ensure Evidence Base accurately 
portrays the arguments for further 
HCC/Solent LEP skills investment in 
Gosport as part of a drive to deliver 
diversity of opportunity for local 
residents

5 The impact of Covid-19 was also 
cited in relation to responding to 
increasing unemployment 
(particularly in younger people). The 

The full impacts of Covid are as yet 
unknown.

The Council will continue to support 
and input to wider sub-regional efforts 
to boost the employment chances of 

None (dealt with above)



lack of aspiration and of work 
ready/soft skills in young people was 
also commented upon. 

There is evidence of short term impact 
upon the employment of young people, 
however the Council lacks the 
resources on its own to impact on this, 
other than by providing Apprenticeships 
or Kickstart opportunities

The Council is not responsible for soft 
skills training

young people including providing 
training opportunities wherever possible

See section on education above

5 In relation to the tourism product, it 
was commented that the focus 
should be on mid-market hotel 
brands and the need to maximise 
opportunities through the opening of 
indoor attractions during the winter 
months. 

The Council needs to adopt a medium 
term approach in this area

The impact of Covid on both sectors 
probably means that there will be only 
extremely limited opportunities of 
securing hotel investment short term or 
persuading attractions to remain open 
out of season

A new Tourism and Visitor Attractions 
Strategy is required for Gosport that 
evaluates the current product offering 
and sets out some stretch targets in 
terms of targeting and securing future 
investment.

Strong reference required to the 
potential that heritage regeneration can 
bring to future sector development

Strategy to include a section indicating 
that work will commence in 2021 on a 
new Tourism & Visitor Attractions 
Strategy for Gosport

5 Gosport’s distinct narrative and 
maritime heritage needs to be 
emphasised more strongly as well as 
the collaborations with Portsmouth 
Harbour Marine for example. 

The Council needs to adopt a medium 
term approach in this area

The impact of Covid probably means 
that there will be only extremely limited 
opportunities short term  however there 
remains strong potential for developing 
a ‘Portsmouth Harbour’ Tourism 
product

A new Tourism and Visitor Attractions 
Strategy is required for Gosport that 
evaluates the current product offering 
and sets out some stretch targets in 
terms of targeting and securing future 
investment.

Strong reference required to the 
potential that heritage regeneration and 
‘Portsmouth Harbour’ approach can 
bring to future sector development

Strategy to include a section indicating 
that work will commence in 2021 on a 
new Tourism & Visitor Attractions 
Strategy for Gosport

5 The impact of Covid-19 in 
considerably increasing levels of 
home working has had an impact on 
the provision of superfast 
broadband and as such it was felt 
this needed to be included in the 
EDS. 

Broadband is an ‘enabler’ of economic 
development, rather than an area of 
focus in its own right

Increase the content in this area, 
however caveat to the extent that future 
broadband development plans 
themselves are likely to be impacted by 
Covid

Review existing strategy content

5 In addition, the town centre could be 
used more effectively to create 
localised employment opportunities 
through the creation of flexible 
workspaces for start-ups/micro 
businesses. The provision of such 

Already included within the HSHAZ 
programme

The need for greater Council 
investment in support for small 

Bring forward a business plan for the 
incubator/co-working space/training 
centre under HSHAZ and identify the 
levels of future investment required, 
plus potential funding/delivery partners 

Increase the levels of Strategy content 
in these areas



workspaces as well as the 
importance of smaller businesses 
needs to be more explicit in the 
report.

business is recognised however 
resource needs to be identified

5 Whilst Gosport town centre was 
cited as a priority there were a few 
references made in the responses in 
relation to Stoke Road and Lee-on 
the-Solent.

Officers recognise this weakness 
however HSHAZ projects do allow 
some scope for intervention in terms of 
the former

ED has not yet been made aware of the 
proposals for the Library in Lee on 
Solent once HCC withdraws its funding, 
however as a ‘hub’ it could lend itself as 
an opportunity as a base for the 
provision of drop-in business support

Explore opportunities for including 
expanded content in this regard, based 
upon drop-in provision provided from 
operators delivering in town

Adjust Strategy copy to reflect the need 
for non town centre provision of 
business support/initiatives

5 The draft EDS was well received by 
the Defence Infrastructure 
Organisation/MOD and in particular 
the positioning of the MOD as a key 
partner for the area. 

However, it was felt that the EDS is 
very reliant on MOD sites and that 
more could be made of other non 
MOD sites including Daedalus and 
IRC Haslar.  

Officers accept this comment

In an area that is already 75% 
developed, it is however a fact that 
much of the undeveloped space is 
currently occupied by the MOD

Daedalus and IRC Haslar still present 
many of the inherited problems  
common to ex-MOD land such as 
contamination or flood defences, 
therefore focussing on these does not 
speed up the development process or 
lend themselves to prioritisation

None None



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: Economic Development Board
Date of Meeting: 18th November 2020
Title: Interim Local Development Scheme for the new 

Gosport Borough Local Plan 
Author: Planning Policy Manager
Status: For Decision

PURPOSE
The Council is required by legislation to prepare a Local Plan for its 
area. The timetable for the preparation of a Local Plan must be 
published in a Local Development Scheme (LDS). This report seeks 
approval to publish an interim Local Development Scheme.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Board approves the Interim Local Development Scheme 
November 2020 (as set out in Appendix A).

1 Introduction

1.1 The preparation of an LDS is a statutory requirement of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The current LDS was agreed by 
the Council on 14th November 2018.

1.2 It is now necessary to replace this LDS with an up-to-date document 
which provides a timetable for the revised Gosport Borough Local 
Plan (GBLP) which once adopted will replace the current Gosport 
Borough Local Plan (adopted in October 2015).  The revised LDS 
reflects a number of material considerations which have occurred 
since the preparation of the current LDS.  This includes:

 The Planning for the Future White Paper proposals (August 
2020) which has been subject to recent consultation and has 
been described by the Government as the most significant 
reform of the planning system since 1947.

 The implications of the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) in July 2018, subsequent revisions and 
other interim changes proposed as part of the Changes to the 
Current Planning System (August 2020).  This includes 
proposed further changes to the Government’s Standard 
Method for determining housing need for each local authority 
area. 

 The recent wholesale changes to the Use Classes Order 
system;

 Ongoing uncertainty relating to the release timescales relating 
to various Government owned sites including Fort Blockhouse, 
HMS Sultan and the former Immigration Removal Centre 
(Haslar Barracks) and associated evidence gathering 
associated with these sites. 

Agenda Item 7



 Ongoing work being undertaking by the Partnership for South 
Hampshire (PfSH) to prepare a  Statement of Common Ground 
and a revised non-statutory spatial strategy to replace the 
PUSH Spatial Position Statement agreed in June 2016

2 Background to the role of a Local Plan 

2.1 The proposed LDS is required to include a programme for preparing 
and adopting the Local Plan.  The Local Plan is a form of Development 
Plan Document (DPD) and it is a statutory requirement for each local 
authority area to be covered by a DPD.  It is a requirement set in law 
that planning decisions must be taken in accordance with the Local 
Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

2.2 The Local Plan sets out a vision and a framework for the future 
development of the area, addressing needs and opportunities in 
relation to housing, the economy, community facilities and 
infrastructure.  It is also used as a basis for conserving and enhancing 
the natural and historic environment, mitigating and adapting to 
climate change, and achieving well designed places.

3 The Report

3.1 The LDS sets out the key stages of the Local Plan including when 
community involvement will take place and when it is anticipated to 
be examined by an independent Planning Inspector. 

3.2 The LDS must be made publically available and kept up-to-date. It is 
important that local communities and interested parties can keep track 
of progress. Local planning authorities (LPA) should publish their LDS 
on their website.  At the time of producing the 2018 LDS it was 
recognised that the timetable represented the best estimate based on 
the information known at that time. It was also noted that from 
experience with the adopted Local Plan there had been the need to 
update the LDS several times during preparation due to changing 
circumstances including additional Government requirements. In this 
instance the changes that have occurred over the past two years have 
been significant with further changes to the planning system 
proposed.

3.3 In relation to the Local Plan, local planning authorities are now 
required to ‘review’ their plans every five years after adopted. This is 
a requirement set out in the NPPF in 2018 and has been applied 
retrospectively to plans adopted prior to this date. 

3.4 Members will also recall from the last Economic Development Board 
Report (23rd September 2020) that the Government has prepared its 
White Paper, ‘Planning For The Future’ (August 2020) which 
proposes far-reaching changes to the Local Plan system.  It also 
proposes the abolition of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) with 



a new system which will be based on a national formula relating to 
land value uplift rather than local viability evidence.

3.5 The Government proposals are at an early stage and lack sufficient 
detail to understand the most appropriate way forward in producing a 
new Local Plan. One of the key issues arising relates to the fact that 
the White Paper includes no transitional arrangements for LPAs 
currently preparing Local Plans.  The proposed new process will be 
radically different in terms of the evidence required, the type of 
designations indicated, the consultation arrangements, and the need 
for Design Codes. The new system will include a new standard 
method for determining housing numbers which will take into account 
local constraints.  It will also dispense with the duty to cooperate 
obligation. As such, it is not known at what stage the Government 
requires those local authorities that have reached a particular plan-
making stage to continue under the current Local Plan system or 
switch to the new system.  

3.6 This is complicated by the fact that the White Paper states that the 
Government wants new Plans to be in place by the end of this 
Parliament (May 2024).  It is proposed that all plans under the new 
system have to be produced in 30 months as a statutory requirement 
and consequently this would require the new plans to be started in 
November 2021. 

3.7 The White Paper proposals have proved very controversial and at this 
moment in time it seems difficult to envisage that all the relevant 
legislation and guidance will be in place by November 2021 not to 
mention the new technology and training to support the reforms.

3.8 In the light of this uncertainty it is proposed to produce an interim LDS 
based on the assumption that this Council will produce its next Local 
Plan under the current system not under the proposed new system, 
but recognising that this may change over the coming months.

3.9 On this basis the proposed timescales for the preparation and 
adoption of the new Local Plan are set out below in Table 1 below.  

Table 1 Summary of  the new Gosport Borough Local Plan Timetable



Seek Economic Development Board 
approval for consultation purposes

June/July 2021

Consultation on Draft Local Plan 
(Reg 18) (8-10 week informal 
consultation)

July-September 2021

Consultation on Publication Plan 
(Reg 19) (6 week consultation)

February 2022- 
March 2022

Submission of Plan to Secretary of 
State

Summer 2022

Examination in Public Autumn 2022
Adoption Winter  2022/23

3.10 A full informal consultation (often referred to as the Regulation 18 
consultation) will take place in the Summer of 2021. A consultation at 
this stage has a number of advantages including that it will enable the 
Council to gain a better understanding of the scale and extent of the 
Ministry of Defence site releases.  A consultation in the Summer will 
also enable the Council to consider the latest Government proposals 
regarding the changes to the planning system.  It is envisaged by this 
stage the Government will have produced its transitional 
arrangements.

3.11 It is also hoped that by the Summer, the Council will be able to 
undertake a fuller consultation with the public than under the current 
Covid-19 restrictions, although it is recognised that certain restrictions 
may still be in place. 

3.12 The regulation 18 consultation document will include: the various 
land-use allocations relating to employment and residential uses, 
updates of the existing Local Plan policies as well as new policies 
which will relate to issues relating to the Government’s commitment 
to net zero carbon emissions by 2050, enhancing biodiversity, 
improving health and increasing the diversity of town centre uses 
(which is also reflected in the recent changes of the Use Class 
Orders).  

3.13 The evidence undertaken so far to support the Regulation 18 
consultation document will be necessary whether or not the Council 
is ultimately required to divert to the new Local Plan system. It also 
provides the Council with useful information for other Council services 
and corporate projects.  

3.14 However, there are some potential forthcoming studies such as a 
possible whole-plan viability report and second stage evidence 
studies which may not be required under the new system. The 
Regulation 18 consultation will help establish from representations 
received what evidence is required to satisfy their concerns and 
consequently additional work can be focused on these aspects. This 
will be important to establish a robust evidence base.



3.15 For completeness the LDS includes provisions for other non-DPD 
planning documents such as the revised charging schedule for the 
Community Infrastructure Levy, although this is not a statutory 
requirement. As  noted earlier  the Community Infrastructure Levy is 
likely to be abolished under the White Paper proposals and therefore 
the LDS will be amended once we are aware of the details of the latest 
provisions

4 Risk Assessment

4.1 The LDS includes a section on risk assessment and recognises that 
inevitably there will be various factors, mainly unforeseen, which will 
affect the programmes for the preparation of Local Plan and 
associated documents.  This could include the following:

 Staff retention 
 Staff capacity and skills
 Diversion of staff time to the Council’s Covid-19 response
 Recruitment problems of qualified officers
 Staff illness  
 Changes to Government guidance and legislation
 Work related to representations to other Development Plans
 New projects requiring priority action 
 Budgetary constraints
 Lack of clarity  from landowners on the extent and timescale 

of any land releases which can affect the evidence gathering 
process and ultimately the ability to allocate sites

 Capacity of external agencies to provide comment and 
guidance

 Programme slippage on evidence studies
 Level of representations received at each stage of 

consultation.
 Internal and external issues arising from the Covid-19 

pandemic

4.2 Consideration will be given to appropriate contingency arrangements, 
especially if this would lead to key milestone dates not being met. In 
certain circumstances it may be necessary to prepare a revised 
Scheme where the programmes in the LDS may not have been met.  
The LDS is kept under review via the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Services Management meetings.  Any material 
revisions will be reported to the Economic Development Board for 
approval.

5 Conclusion

5.1



The LDS has been updated in the light of significant changing 
circumstances and revised Government guidance and if approved will 
be published to meet statutory obligations. It is acknowledged that the 
production of the new Local Plan will be a difficult process due to the 
uncertainty regarding key allocation sites which is further complicated 
by the proposed overhaul of the planning system in the context of the 
current pandemic and the severe social and economic uncertainties 
arising.  However, a Local Plan based on sound principles which 
facilitates regeneration, provides homes and employment 
opportunities, and protects our environment should provide a firm 
strategy for recovery.

Financial Services 
comments:

No comment

Legal Services 
comments:

Contained within the report

Climate Change The LDS document itself will not have any 
implications but is a requirement as part of the 
Local Plan process.  The forthcoming Local Plan 
will including suite of policies which will move 
development towards net zero carbon emissions 
and include other environmentally sound policies.

Equality and Diversity Not applicable- This is a programme for publication.  
The consultations arrangements themselves are 
set out in the Statement of Community Involvement 
which is also being reported to this Board and has 
been subject to an Equality and Diversity Impact 
Assessment.

Council Plan: The delivery of the Local Plan requires an LDS to 
be published.  The Local Plan will assist in 
developing the economy, enhancing the 
environment and raising aspirations

Risk Assessment: See Section 4
Background papers: None
Appendices Appendix A: Interim Local Development Scheme 

for the new Gosport Borough Local Plan  November 
2020

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Jayson Grygiel, Planning Policy Manager 



 

November 2020

For further information on this Document please contact 
planningpolicy@gosport.gov.uk or tel 023 9254 5461

GOSPORT BOROUGH LOCAL PLAN 
INTERIM LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

Further Information

The latest information regarding the new 
Gosport Borough Local Plan can be 
found at: 

www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036 

If you have any queries regarding the new Gosport Borough Local Plan, or this 
document, please contact the Planning Policy Team at Gosport Borough Council.

Tel: 023 9254 5461
Address: Planning and Regeneration Services
Gosport Borough Council
Town Hall
High Street
Gosport PO12 1EB

E Mail: HUplanning.policy@gosport.gov.ukU

Gosport Borough Council is committed to 
equal opportunities for all. If you need this 
document in large print, on tape, CD, in 
Braille or in another language please ask. 

GOSPORT BOROUGH LOCAL PLAN 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

INTERIM DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

– CONTENTS –

1.0 Introduction 1

2.0 Legislation and guidance relating to Local Plan (and others DPDs) 3

3.0 Current Development Plan and other planning policy document for 
Gosport Borough 5

4.0 Preparation and Adoption of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 9

5.0 Resource Considerations           15

6.0 Monitoring and Review of the Local Development Scheme                             18

Appendix 1: The Timetable for Planning Policy Documents  19

Appendix 2: Key Milestones in the Production and Adoption of the 
new GBLP & the Revised CIL Charging Schedule  20 

Appendix 3: Local Plan Process           22

Glossary of Terms  and Abbreviations                                          23
                                    



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

1

THE GOSPORT BOROUGH LOCAL PLAN  
INTERIM LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

1 INTRODUCTION

Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms used in this document can be found at 
the end of this document. It is recognised that there are a number of terms and 
abbreviations within this document.  However this has been necessary due to the 
need to refer to terminology included in Government Regulations and Guidance.

Background and Purpose of the Local Development Scheme
1.1 Local planning authorities are required to prepare and maintain a Local 

Development Scheme (LDS) under section 15 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 20041 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011)2.   

1.2 An LDS sets out the programme for preparing and adopting Development Plan 
Documents (DPDs) for a local planning area. It is proposed that the DPD for 
Gosport Borough will be in the form of a Local Plan.

1.3 The current Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was adopted in October 
2015 following public consulation and an examination by an independent 
inspector.  This document will be superseded in due course by the proposed 
new Gosport Borough Local Plan  (GBLP) once it has been adopted.  The role 
of the Local Plan is set out in Box 1. 

 
1.4 This LDS sets out the key stages of the GBLP including when community 

engagement will take place and when it will be examined by an Planning 
Inspector. In addition it sets out provisions for other planning policy documents 
where known.3

1.5 The LDS must be made publically available and kept up-to-date, and 
consequently will be published on the Council’s website. It is important that local 
communities and interested parties can keep track of progress.  This LDS will 
supersede the last version agreed in November 2018.

1.6 Section 2 of this document sets out Government guidance and legislation  which 
relates to the need to prepare a Local Plan and consequently the need to set 
out a timetable to prepare one which is the form of an LDS.

1.7 Section 3 sets out the current planning policy documents relevant to Gosport 
Borough whilst Section 4 sets out the arrangements for updating the Local Plan. 

1 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/15 
2 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/111/enacted 
3 Under the Regulations an LDS is only required to make provisions for DPDs however for completeness it is considered useful 
to include arrangements for non DPDs

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/111/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/111/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/15
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/111/enacted


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

2

Section 5 considers the resource issues and assesses risk and section 6 
considers how the LDS arrangements are reviewed.

Box 1: What is the role of  a Local Plan?

The Local Plan is at the heart of the planning system with a requirement set in law 
that planning decisions must be taken in line with the Local Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 

Plans set out a vision and a framework for the future development of the area, 
addressing needs and opportunities in relation to housing, the economy, community 
facilities and infrastructure.  It is also used as a basis for conserving and enhancing 
the natural and historic environment, mitigating and adapting to climate change, and 
achieving well designed places. It is essential that plans are in place and kept up to 
date.

Source: Planning Practice Guidance (MHCLG 13/9/18)



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

3

2 LEGISLATION AND GUIDANCE RELATING TO LOCAL PLANS 
(and other DPDs)  

Legislation relating to the preparation of a Local Plan
2.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)4 sets out that 

each local planning authority must identify their strategic priorities and have 
policies to address these in their development plan documents (taken as a 
whole).

2.2 Section 19 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 20045 sets out 
specific matters to which the local planning authority must have regard when 
preparing a local plan. Regulations 8 and 9 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 20126 prescribe the general form and 
content of local plans and adopted policies maps, while regulation 10 states 
what additional matters local planning authorities must have regard to when 
drafting their local plans.7

The requirements for a Local Plan as set out in the National Planning 
Policy Framework 

2.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was originally published by 
the Government in March 2012 with subsequent revisions in July 2018 and 
February 2019.  

2.4 The NPPF requires local planning authorites to produce up-to-date  local plans  
that ‘provide a positive vision for the future, a framework for addressing housing 
needs and other economic, social and environmental priorities and a platform 
for local people to shape their surroundings’. 

2.5 The NPPF adds that plans should:
 Be prepared with the objective of contributing to the achievement of 

sustainable development8;
 Be prepared positively, in a way that is aspirational but deliverable;
 Be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-

makers and communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure 
providers and operators, and statutory consultees;

 Contain policies that are clearly written and unambiguous, so it is evident 
how a decision maker should react to development proposals;

 Be accessible through the use of digital tools to assist public involvement 
and policy presentation; and

 Serve a clear purpose, avoiding unnecessary duplication of policies that 
apply to a particular area.

2.6 The NPPF confirms that plans must be based on adequate, up-to-date and relevant 
evidence and prepared in accordance with the Duty to Cooperate, legal and 
procedural requirements, and be sound. 

4 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/20/section/8
5 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/19
6 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/part/4/made
7 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/10/made
8 This is a legal requirement of local planning authorities (Section 39(2) of the Planning and Comulsory Purchase Act 2004).

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/19
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/part/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/part/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/10/made


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

4

2.7 The tests of soundness are examined by a Planning Inspector at the 
Examination in Public and are set out below:

a) Positively prepared – providing a strategy which, as a minimum, seeks to 
meet the area’s objectively assessed needs; and is informed by agreements 
with other authorities, so that unmet need from neighbouring areas is 
accommodated where it is practical to do so and is consistent with achieving 
sustainable development; 

b) Justified – an appropriate strategy, taking into account the reasonable 
alternatives, and based on proportionate evidence; 

c) Effective – deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint 
working on cross-boundary strategic matters that have been dealt with 
rather than deferred, as evidenced by the statement of common ground; and 

d) Consistent with national policy – enabling the delivery of sustainable 
development in accordance with the policies in this Framework [i.e. the 
NPPF]. 

2.8 Where appropriate, Local Plans can be reviewed in whole or in part to respond 
flexibly to changing circumstances.  The requirements for a ‘review’ are set out 
in Section 4. 

3 CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER PLANNING 
POLICY DOCUMENTS FOR GOSPORT BOROUGH



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

5

Introduction
3.1 Figure 3.1 identifies the types of document that comprise (or could comprise) 

the main types of planning policy documents in Gosport Borough and the 
associated consultation arrangements (as set out in the Statement of 
Community Involvement). This section identifies the current development plan 
for the Borough; and other planning policy documents that have been adopted 
by the Borough Council. 

Figure 3.1 Types of planning policy documents

Development Plan Documents (DPDs) 
3.2 The Development Plan for Gosport Borough is made up of two parts.



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

6

 The Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 which was prepared by 
Gosport Borough Council and adopted in October 20159; and

 The Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan which was prepared in 2013 by 
Hamsphire County Council, with responsibilities for the Gosport area, and 
the other mineral and waste ‘Hampshire authorities’10.

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029
3.3 The adopted Local Plan covers the whole of Gosport Borough. It was subject to 

several rounds of public consultation and  was considered by a planning 
inspector at an ‘examination in public’ in 2015.

3.4 The Local Plan sets out the overarching vision for the Borough  and identifies 
opportunities for development including within a number of regneration areas 
such as the Gosport Waterfront, Daedalus, Haslar Peninsula, Rowner and the 
Alver Valley as well as a number of other development proposals. It aims to 
encourage new economic development and the delivery of supporting 
infrastructure as well as a range of new housing to meet local needs. It aims to 
protect those features important to the character of the Borough including open 
spaces and heritage assets. It sets out a policy framework for determining 
planning applications on a number of themes include design, heritage, nature 
conservation, flood risk, and community facilities.  

3.5 The adopted Local Plan webpage www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029 includes 
all the relevant evidence and supporting documents. 

3.6 This LDS relates to the timetable of updating the Local Plan and this is detailed 
in  in Section 4 and Appendices 1 and 2.

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan
3.7 This sets out the key waste minerals and waste allocations in Hampshire.  It is 

used by Hampshire County Council within its jurisdiction to determine 
applications for minerals and waste proposals. 

Supplementary Planning Documents
3.8 Supplementary Planning Documents provide more detailed guidance to explain 

policies and proposals set out in the Local Plan.  They can relate to a specific 
theme or development site/area. They have been subject to public consultation 
but are not examined by an independent public examination.  The current SPDs 
are set out below in order of adoption:

 Marine Parade Area of Special Character (adopted 2007).
 Daedalus SPD (2011)
 Design Guidance (2014)
 Parking (2014)
 Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre (2018)
 Lee West Area of Special Character (2019)

9 www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029

10 Portsmouth City Council, Southampton Cty Council, New Forest National Park Authority and the South Downs National Park 
Authority

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

7

3.9 As part of the revised Local Plan the relevance of the SPDs will be considered.  
Where they are deemed to be still relevant without change or with relatively 
minor change they will be linked to the new Local Plan.

3.10 If the SPD is still relevant but a more signficiant review is required this will be 
highlighted in the revised Local Plan and a review of the SPD will take place 
once the Local Plan is adopted.

3.11 From time to time there may be a need for further supplemetary planning 
documents.  It will be important that these do not divert resources from the Local 
Plan process. 

3.12 The timetable for SPDs do not need to be included in the LDS but for 
completeness a timetable for any proposed SPDs will be included in a future 
LDS. None are currently proposed.

Conservation Area Appraisals
3.13 Section 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

places on local planning authorities the duty to draw up and publish proposals 
for the preservation and enhancement of conservation areas in their districts. 
This can take the form of a Conservation Area Appraisal (CAA).

3.14 CAAs are intended to act as a guide to the buildings and features that make a 
special contribution to the character of a designated Conservation Area. They 
assess how each area developed historically, their character, the scale and 
form of development and opportunities for continuing enhancement.  As each 
Appraisal is adopted by the Borough Council they will be used to inform planning 
decisions through the Development Management process and the 
development of Planning Policy.

3.15 Table 1 sets out the current Conservation Area Appraisals11.  In a similar way 
to the SPDs there is no requirement to publish a timetable to produce a CAA. 
The SCI sets out the consultation arrangements for these documents. Following 
consultation and revision of the appraisal and the resulting management 
proposals to take account of public responses, they can be adopted formally in 
accordance with the local authority’s internal procedures. Planning inspectors 
have accepted appraisals as material considerations of considerable weight in 
appeals.

Table 1 Conservation Area Appraisal in Gosport Borough

11 https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/conservation/conservation-areas/area-
appraisals/ 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/conservation/conservation-areas/area-appraisals/
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/conservation/conservation-areas/area-appraisals/


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

8

Bury Road (Nov 2018) Haslar Peninsula (March 2007)
Daedalus (March 2007) High Street (Gosport Town Centre) (Oct 2006)
Forton (Nov 2008) Lee-on-the-Solent (March 2009)
Hardway (March 2007) Peel Road (March 2007)
Haslar Barracks (March 2018) Rowner (March 2007)

Stoke Road (March 2007)

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule
3.16 The current Community Infrasttucture Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule was 

adopted on 14th October 2015  and covers the whole Borough.  It was 
adopted following an examination by a planning inspector which immediately 
followed the Examination in Public for the GBLP.  The schedule came into 
effect on 1st February 2016.

3.17 The CIL has generally, but not totally replaced the need to take developer 
contributuons secured through a Section 106 Agreement, with a tariff being 
placed on certain types of development.  Following work on viability it was 
found that residential development and retail warehousing were the forms of 
development capable of generating CIL receipts.

3.18 The CIL is not a DPD and is not required to be included in the LDS.  In this 
case it is considered that the CIL Charging Schedule will use significant 
evidence from the Local Plan process and will therefore  be updated at the 
same time as the GBLP.  A timetable is included in Appendix 1.

4.0 Preparation and Adoption of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

9

Introduction
4.1 As highlighted previously it is a statutory requirement for each local planning 

authority to have an up-to-date Local Plan. The NPPF12 and associated 
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)13 provides further detail on these matters.

4.2 The NPPF states that Local Plans should be ‘reviewed’ every five years. The 
Government’s Planning Practice Guidance sets out in more detail what is meant 
by review (see Box 2 below).

Box 2: Plan Reviews - Extracts from the Planning Practice Guidance relating 
to Plan Review 

How often should a plan or policies be reviewed?

To be effective plans need to be kept up-to-date. The National Planning Policy 
Framework states policies in local plans and spatial development strategies, should 
be reviewed to assess whether they need updating at least once every 5 years, 
and should then be updated as necessary.

Most plans are likely to require updating in whole or in part at least every 5 years. 
Reviews should be proportionate to the issues in hand. Plans may be found sound 
conditional upon a plan update in whole or in part within 5 years of the date of 
adoption.  Paragraph: 062 Reference ID: 61-062-20190315 Revision date: 15 03 
2019

Are policies considered out-of-date if they are not updated after 5 years?

The National Planning Policy Framework is clear that strategic policies should be 
prepared over a minimum 15 year period and a local planning authority should be 
planning for the full plan period. Policies age at different rates according to local 
circumstances and a plan does not become out-of-date automatically after 5 years. 
The review process is a method to ensure that a plan and the policies within remains 
effective. Applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Due 
weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their 
consistency with the National Planning Policy Framework. It will be up to the 
decision-maker to decide the weight to give to the policies.
Paragraph: 064 Reference ID: 61-064-20190315 Revision date: 15 03 2019

Source Planning Practice Guidance (MHCLG (13/9/18)

4.3 Whilst the current adopted Local Plan was adopted in 2015 and covers the 
period to 2029 it has been considered necessary  to prepare a revised Local 
Plan to cover the period to at least 2036, but it is acknowledged that this end 
date will need to be reviewed. There are a number of reasons which prompt the 
need to prepare an updated Local Plan which are set out below. 

12 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
13 https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance

https://gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/5-Delivering-a-sufficient-supply-of-homes#para73
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/climate-change#how-can-local-planning-authorities-identify-appropriate-mitigation-measures-in-plan-making


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

10

 The Local Plan is now five years old and in accordance with Government 
requirements plans should be reviewed every five years.

 Since the adoption of the GBLP the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire 
(PUSH)14 (now known as Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) has 
produced its Spatial Position Statement (June 2016)15 which sets out the 
quantum of employment floorspace and housing required for the sub-region 
including figures for each district over the period to 2034.  

 Since the publication of this document, the Government has published the 
NPPF in July 2018 which introduces a standard methodology for calculating 
housing need for each district, a requirement to meet the Housing Delivery 
Test, and a number of other significant changes which will need to be 
considered further as part of the Local Plan as well as collectively by the 
PfSH authorities.

 In November 2016 the Government announced the release of two major 
Ministry of Defence sites within the Borough.  Blockhouse was due to be 
released in 2020 but this will not now happen this year; and HMS Sultan 
was originally proposed to be released in 2026 but the site will now not be 
released until at least 2029. These sites have significant implications for the 
future development strategy of the Borough. It is important to recognise that 
it is the Council’s position to strongly lobby for the retention of HMS Sultan 
as a training base and where achievable consider intensifying the 
employment and training uses of the site for military and civilian 
organisations.    

 Other publically-owned sites are to be released such as the Immigration 
Removal Centre at Haslar.

4.4 Once adopted the new Local Plan will supersede the current Local Plan 2011-
2029. The process of preparing and adopting a  Local Plan is included in 
Appendix 3.

Uncertainty created by the Government’s Planning for the Future White paper 
(August 2020)

4.5 Notwithstanding the above considerations regarding the need to review the 
Local Plan under the current Local Plan system, in August 2020 the 
Government published far-reaching reforms to the whole planning sytem which 
have been described as the most signficiant changes since 1947. 

4.6 Consequently the Council has felt it necessary to produce an interim Local 
Development Scheme until such time more detail is available from the 
Government regarding whether it requires local planning authorities to produce 

14 PUSH is a sub-regional grouping of 12 authorities: Hampshire County Council, Portsmouth City Council, Southampton City 
Council, Isle of Wight Council, Eastleigh Borough Council,  East Hampshire District Council, Fareham Borough Council, Gosport 
Borough Council, Havant Borough Council, New Forest District Council, Test Valley Borough Council and Winchester City 
Council.
15 This is the agreed name of the ‘South Hampshire Strategy Review’ referred to by the Inspector in his  EIP Report 
http://www.push.gov.uk/item_12_-_appendix_1_-_position_statement.pdf

http://www.push.gov.uk/work/planning-and-infrastructure/strategic_housing_market_assessment.htm
http://www.push.gov.uk/item_12_-_appendix_1_-_position_statement.pdf


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

11

Local Plans under the proposed new system or continue under the current 
system.

4.7 The Government proposals are at an early stage and lack sufficient detail to 
understand the most appropriate way forward in producing a new Local Plan. 
One of the key issues arising relates to the fact that the White Paper includes 
no transitional arrangements for LPAs currently preparing Local Plans.  The 
proposed new process will be radically different in terms of the evidence 
required, the type of designations indicated, the consultation arrangements, and 
the need for Design Codes. The new system will include a new standard method 
for determining housing numbers which will take into account local constraints.  
It will also dispense with the duty to cooperate obligation. As such, it is not 
known at what stage the Government requires those local authorities that have 
reached a particular plan-making stage to continue under the current Local Plan 
system or switch to the new system.  

4.8 This is complicated by the fact that the White Paper states that the Government 
wants new Plans to be in place by the end of this Parliament (May 2024).  It is 
proposed that all plans under the new system have to be produced in 30 months 
as a statutory requirement and consequently this would require the new plans 
to be started in November 2021.

4.9 The White Paper proposals have proved very controversial and at this moment 
in time it seems difficult to envisage that all the relevant legislation and guidance 
will be in place by November 2021 not to mention the new technology and 
training to support the reforms.

4.10  In the light of this uncertainty it is proposed to produce an interim LDS based 
on the assumption that this Council will produce its next Local Plan under the 
current system not under the proposed new system, but recognising that this 
may change over the coming months.

Documents supporting the Local Plan
4.11 A fundamental step in the process of preparing a Local Plan is the gathering of 

sufficient evidence which is robust enough to support planning policies.  As part 
of the Local Plan process  a number of supporting documents and evidence 
studies are required and these are set out below.  Some of these will be 
prepared internally whilst others will require external expertise.

Policies Map
4.12 The Policies Map geographically identifies the adopted Local Plan policies. The 

revised Policies Map will primarily include the policies of the new Local Plan but 
will also include relevant proposals in the Minerals & Waste Plan.  It will 
supersede the current Polciies Map that accompanies the GBLP2011-2029.

Habitats Regulation Assessment
4.13 A Habitats Regulation Assessment is a requirement of the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended known as ‘the Habitats 
Regulations’).  The assessment focuses on the likely significant effects of the 
plan on the nature conservation interests of European-protected areas in and 



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

12

around the Borough, and seeks to establish whether or not there will be any 
adverse effects on the ecological integrity of these European sites as a result of 
proposals in the plan.  This is an integral part of the Local Plan process and will 
include specific consultation with key stakeholders such as Natural England 
throughout the process as well as wider public consultation at the same time 
the  GBLP is available for consultation.

Sustainability Appraisal
4.14 A Sustainability Appraisal (SA) will be undertaken for the Local Plan policies to 

assess their economic, environmental and social impact, and to ensure that the 
policies and proposals will promote sustainable development.  The SA will 
ensure that the requirements of the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) 
Directive are met.  The SA is an iterative process and will be amended 
throughout the process to take into account the latest policy framework, 
evidence and consultation. The SA will include a number of elements:

 A Scoping Report which includes the Gosport Profile Information and a 
review of all the relevant strategies affecting the Borough.  This will be  
subject to consultation with statutory consultees. 

 Consideration of Options for Allocations  - this will be subject to public 
consultation at the same time as the Local Plan.

 Consideration of Policies- this will be subject to public consultation at the 
same time as the Local Plan.

Evidence Studies
4.15 Table 2 sets out the key evidence studies required for the emerging Local Plan, 

based on past experience and the requirements set out in NPPF and PPG. The 
table gives some indication whether the study is likely to be internal research 
conducted primarily by officers or whether it will likely to be external and 
prepared primarily by consultants.  The table also highlights those studies 
recently instigated on a sub-regional basis by PUSH.

Table 2 Currently known studies which will contribute towards the other 
evidence base

Study Comment
Internal
Infrastructure Assessment Report 
(IAR) and Delivery Plan (IDP)

The IAR is under preparation  taking into 
account the Solent LEP report Gosport 
Infrastructure Investment Plan (GIIP)
The IDP is being published as part of the 
Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS)

Open Space Monitoring Report Under preparation 
Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment

Under preparation.

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment Under preparation
PfSH-led
Air Quality Study Completed 2018
Integrated Water Management 
Strategy

Completed.  A PfSH working group has been s 
set up to consider implications post 2020



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

13

PfSH Statement of Common Ground 
Studies relating to employment, 
strategic development opportunity 
areas and related transport 
implications.

Under preparation

External for GBC
Demographic and Housing Need Completed  (2019)
Economic Development Needs 
Assessment (EDNA)/ Employment 
Land Availability Assessment (ELLA)

Completed (Feb 2019)

Gosport Infrastructure Investment 
Plan

Commissioned by the Solent LEP and 
completed in 2018

Retail and Leisure Needs Report Completed (July 2020)
Site specific Indivdual site studies conducted by a range of 

organisations will contribute towards the 
evidence base- continual discussions underway

Sports Pitch Assessment Under preparation
Transport Assessment Stage 1 –Modelling completed

Stage 2 – Transport Assessment –awaiting 
consultation comment at Reg 18 stage

Whole Plan Viability Report The need for this document is under review 
depending on the White Paper proposals 
relating to both Local Plans and whether or not 
the Community Infrastructure Levy will be 
abolished

4.16 This is by no means an exhaustive list and the Local Plan will draw significantly 
upon other studies and strategies prodiced by a number of organisations on a 
range of themes.  The Council’s website relating to the current Local Plan 
outlines the range of evidence used.16 Other studies may be required as and 
when issues arise from revised Government guidance, changing circumstances 
(such as land releases), new evidence or indeed as a result of consultation.

4.17 In addition the Council will prepare a number of thematic background papers 
which bring together the following:
 the latest policy framework and best practice;
 key findings from various evidence studies; and
 consultation outcomes

4.18 These are useful living drafts for officers which will eventually be published 
These set out how key policies and main themes have been formulated.  They 
include issues such as housing, the economy, retail, nature conservation, and 
the urban area boundary.

Statement of Community Involvement
4.19 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how the community 

will be consulted and involved in the preparation of the Local Plan and other 

16 https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/gosport-
borough-local-plan-2029/gosport-borough-local-plan-2011-2029-adopted-october-2015/evidence-studies/ 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/gosport-borough-local-plan-2029/gosport-borough-local-plan-2011-2029-adopted-october-2015/evidence-studies/
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/gosport-borough-local-plan-2029/gosport-borough-local-plan-2011-2029-adopted-october-2015/evidence-studies/


Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

14

planning documents. It sets out the Council’s approach to community 
involvement on planning applications within the Borough.  A revised SCI was 
adopted in March 2019.

Statement of Consultation
4.20 As part of the Examination of the Local Plan,  the Council is required to produce 

a Statement of Consultation which demonstrates to a Planning Inspector and 
stakeholders how the Council consulted with the public and other stakeholders 
throughout the process and what were the main outcomes.

Duty to Cooperate Statement and Statement of Common Ground
4.21 The Council is required to produce a Duty to Cooperate Statement to 

demonstrate how it has fulfilled its statutory obligations to fulfil the duty to 
cooperate under the provisions of the Localism Act and the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning)(England) Regulations 2012.  This will be considered 
by an Inspector at the Examination in Public.

4.22 In addition under new arrangements included in the NPPF (2018) it is necessary 
for local authorities to prepare Statements of Common Ground which need to 
be prepared and maintained on an on-going basis throughout the plan making 
process.  These documents deal with how cross-boundary matters are being 
addresed.  

Timetable and Process for preparing the GBLP

4.23 Nothwithstanding the uncertainties highlighted in  paragraphs 4.5- 4.10 above, 
Table 3 sets out the  proposed GBLP timetable.  In addition  Appendix 1 
identifies the timeline in comparison with other proposed planning documents, 
whilst Appendix 2 sets out key milestones.  Appendix 3 outlines in some further 
detail the key elements of each stage.

Table 3: Summary of  new Gosport Borough Local Plan  Timetable

Seek Economic Development Board 
approval for consultation purposes

June/July 2021

Consultation on Draft Local Plan 
(Reg 18) (8-10 week informal 
consultation)

July-September 2021

Consultation on Publication Plan 
(Reg 19) (6 week consultation)

February 2022- 
March 2022

Submission of Plan to Secretary of State Summer 2022
Examination in Public Autumn 2022
Adoption Winter  2022/23

5.0 Resource Considerations



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

15

5.1 A crucial element in the successful delivery of an up to date Local Plan for 
Gosport will involve effective resource management and allocation.

5.2 Gosport Borough Council is a relatively small authority with limited financial and 
staff resources so it is particularly important to ensure resources are well 
directed.  

Member responsibilities
5.3 The Economic Development Board will approve the Local Plan for consultation 

at Regulation 18 stage.  The Economic Development Board will also consider 
the document at Regulation 19 stage for consultation but it will be necessary for 
the document to be approved by Full Council prior to consultation and 
submission to the Secretary of State.  Similarly once the  Inspector’s Report is 
received it will be for Full Council to formally adopt the Local Plan following 
consideration at the Economic Development Board.

Staff responsibilities and resources
5.4 Overall responsibility for the successful delivery and implementation of the 

Gosport Local Plan and associated documents will be with the Planning Policy 
Section of the Borough Council’s Planning and Regeneration Unit.  Much of the 
work of the Section will be dedicated to the preparation of the Local Plan.  The 
structure of the Planning Policy Section is set out below:

 Manager of Planning Policy
 Principal Planning Officer
 Senior Planning Officer
 Senior Planning Officer p/t
 Planning Officer
 Cartographic & Technical Officer p/t

5.5 Officers from other sections in the Council will also have involvement in aspects 
of the preparation of the Local Plan.  In particular the following linkages (Table 
4) are anticipated:

Table 4: Work with other Council teams

Teams Types of work
Development 
Management

Development management policies, transport 
policies, site allocations

Conservation and 
Design

Conservation and design policies, and specific 
sites

Economic Development Employment and retail policies,site allocations
Housing Housing policies
Property Specifc site allocations
Streetscene Open space policies, Flood management policies 

(with the East Solent Coastal Partnership), 
recycling and sustainability policies,  Alver Valley

Environmental Health Contamination issues both generally and in 
relation to specific sites



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

16

Corporate Policy Community liaison
Legal Advice throughout the plan-making process
Finance Advice throughout the plan-making process 
Press/Public relations Assistance with publicity and media

5.6 The Borough Council will also continue its established working relationships 
with officers of Hampshire County Council on a range of issues. It will also work 
in partnership with other authorities in PfSH, with a particular emphasis on joint 
studies and cooperative policy development. The Council will work with 
colleagues at Portsmouth City Council  and Fareham Borough Council on 
particular cross-boundary issues, which will form part of the Duty to Cooperate 
and inform Statements of Common Ground in order to deliver quality planning 
outcomes.  

5.7 Similarly, the Borough Council will work with organisations such as the 
Environment Agency, Historic England, Natural England, the Solent Local 
Enterprise Partnership, the Hampshire & Isle of Wight Local Nature Partnership, 
the Wildlife Trust,  the Queen’s Harbour Master and the Defence Infrastructure 
Organisation.

5.8 Additional resources will be contracted to undertake particular tasks or to meet 
deadlines at times of particular pressure.  In some cases this may involve 
individual officers from other departments, other local authorities and in other 
cases external consultants, including specialist consultants.  Wherever possible 
these additional resources should either have a sound knowledge of planning 
issues in Gosport and South Hampshire, or should have sound experience of 
the specialist work required.

Risk Assessment

5.9 The preparation of the LDS will allow for more effective resource planning, but 
inevitably there will be various factors, mainly unforeseen, which will affect the 
programmes for the preparation of Local Plan and associated document.  This 
could include the following:

 Staff retention 
 Staff capacity and skills
 Diversion of staff time to the Council’s Covid-19 response
 Recruitment problems of qualified officers
 Staff illness 
 Changes to Government guidance and legislation
 Work related to representations to other Development Plans
 Projects requiring priority action
 Budgetary constraints
 Lack of clarity  from landowners on the extent and timescale of any 

land releases which can affect the evidence gathering process and 
ultimately the ability to allocate sites

 Capacity of external agencies to provide comment and guidance
 Programme slippage on evidence studies



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

17

 Level of representations received at each stage of consultation
 Internal and external issues arising from the Covid-19 pandemic

5.10 Consideration will be given to appropriate contingency arrangements, 
especially if this would lead to key milestone dates not being met. In certain 
circumstances it may be necessary to prepare a revised Scheme where the 
programmes in the LDS may not have been met.  The LDS is kept under review 
via the Planning and Economc Regeneration Services Management meetings.  
Any revisions will be reported to the Economic Development Board for approval.



Gosport Borough Local Plan -  Interim Local Development Scheme           November 2020

18

6.0 Monitoring and Review of the Local Development Scheme

Authority Monitoring Report

6.1 The Government has placed increased importance on monitoring of progress 
on Plan preparation. The Local Development Scheme will therefore be subject 
to regular monitoring.

6.2 The Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) is published each year and includes a 
section which considers the progress of the Gosport Borough Local Plan  as set 
out in the LDS. This document was formerly known as the Annual Monitoring 
Report and there is a requirement for local planning authorities to produce 
AMRs on an annual basis. These are published on the Council’s webpage 
(normally in the last quarter of each year). 

6.3 The AMR includes information which can influence the need to review both a 
local plan and its timetable.  It includes the following:

 Monitoring of the progress of the LDS
 Monitoring the progress of development on key sites
 Housing Supply information including the latest Five Year Housing Supply 

and Housing Delivery Test
 Information on employment and retail completions
 Nature conservation, open space and green infrastructure indicators and 

other indicators set out in the Local Plan
 Infrastructure delivery
 Issues arising from particular policies
 Report on activity relating to the duty to cooperate

 
6.4 The AMR will assess the implementation of the LDS and the extent to which 

policies in the Local Plan (and other planning policy documents) are being 
successfully implemented.

Review of the Local Development Scheme

6.5 The Council will continue to monitor the Local Development Scheme and submit 
any further revision or update as appropriate.



Gosport Local Development Scheme November 2018

19

Appendix 1 The timetable for planning policy documents

2020 2021 2022 2023
A Winter Spring Summer Autumn Winter Spring Summer Autumn Winter S

Gosport 
Borough 
Local Plan 
2036

Reg  18 Reg 
19

CIL 
Gosport 
Charging 
Schedule

Reg 
16

Key

Document preparation

Public Consultation

Submission 
(preparation  and actual)
Preparation for Examination

Examination

Adoption



Gosport Local Development Scheme November 2018

20



Gosport Borough Local Plan: Interim Local Development Scheme  November 2020

21

APPENDIX 2: Key Milestones in the Production and Adoption Process of 
GBLP and the Revised CIL Charging Schedule

New Gosport Borough Local Plan 
Evidence Gathering and Preparation of Draft Plan January 2019- June 2021

Seek Economic Development Board approval for consultation 
purposes

June/July 2021

Consultation on Draft Plan (often referred to as Reg 18 stage)
with  accompanying Sustainability Appraisal and evidence 
base

July- September 2021

Analysis of consultation comments and prepare any 
amendments to Local Plan  and certain evidence work

September 2021- January 
2022

Public Consultation on Publication Plan (often referred to as 
Reg 19 stage)

- Required for a statutory six week period

February/March 2022

Submission to Secretary of State Summer 2022

Examination in Public Autumn 2022

Inspector’s report - Fact Check Winter 2022/23
Anticipated receipt of Inspector’s Report Winter 2022/23

Provisional Date of Adoption Winter  2022/23



Gosport Borough Local Plan: Interim Local Development Scheme  November 2020

22

Community Infrastructure Levy: Gosport Charging Schedule

Since the last LDS was produced in November 2018 the regulations have been amended 
and consequently Local Planning Authorities now only need to consult once on the 
schedule rather than twice
Evidence Gathering and Preparation of Publication Schedule June 2021-January 2021

Public Consultation on Publication Schedule (often referred to 
as Reg 16 stage)

- Legislation requires not less than 4 week –it is proposed 
that a six week consultation is undertaken to link with 
the Local Plan consultation

-

February-March 2022

Submission to Secretary of State Summer 2022

Examination Autumn 2022

Examiner’s Report  - Fact Check Autumn 2022
Anticipated receipt of Examiner’s Report Winter  2022/23

Provisional Date of Adoption Winter  2022/23



Gosport Borough Local Plan: Interim Local Development Scheme  November 2020

23

Appendix 3: Local Plan Process



Gosport Borough Local Plan: Interim Local Development Scheme  November 2020

24

ABBREVIATIONS & GLOSSARY OF TERMS

AMR Authority Monitoring Report (formerly known as Annual Monitoring 
Report)

CAA Conservation Area Appraisal
CIL Community Infrastructure Levy
DPD Development Plan Document
GBLP2011-2029 Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (Adopted October 2015)
GBLP The forthcoming Gosport Borough Local Plan 
HRA Habitats Regulation Assessment
LDD Local Development Documents
LDS Local Development Scheme
LEP Local Enterprise Partnership
MHCLG Minsitry of Housing Communities and Local Government
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
PPG Planning Pracice Guidance
PfSH Partnership for South Hampshire
Reg(s) Regulation(s)
SA Sustainability Appraisal
SCI Statement of Community Involvement
SEA Strategic Environmental Assessment

Allocations Sites specifically identified on the Proposals Map for 
development.

Authority Monitoring 
Report (AMR)

The annual report on progress in implementing the Local 
Development Scheme.

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL)

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is used to fund 
necessary infrastructure from certain types of development. 

Designations Areas shown on the Policies Map to which specific policies apply 
(not allocations).

Development Plan Under the Planning Acts, this is the prime consideration in the 
determination of planning applications.

Development Plan 
Document (DPD)

DPDs include a Local Plan and are prepared by the local 
planning authority and is subject to an independent public 
examination.  It can cover a range of issues, and will set out the 
main spatial strategy, policies and proposals of the Council.

Duty to Cooperate The duty to cooperate is a legal test that requires cooperation 
between local planning authorities and other public bodies to 
maximise the effectiveness of policies for strategic matters in 
Local Plans. It is separate from but related to the Local Plan test 
of soundness

Local Development 
Documents (LDDs)

Generic term for plnning policy documents.  Comprises 
Development Plan Documents, Supplementary Planning 
Documents and the Statement of Community Involvement.

Local Development 
Scheme (LDS)

Project plan for the preparation of Development Plan Documents 
such as the Local Plan.

Policies Map Geographically expresses the policies and proposals of the 
Development Plan Document.

PfSH The Partnership for South Hampshire comprising local authorities 
and other organisations formerly known as Partnership for Urban 
South Hampshire (PUSH).

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement (SCI)

Sets out how the local planning authority involves the local 
community, businesses and other stakeholders in preparing and 



Gosport Borough Local Plan: Interim Local Development Scheme  November 2020

25

reviewing its Local Development Documents and includes 
consultation arrangements for planning applications.

Section 106 
Agreement

The legal agreements that are made when local authority seeks 
to secure planning obligations for particular actions from a 
developer when granting planning permsiion. This can include 
the securing of financial contributions in lieu of providing services 
or facilities that would be required in order for the development to 
be acceptable.

Statement of Common 
Ground

A statement of common ground is a written record of the 
progress made by strategic policy-making authorities during the 
process of planning for strategic cross-boundary matters. It 
documents where effective co-operation is and is not happening 
throughout the plan-making process, and is a way of 
demonstrating at examination that plans are deliverable over the 
plan period, and based on effective joint working across local 
authority boundaries. In the case of local planning authorities, it 
also forms part of the evidence required to demonstrate that they 
have complied with the duty to cooperate.

Strategic 
Environmental 
Assessment (SEA)

Environmental assessment of policies, plans and programmes 
required under the European SEA Directive 2001/42/EC.

Supplementary 
Planning Documents 
(SPD)

Supplementary Planning Documents that expand upon policies 
or proposals in Development Plan Documents.  

Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA)

A social, economic and environmental appraisal of strategy, 
policies and proposals – required for all Development Plan 
Documents.  The UK system of Sustainability Appraisal 
incorporates the European requirements of Strategic 
Environmental Assessment.



Board/Committee: Economic Development Board
Date of Meeting: 18 November 2020
Title: Infrastructure Funding Statement
Author: Planning Policy Manager
Status: For Decision

Purpose

On 1 September 2019, the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) 
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 (“the CIL Regulations 2019”) came into 
force and amended the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as 
Amended). This report outlines the requirements of these regulations for 
Members’ consideration.

These regulations introduced a new Government requirement to produce the 
annual Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS). This report seeks approval for 
the publication of Gosport Borough Council’s IFS and ‘infrastructure list’ 
(Appendix 1) which covers the monitoring period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2020. This report also seeks approval for the introduction of a monitoring fee 
for Section 106 agreements as allowed by the CIL Regulations 2019 and as 
detailed in Section 4 of the IFS.

Recommendation

That this board:

 Approves the Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020 contained within 
Appendix A of this report and any necessary minor amendments be 
delegated to the Planning Policy Manager.

 Approves the introduction of a Section 106 monitoring fee as set out in 
Section 4 of the IFS.

1 Background

1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) 
Regulations 2019 came into force on 1 September 2019 and 
amended the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 
These new Regulations change the way CIL operates and introduce 
a new Government requirement for the Council to publish an IFS 
annually by 31 December. 

1.2 The specific changes introduced by the CIL Regulations 2019 are:

 Regulation 9 inserts Regulation 121A into the CIL Regulations 
2010 and a new schedule, Schedule 2, which requires local 

Agenda Item 8



authorities to publish an annual infrastructure funding 
statement setting out how much CIL is collected, how much is 
spent and what is it spent on, and makes similar provision in 
relation to planning obligations (i.e. S106 agreements).

 Regulation 10 amends Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 
2010to ensure the Council can include provision for monitoring 
fees in Section 106 agreements.

 Regulation 11 removes Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations 
which restricted the number of Section 106 agreements which 
a charging authority could enter into in relation to funding 
particular infrastructure, often referred to as ‘pooling’.

1.3 In 2015, the Government commissioned an independent review of 
CIL and other developer contributions1. Following this, the 
Government consulted on reforms in 2018 and 2019, and ultimately 
introduced new CIL Regulations in 2019. These reforms introduced 
the requirement to produce and publish the annual IFS. The reforms 
sought to make the system of developer contributions more efficient, 
transparent, and accountable.

1.4 This Council is, therefore, required to publish the IFS which covers 
the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 on its website by 31 
December 2020.

1.5 Members will recall at the meeting of the Economic Development 
Board on 23 September 2020 the Council’s representation to the 
Government’s ‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper (August 2020) 
was considered. The requirement to produce the IFS was introduced 
prior to the publication of the White Paper. Should the proposed 
‘infrastructure levy’ be introduced it will likely introduce a subsequent 
change to the requirement to publish an IFS and ‘Infrastructure list’. 
Members will be updated when further information is available.

2 Report

Infrastructure Funding Statement 2019/20 (included in Appendix A)

2.1 In addition to the statutory requirements outlined in Paragraph 1.2, it 
is considered that the IFS provides the opportunity to bring together 
related documents and include them in a single publication. It also 
enables the Council to add context to the financial information it 
reports, the methods available to secure infrastructure and the 
infrastructure delivered in the Borough over the plan period since 
2011. To this end, the IFS includes the following information:

 Section 1 sets out an introduction explaining the purpose and 

1 Community Infrastructure Levy review (MHCLG): 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-review-report-to-
government 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-review-report-to-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-review-report-to-government


structure of the report, why the Council produces the IFS and 
outlines the planning policy context within Gosport Borough.

 Section 2 sets out ‘Gosport’s Infrastructure Programme’, which 
explains why infrastructure is vital to supporting development in 
the Borough and is key to implementing the vision and objectives 
of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. It also provides an 
overview of the potential funding sources.

 Section 3 details how the Council uses the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to secure infrastructure and provides a 
full report for the monitoring period.

 Section 4 details how the Council uses various Planning 
Obligations (particularly Section 106 agreements) to secure 
infrastructure and provides a full report for the monitoring period.

 Section 5 shows the infrastructure secured or implemented over 
the past 12 months and since the start of the current Local Plan 
period in 2011.

 Section 6 reports on the infrastructure projects or types of 
infrastructure that the Borough Council intends to fund either 
wholly or partly using the Community Infrastructure Levy and 
other Planning Obligations. This is called the ‘infrastructure list’ 
and replaces the Regulation 123 list.

 Section 7 concludes the report and provides signposts to other 
key documents and sources of information.

 Appendix 1 sets out the most appropriate mechanisms for 
securing each key type of infrastructure together with the other 
key Local Plan policy requirements that are not forms of 
infrastructure (such as training initiatives).

 Appendix 2 contains the Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
(IDP) which sets out the latest identified infrastructure schemes, 
the lead providers, costings and timescales.

Replacing the ‘Regulation 123 list’ with the ‘Infrastructure List’

2.2 Regulation 11 of the CIL Regulations 2019 removes Regulation 123 
of the CIL Regulations 2010 so there is no limit to the number of 
planning obligations that can be used to fund a single infrastructure 
project. 

2.3 Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations 2010 required charging 
authorities to set out a list (referred to as a ‘regulation 123 list’) of 
those projects or types of infrastructure that it intends to fund, or may 
fund, through CIL. This list was based on the infrastructure 
requirements identified in the Borough Council’s Infrastructure 
Assessment Report (2014) and Infrastructure Delivery Plan (2014) 
which form part of the evidence base for the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029 (adopted October 2015). Items on the ‘regulation 



123 list’ could not be funded using Section 106 agreements. This, 
therefore, restricted the number of Section 106 agreements which a 
charging authority could enter into to fund particular infrastructure 
and encouraged the use of CIL.

2.4 By no later than 31 December 2020, the CIL Regulations 2019 
require the Borough Council to replace the ‘regulation 123 list’ with 
the ‘infrastructure list’ and include this list within the published IFS. In 
accordance with the Regulations, the infrastructure list is included in 
Section 6 of the IFS.

2.5 As members may recall, the Borough Council’s ‘Regulation 123 list’ 
came into effect on 1 February 2016, following a public examination 
in 2015. The ‘regulation 123 List’ is considered still to be relevant as 
it is based on the evidence used to support the Adopted Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Council’s CIL Charging 
Schedule. The evidence will be refreshed for the forthcoming Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2036 and a revised CIL Charging Schedule will 
be published. Consequently, the Council’s regulation 123 List will be 
carried forward as the Council’s Infrastructure List until such time it is 
reviewed as part of the forthcoming review of CIL or any alternative 
arrangements introduced by the Government’s Planning for the 
Future White Paper (published August 2020).

Reporting developer contributions

2.6 To assist in producing the IFS the Government require that local 
authorities collect and monitor data on developer contributions in line 
with the Government’s data format. Using this format, detailed 
information on the collection and spending of developer contributions 
is made available to the public on the Council’s website in an ‘open 
data format’, in the form of three spreadsheet files (which cover 
details of the developer agreement, the contribution, and the 
transaction).

2.7 These spreadsheets will be published on the Council’s website 
alongside this IFS.

Fees for monitoring planning obligations

2.8 This report also seeks Board approval for the introduction of a 
monitoring fee for Section 106 agreements from 1 April 2021.

2.9 Members may be aware that since the adoption of CIL in 2015, in 
accordance with the regulations, the Borough Council has retained 
5% of CIL receipts for administration of the Levy. This funds officer 
time and software requirements and ensures efficient collection, 
monitoring and spending of the Levy. No such fee has been 
introduced for Section 106 agreements.



2.10 Historically, some Local Planning Authorities have charged 
monitoring fees for planning obligations due to the administrative 
burden the activity can generate. Gosport Borough Council has not 
previously charged monitoring fees due to the lack of explicit law or 
national policy allowing this. Following a legal challenge in February 
2015 (Oxfordshire County Council v Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government and Others2) the High Court 
held that administration and monitoring fees imposed in relation to 
Section 106 agreements were not necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms and thus failed the tests 
set out in the law. As a result, many local authorities with a 
monitoring fee ceased charging.

2.11 Regulation 11 of the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) 
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 amends Regulation 122 of the 
CIL Regulations 2010 to ensure charging authorities can include a 
provision allowing for monitoring fees in Section 106 agreements.

2.12 This means that the Borough Council, subject to certain conditions, 
can include a monitoring fee in Section 106 agreements. The 
monitoring fee must fairly and reasonably relate in scale and kind to 
the development and must not exceed the authority’s estimate of its 
cost of monitoring the development over the lifetime of the planning 
obligations which relate to that development.

2.13 The change in Regulations provides an opportunity for the Borough 
Council to introduce a planning obligations monitoring fee which can 
be used to cover the costs of ongoing monitoring and the computer 
software required to streamline this process. This will ensure 
appropriate resources are in place to proactively monitor agreements 
and ensure compliance with the obligations and payment of all 
financial contributions at the appropriate time.

2.14 Details regarding the proposed introduction of a monitoring fee are 
set out in Section 4 of the IFS. It is proposed to introduce a 5% fee 
on Section 106 agreements which include provisions for financial 
developer contributions and this is in accordance with the rate the 
Government has set out for the administration of CIL. These 
arrangements and how the monitoring fee is used will be kept under 
review.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 The IFS has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) 
Regulations 2019 and national planning policy and guidance.

2 High Court Decision available from: 
https://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2015/186.html 

https://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2015/186.html


3.2 There are risks associated with not publishing an IFS. In particular, 
the Council would not fulfil its duties under the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). Up-to-date 
monitoring documents provide improved information, transparency, 
and certainty for all interested parties and assists the Council in 
ensuring it collects and spends contributions wisely.

4 Conclusion

4.1 The Infrastructure Funding Statement is a new Government 
requirement with the aim of increasing transparency in the reporting 
of how local authorities collect and spend developer contributions. 
Local authorities are required to publish the IFS by 31 December 
2020. This report, therefore, seeks Board approval for publication of 
the Borough Council’s Infrastructure Funding Statement and the 
infrastructure list within Section 6 of the IFS.

4.2 Board approval is also sought for the introduction of a new monitoring 
fee for Section 106 agreements as allowed by the CIL Regulations 
2019. The introduction of this fee is set out in Section 4 of the IFS. 

Financial Services comments: Comment contained within the Report

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report

Climate Change: The IFS will assist the strategic priorities of 
the Council. Developer contributions can 
be directed towards Climate Change 
projects and mitigation schemes should 
the Borough Council make this decision 
and providing such decisions are in 
accordance with the wording of the specific 
legal agreement.

Crime and Disorder: No impact

Equality and Diversity: No impact

Corporate Plan: The IFS will assist the strategic priorities of 
the Council Plan by providing funding 
which can finance infrastructure projects 
that can raise aspirations, enhance the 
environment, develop the economy, 
empower residents and assist with 
delivering effective services.

Risk Assessment: See Section 3



Background papers: The Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment) (England) (No. 2) 
Regulations 2019
Available from: 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/11
03/contents/made 

Appendices/Enclosures:
Appendix ‘A’ Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020

Report author/ Lead Officer: Aaron Penney, Planning Policy Officer

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/contents/made


This page is intentionally left blank



Infrastructure Funding 
Statement 2020 
including the Infrastructure Delivery Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Policy 

Gosport Borough Council 

November 2020 



Contents 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

Role and structure of the Infrastructure Funding Statement ....................................... 1 

What is Infrastructure? ............................................................................................... 2 

National Context ........................................................................................................ 2 

Sub-regional Context ................................................................................................. 3 

Local Planning Policy ................................................................................................. 4 

2. Gosport’s Infrastructure Programme ........................................................................................... 6 

Infrastructure .............................................................................................................. 6 

Funding the cost of Infrastructure ............................................................................... 7 

3. Community Infrastructure Levy: 2019/20 ................................................................................. 9 

What is the Community Infrastructure Levy? .............................................................. 9 

The CIL Report 2019/20 ........................................................................................... 10 

The CIL Neighbourhood Fund .................................................................................. 18 

CIL Neighbourhood Fund: Funds available at 1 September 2020 ............................ 20 

The CIL Outlook: potential future income ................................................................. 21 

4. Planning Obligations: 2019/20 ...................................................................................................... 23 

What are Planning Obligations? ............................................................................... 23 

The Section 106 Report 2019/20 ............................................................................. 25 

Section 106 - secured and received 2019/20 ........................................................... 28 

Section 106 - allocated and spent ............................................................................ 32 

Section 106 monitoring fees ..................................................................................... 35 

The S106 Outlook .................................................................................................... 39 

Other Planning Obligations ...................................................................................... 41 

Employment and Training Measures ........................................................................ 41 

Section 278 agreements .......................................................................................... 43 

Solent Recreation Mitigation Partnership (SRMP) .................................................... 44 

5. Infrastructure delivered to date.................................................................................................... 45 

Review of infrastructure delivery .............................................................................. 45 

6. The infrastructure list .........................................................................................................................48 

Role of the infrastructure list .................................................................................... 48 

The infrastructure list ............................................................................................... 49 

Money available (not yet allocated for any project)................................................... 50 

7. Monitoring and further information ............................................................................................. 53 

Publishing developer contributions data ................................................................... 53 

Monitoring and review .............................................................................................. 53 

Appendix 1 – Mechanisms to secure infrastructure ......................................................................... 54 

Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) ................................................................................. 60 



i 
 

Abbreviations 

AMR Authority Monitoring Report 

AVCP Alver Valley Country Park 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CIL Community Infrastructure Levy 

GBC Gosport Borough Council 

GVA Gosport Voluntary Action 

GBLP or GBLP 2011-2029 Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 

(Adopted October 2015) 

GBLP2036 The forthcoming Gosport Borough Local 

Plan 2036 

ESP Employment and Skills Plan 

HCC Hampshire County Council 

IDP Infrastructure Delivery Plan 

IFS Infrastructure Funding Statement 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government 

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 

PfSH Partnership for South Hampshire 

PPG Planning Practice Guidance 



IFS 2020 

ii 
 

Summary 

From 31 December 2020 the Government requires local authorities to publish an 

Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS). This IFS sets out how developer contributions have 

been and will be used to provide infrastructure within Gosport Borough. This funding has 

been secured through planning permissions using the policies of the adopted Gosport 

Borough Local Plan (2011-2029) and the linked Community Infrastructure Levy Charging 

Schedule (2016). 

It is necessary to ensure that the appropriate level and type of infrastructure is provided to 

support the anticipated level of development within Gosport Borough to facilitate new homes, 

additional jobs and the regeneration of brownfield sites. The Borough Council can use two 

main planning mechanisms to secure the money required to fund infrastructure; the 

Community Infrastructure Levy, a charge levied on new development in the Borough, and 

Planning Obligations, which are legally enforceable obligations normally secured using 

Section 106 agreements.  

In this monitoring period, 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, the Borough Council has received 

£471,384.41 from CIL, with a cumulative total since February 2016 of £1,031,764.78. During 

the monitoring period, £758,147.03 of CIL funds have been allocated to projects and 

£40,541.19 has been spent. As at 1 April 2020 there is currently a total of £180,412 of 

Strategic CIL which is available to spend. 

The Borough Council has also secured £181,842 from S106 agreements, £162,000 of which 

is to be paid directly by the developer, or transferred by the Borough Council to HCC. A total 

of £8,000 has been received, of which £6,000 is to be transferred to HCC. As at 1 April 2020 

there is currently a total of £570,452 available for open space and biodiversity projects and 

£632,616 available for transport infrastructure. The Borough Council has also allocated but 

not yet spent £424,116 of S106 funds to projects and during the monitoring year has spent 

£221,082. Other obligations have also been secured as explained in this report. 

In accordance with the latest Government regulations this document also includes the 

‘Infrastructure List’ which replaces the ‘CIL 123 List’. This is contained in Section 6 and 

reports on the infrastructure projects or types of infrastructure that the Borough Council 

intends to fund either wholly or partly using the CIL and other Planning Obligations. 

Appendix 2 of this IFS contains the Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which sets 

out the latest identified infrastructure schemes, the lead providers, costings and timescales.



IFS 2020 

1 

 

1. Introduction 

Role and structure of the Infrastructure Funding Statement 

1.1 This Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) sets out how developer contributions have 

been and will be used to provide infrastructure within Gosport Borough. The report sets out 

the following information: 

 Section 1 (this section) explains the purpose and structure of this report, why the 

Council produces the IFS and outlines the planning policy context within Gosport 

Borough. 

 Section 2 sets out ‘Gosport’s Infrastructure Programme’, and explains why the 

Council needs to secure infrastructure to support new development and provides an 

overview of the potential funding sources. 

 Section 3 details how the Council uses the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

to secure infrastructure and provides a full report for the monitoring period. 

 Section 4 details how the Council uses various Planning Obligations (particularly 

Section 106 agreements) to secure infrastructure and provides a full report for the 

monitoring period. 

 Section 5 shows the infrastructure secured or implemented over the past 12 

months and since the start of the current Local Plan period in 2011. 

 Section 6 reports on the infrastructure projects or types of infrastructure that the 

Borough Council intends to fund either wholly or partly using the Community 

Infrastructure Levy and other Planning Obligations. This is called the ‘infrastructure 

list’ and replaces the Regulation 123 list. 

 Section 7 concludes the report and provides signposts to other key documents and 

sources of information. 

 Appendix 1 sets out the most appropriate mechanisms for securing each key type of 

infrastructure together with the other key Local Plan policy requirements that are not 

forms of infrastructure (such as training initiatives). 

 Appendix 2 contains the Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which sets 

out the latest identified infrastructure schemes, the lead providers, costings and 

timescales. 

1.2 The IFS has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of The Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and national planning policy and 

guidance. The amendment requiring the Council to publish this IFS is The Community 

Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019. The monitoring period 

for this first IFS is 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 unless specifically stated. The IFS is 

published on the Council’s website: www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/contents/made
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure


IFS 2020 

2 

 

Figure 1.1: What is Infrastructure? 

What is Infrastructure? 

‘Infrastructure shapes our lives. Transport links get us where we need to be, energy systems 

power our homes and businesses, and digital networks allow us to communicate. 

Infrastructure supplies us with clean water, takes away our waste and helps to protect us 

from the elements. It is vital to our quality of life and integral to the creation of vibrant new 

places to live and work’ 

National Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2016-2021 

In Gosport Borough the Council ensures the appropriate level and type of infrastructure is 

provided to support the anticipated level of development set out in the Gosport Borough 

Local Plan (2011-2029). This infrastructure includes but is not limited to the following: 

 Transport including roads, public transport infrastructure (bus and ferry), and 

measures to encourage walking and cycling; 

 education and training facilities including nurseries, primary schools, secondary 

schools and post 16 education; 

 social facilities including community facilities, sports centres, sports pitches, parks 

and play space; 

 public services including libraries and cemeteries; 

 emergency services including fire and rescue, ambulance and police; 

 utilities including gas, electricity, water supply, wastewater, telecommunications and 

energy generation; 

 green infrastructure; and 

 flood risk management. 

Extract from the Adopted Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 

National Context 

Reporting on developer contributions 

1.3 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 came 

into force on 1 September 2019 and amended the Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2010. The new regulations make several changes to the way that CIL operates, 

these changes include: 

 removing the restriction on pooling more than five planning obligations towards a 

single piece of infrastructure; and 

 deleting the ‘Regulation 123 List’ and replacing it with the ‘Infrastructure List’ within 

the Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS); and 

 allowing authorities to choose to pool funding from different routes to fund the same 

infrastructure provided that authorities set out in their infrastructure funding 

statements which infrastructure they expect to fund through the levy and through 

planning obligations. 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/made


IFS 2020 

3 

 

1.4 The IFS document summarises the developer contributions received and how they have 

been, and will be, spent.  In addition, the Regulations and the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) require all local planning authorities to publish their developer 

contributions data regularly and in an agreed format. 

1.5 The Council’s developer contributions data will be published annually on the Council’s 

website by the 31 December. The new data format and IFS will provide better insights into 

how developer contributions are supporting new development and local infrastructure.   

Sub-regional Context 

Partnership for South Hampshire 

1.6 Local authorities are under a Duty to Co-operate with each other on strategic matters such 

as housing, economic growth, transport and infrastructure provision which have cross-

boundary implications. In South Hampshire, there is a long history of cross-boundary 

working between local authorities and their strategic partners. The Borough Council has 

been a founding member of the Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH). The PfSH includes 

twelve local authorities and closely collaborates with the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership 

(LEP), the Environment Agency, Natural England and Homes England. 

1.7 In June 2016, the South Hampshire Spatial Position Statement was published. It sets out 

development targets for each Council to 2034. In relation to infrastructure, the Spatial 

Position Statement specifically considers how sustainable transport can encourage a modal 

shift in the sub-region and considers the aggregate impact of new development on utilities 

infrastructure. Further work is currently being undertaken to inform a new spatial strategy to 

cover the period to 2036. Further information about PfSH including the Spatial Position 

Statement and underlying evidence base can be found online: www.push.gov.uk  

Solent Local Enterprise Partnership 

1.8 The Solent Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) was established in 2010 after the 

Government offered local areas the opportunity to have more control over their future 

economic development. The Solent LEP is a business-led collaboration between private, 

public and education sectors and has nine local authority members, including Gosport 

Borough Council. Since 2010, the Solent LEP has secured £182.9m through the Solent 

Growth Deal to help create jobs, support businesses and encourage growth. 

1.9 The LEPs economic strategy – Solent 2050 – sets out a vision for the Solent economy in 

2050 to be the global leader in maritime and climate change adaption, with towns and cities 

that are fantastic places to live, trade and with opportunities for all our communities to 

flourish. The provision of infrastructure is one of the LEP’s strategic priorities.  

http://www.push.gov.uk/


IFS 2020 

4 

 

Gosport Infrastructure Investment Plan 

1.10 The Gosport Infrastructure Investment Plan (GIIP) was prepared on behalf of the Solent LEP 

and published in 2019. The overarching purpose of the GIIP was to identify future 

infrastructure needs of Gosport Borough across a range of ‘economic infrastructure’ themes 

to support the work of the Gosport Task Force which is considering the potential growth 

opportunities that may be realisable as a result of the disposal of various public sector sites 

in the Borough.  

1.11 The GIIP provides an initial framework for taking forward a future economic vision for 

Gosport and highlights key areas where there is scope for targeted public sector action and 

investment. The Final Report can be viewed online:   

https://solentlep.org.uk/media/2543/gosport-infrastructure-investment-plan-feb-2019.pdf   

Local Planning Policy 

The Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and supporting evidence 

1.12 The Gosport Borough Local Plan (2011-2029) was adopted by the Council in October 2015 

and sets out the planning strategy for the Borough for the period 2011 to 2029. It identifies 

key proposals, allocates land for development and sets out detailed policies which the 

Borough Council uses to determine planning applications. 

1.13 The Gosport Borough Local Plan sets out a series of policies and proposals relating to new 

development. It identifies key requirements including the provision of necessary 

infrastructure to support the proposed development. The most appropriate mechanism for 

securing each key type of infrastructure is outlined in Appendix 1 together with the other key 

Local Plan policy requirements that are not forms of infrastructure (such as training 

initiatives). 

1.14 The Local Plan is supported by an evidence base which includes: 

 Infrastructure Assessment Report (IAR) which provides an assessment of the current 

infrastructure in the Borough and identifies future infrastructure requirements where it is 

known because of the proposed growth over the plan period to 2029. Available in the 

GBLP 2011-2029 evidence base online: www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029  

 Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP). The Council has published the Infrastructure 

Delivery Plan (IDP) since 2014. The document sets out the latest identified infrastructure 

scheme details, lead providers, costings, and timescales (where these are known). The 

IDP linked to the Infrastructure Assessment Report 2014 and was prepared as evidence 

to support the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 

The IDP is a ‘living document’ and is updated regularly as new information about the 

progress of identified schemes as well as new infrastructure proposals becomes 

available. The IDP is now incorporated into this Infrastructure Funding Statement 

(IFS) and can be seen in Appendix 2 of this document. Previous IDPs can be found 

online: www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure 

 Planning Obligations and Developer Contributions Strategy. The Planning 

Obligations and Developer Contributions Strategy was published by the Council in 2015 

https://solentlep.org.uk/media/2543/gosport-infrastructure-investment-plan-feb-2019.pdf
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure


IFS 2020 

5 

 

and sets out the Borough Council’s approach for using planning obligations as required 

by the CIL Regulations. It also considers how planning conditions and other agreements 

related to planning interact with planning obligations and CIL and the overall viability of 

development. Elements of this strategy have been incorporated into the IFS in Appendix 

1. 

The principal purpose of the strategy is to provide transparency on what the Council, as the 

local planning authority, intends to fund in whole or part through the Community 

Infrastructure Levy and those matters where planning obligations or other mechanisms may 

be sought. The strategy is available online at www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure   

The Gosport Borough Local Plan 2036 

1.15 The Council is currently reviewing the adopted GBLP. The revised Local Plan will have 

regard to changes in national planning policy, the Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) 

Spatial Position Statement (published 2016) and the revised position statement which is 

currently being prepared. The GBLP 2036 is currently at the evidence gathering stage, the 

latest information about the GBLP 2036 is available at: www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036 

1.16 As part of the Local Plan review, the Council will assess the current infrastructure in the 

Borough, and the future infrastructure requirements as a result of proposed growth over the 

period to 2036. The proposed level of growth over the plan period and the currently known 

on-site and other adjacent site specific infrastructure requirements for the regeneration areas 

and other development sites identified in the Local Plan will be set out in an updated 

Infrastructure Assessment Report.  

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036


IFS 2020 

6 

 

2. Gosport’s Infrastructure Programme 

Infrastructure 

2.1 Delivering infrastructure to support development is key to implementing the vision and 

objectives of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (GBLP). The GBLP sets out the 

level of development to be accommodated in the Borough over the period to 2029 and 

identifies broad regeneration areas and specific development sites. 

2.2 As summarised in Section 1, an assessment of the infrastructure required to support this 

development is contained in the Infrastructure Assessment Report (IAR) (2014).  

2.3 Policy LP3 of the GBLP relates specifically to the delivery of infrastructure and aims to 

ensure sufficient levels of infrastructure is associated with new development. There are a 

number of other Local Plan policies which relate to specific types of infrastructure and these 

are summarised in Appendix 1. 

Planned Growth to 2029 

2.4 The planned growth for the remainder of the plan period to 2029, including housing, 

commercial and employment related development is set out in the Council’s Authority 

Monitoring Report at www.gosport.gov.uk/amr  

2.5 Table 2.1 summarises the level of expected growth in new houses over the remainder of the 

Local Plan period, which ends in 2029. 

 

Table 2.1: Planned growth in new houses to 2029 

Planned growth in new houses to 2029 

Source of growth Dwellings 

Houses already completed since the start of the plan period in 2011 

to 31st March 2020 
1,166 

Allocations in the GBLP that have not yet been permitted and/or 

built 
789 

Net dwellings with planning permission that have not yet been built 868 

Other deliverable sites – unallocated or without planning 

permission 
380 

Anticipated windfall development 266 

Total number of new houses planned to be built by 2029 2,303 

Total including new houses already built since 2011 3,469 

  

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/amr


IFS 2020 

7 

 

Funding the cost of Infrastructure 

2.6 Infrastructure (as identified in Figure 1.1) is funded in several different ways and it is 

common for several funding sources to be combined to pay for a single piece of 

infrastructure. The funding required for infrastructure usually needs to cover the costs for 

construction, operation and maintenance, with significant upfront capital investment needed 

to get projects underway. 

2.7 Infrastructure requirements can be costly, and the Council itself is only one of many 

infrastructure providers operating within the Borough. 

2.8 Potential funding sources which can be used to secure key types of infrastructure are 

summarised in Table 2.2. A significant amount of infrastructure is provided by the 

infrastructure providers’ capital programmes which they secure from a variety of sources 

such as customer bills and borrowing. This IFS concentrates on the last source of funding in 

Table 2.2, i.e. those secured through the planning system, which in many cases is used in 

conjunction with other sources. 

Table 2.2: Potential funding sources to secure infrastructure 

Sources Comment 

Infrastructure providers own 

capital investment programmes 

 Statutory undertakers (such 

as Southern Water and 

Portsmouth Water) 

 Private investment 

 

Private sector organisations will have their capital 

investment programmes and are responsible for large 

areas of infrastructure. For example, water companies 

will use profits from bills to invest in new infrastructure. 

Central Government 

 Housing Infrastructure Fund 

 New Homes Bonus 

 Local Growth Deal via the 

Solent Local Enterprise 

Partnership 

 

Investment can be distributed by Central Government 

using a variety of mechanisms. For example, the 

Solent LEP may distribute funds awarded in a ‘Local 

Growth Deal’. Local planning authorities can bid for 

funds from the Housing Infrastructure Fund. 

Local Authority- Gosport 

Borough Council and Hampshire 

County Council 

 Council Tax  

 Business Rates 

 Prudential borrowing 

 

Local authorities will also have capital investment 

programmes. The Council receives additional Council 

Tax and/or Business Rates including from new 

development. Along with prudential borrowing, this 

money can be used for capital investment and 

allocated in the Council’s budget. 

Funding from development 

secured using the planning 

system 

 S106 and S278 agreements 

 CIL income 

 

Planning mechanisms available to local planning 

authorities that can be used to secure funds for 

infrastructure. The Council’s use of these mechanisms 

is detailed in Section 3 and 4 of this report. 



IFS 2020 

8 

 

How can planning fund infrastructure? 

2.9 New development places an additional burden on existing infrastructure in an area. It is, 

therefore, appropriate for the developer to contribute towards new infrastructure in order to 

meet the demands of their new development.  

2.10 Several planning tools can be used to secure financial and non-financial contributions, or 

other works, to provide infrastructure to support development and mitigate the impacts. 

These planning tools are collectively called ‘developer contributions’ and include the 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and planning obligations (such as Section 106 and 

Section 278 agreements). Figure 2.1 shows the tools that can be used by the Borough 

Council’s Planning and Regeneration service to fund infrastructure. 

Figure 2.1: Mitigating development impact with developer contributions 

 

Mitigating development impact with developer contributions 

Developer contributions are designed to address individual or cumulative impacts of 
development. These developer contribution tools cannot be used to remedy existing 

deficiencies or demands from population growth driven by other factors such as birth rates - 
they can only be used to deal with the impact of development. 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 

(CIL) 

CIL is a tool to deal 
with the cumulative 

impacts of 
development on 

infrastructure. CIL is 
specifically 

designed to enable 
the pooling of 

contributions from 
development. 80% 

of CIL funds are 
spent on Strategic 
projects, 15% of 
Neighbourhood 

projects and 5% on 
administration of the 

Levy. 

Section 106 
agreements 

(S106) 

S106 agreements 
are negotiated 
between the 

Council and the 
developer to 

mitigate the impact 
of a development or 
to secure local plan 
policy requirements. 
S106 is designed to 
mitigate the specific 

impacts of an 
individual 

development. 

Section 278 
agreements 

(S278) 

S278 can be used 
to allow developers 
to enter into a legal 
agreement with the 
highway authority 

(Hampshire County 
Council) to make 

permanent 
alterations or 

improvements to a 
public highway, as 
part of a planning 

approval. 

Other mechanisms 
secured through 

Planning 

e.g. SRMP payment 
is required in 

accordance with the 
Habitats 

Regulations and to 
meet the 

requirements of 
Policy LP42 in the 
GBLP in order to 

demonstrate 
appropriate 

mitigation and that a 
proposal will not 

cause significant 'in 
combination effects' 

on internationally 
important habitats in 

terms of 
recreational 
disturbance. 



IFS 2020 

9 

 

3. Community Infrastructure Levy: 2019/20 

What is the Community Infrastructure Levy? 

3.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge on development which is set by 

Gosport Borough Council to help fund the important infrastructure needed to support new 

development in the Borough. The Council has been collecting CIL since 1st February 2016. 

3.2 The amount of CIL payable depends on the size of the development. The amount charged 

by the Council strikes an appropriate balance between the additional investment required to 

support development and the potential effect on the viability of developments. The CIL rate 

has been set following an independent examination by a Government Inspector in 2015. The 

charges levied for new development in Gosport can be viewed in the Gosport Charging 

Schedule: www.gosport.gov.uk/cil  

3.3 The money collected is used to pay for infrastructure such as transport, leisure and open 

spaces, and schools. The types of projects that the Borough Council spends CIL on are set 

out in the ‘Infrastructure List’ in Section 6 of this report which replaces the Regulation 123 list 

previously published by the Council. Further information relating to how CIL is collected and 

spent in the Borough is available in the Guide to the Community Infrastructure Levy 

(December 2015), available online: www.gosport.gov.uk/cil  

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil


IFS 2020 

10 

 

The CIL Report 2019/20 

3.4 To comply with the Regulations1 on the reporting of the CIL, ‘The CIL Report’ provides a 

breakdown for the monitoring period with a description describing the matter being reported 

alongside the value (in £). The report details the money collected and how it is spent. 

CIL receipts 

3.5 The total amount of CIL receipts for the reported year (2019/20) is shown in Table 3.1. The 

table also includes previously reported amounts. When a CIL payment has been received by 

the Council, the Council has taken ‘receipt’ of the money. In 2019/20, a total of £471,384.41 

of CIL was received. 

Table 3.1: Total CIL received each year (at 1 April 2020) 

Total CIL received (CIL receipts) each year (since CIL adoption in 2015) 

Year (1 

April to 

31 

March) 

Strategic CIL fund 

(80%) 

CIL 

Neighbourhood 

Fund (15%) 

*CIL 

administration 

(5%) 

Total CIL received 

2015/16* £0 £0 £0 £0 

2016/17 £16,856.00 £3,160.50 £1,053.50 £21,070.00 

2017/18 £68,043.22 £12,758.11 £4,252.70 £85,054.03 

2018/19 £363,405.07 £68,138.45 £22,712.82 £454,256.34 

2019/20 £377,107.53 £70,707.66 £23,569.22 £471,384.41 

Total £825,411.82 £154,764.72 £51,588.24 £1,031,764.78 

*Please note: 2015/16 time period is 1 February 2015 to 31 March 2016. CIL administration: In accordance with the 
Regulations, the adopted CIL Spending Protocol allows for the provision of 5% of CIL receipts (collected since the 
adoption of CIL in 2016) to be spent on administration of the Levy.  

  

                                                
1
 The CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/schedule/2/made


IFS 2020 

11 

 

Annual summary 

Figure 3.1: Total spent and collected 1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020 

Total CIL spent and collected between 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020 

The total income from CIL and the total CIL expenditure between the 1 April 2019 and 31 March 

2020 are: 

Total CIL income received (2019/20): £ 471,384.41 

Total CIL allocated to project in 2019/20 but not yet 

spent (at 31 March 2020): 

Strategic CIL: £ 622,500 

Neighbourhood CIL: £ 130,119 

Administration: £ 10,593 

Total: £ 763,212 

Total CIL expenditure (2019/20): 

Strategic CIL: £ 27,565 

Neighbourhood CIL: £ 0 

Administration: £ 12,977 

Total: £ 40,542 



IFS 2020 

12 

 

Figure 3.2: CIL funds in the account (31 March 2020) 

CIL funds in the account (available to spend) 

On the 31 March 2020, the following CIL was available to the Council and had not been allocated at 

that time. In accordance with the Regulations the CIL funds are split: 

 

80% £ 180,412 for the Strategic CIL fund 

Available to the Council in the Capital Budget 

setting process. It is imperative that the 

Strategic CIL fund is used for specific 

infrastructure projects and types of 

infrastructure set out in the infrastructure list 

(formerly Regulation 123 list). 

 
15% £ 24,765 for the CIL Neighbourhood Fund 

Allocated through the CIL Neighbourhood 

Fund in association with Gosport Voluntary 

Action. Provides grants of between £1,500 

and £50,000 for infrastructure-related 

projects. 

 

5% £ 0 for CIL administration 

To be used for the Council to administer the 

collection and distribution of CIL including the 

Neighbourhood Portion. It will also be used to 

partly fund future reviews of CIL. 

Total CIL funds = £ 205,177 

  



IFS 2020 

13 

 

3.6 Whilst the monitoring period required in the Regulations is 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020 it is 

also useful to include an additional table which sets out the unallocated funds as at 1 

September 2020.  These figures are used to determine the amount distributed as part of the 

CIL Neighbourhood Fund and provide an up-to-date figure for the Strategic CIL Fund which 

feeds into the Capital Programme. 

Table 3.2: Available CIL for distribution at 1 September 2020 

  

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Total money available (not allocated for any project) 

at 1 September 2020 

Funding source Amount at 1 September 2020 

(£) 

What can the money be used for? 

Strategic CIL (80%) 

 

£ 147,594 Available to the Council in the 

Capital Budget setting process. It is 

imperative that the Strategic CIL 

fund is used for specific 

infrastructure projects and types of 

infrastructure set out in the 

infrastructure list. 

CIL Neighbourhood 

Fund (15%) 

 

£ 27,674 Allocated through the CIL 

Neighbourhood Fund in associated 

with Gosport Voluntary Action. 

Provides grants of between £1,500 

and £50,000 for infrastructure-

related projects. The maximum for 

2020/21 is £10,000. 

Administrative CIL 

(5%) 

 

£ 9,224 To be used for the Council to 

administer the collection and 

distribution of CIL including the 

Neighbourhood Portion. It will also 

be used to partly fund future 

reviews of CIL. 

Total £184,492  



IFS 2020 

14 

 

CIL to be received 

3.7 The total value of CIL set out in all demand notices issued in the reported year (2019/20) is 

shown in Table 3.3. A CIL demand notice is served by the Council on each person liable to 

pay an amount of CIL in respect of a development, setting out the payment due dates. Just 

because a demand notice has been set out by the Council does not mean the money has 

been received or is a certainty as the CIL charge only becomes due from the date the 

development is commenced. 

Table 3.3: Total amount of CIL to be received as set out in demand notices (at 1 April 2020) 

Total amount of CIL to be received as set out in demand notices (at 1 April 2020) 

Year 
Strategic CIL fund 

(80%) 

CIL 

Neighbourhood 

Fund (15%) 

*CIL 

administration 

(5%) 

Total CIL to be 

received 

At 1 
April 
2020 

£190,346.84 £35,690.03 £11,896.68 £237,934 

*Please note: CIL administration, in accordance with the Regulations, the adopted CIL Spending Protocol allows for the 
provision of 5% of CIL receipts (collected since the adoption of CIL in 2016) to be spent on administration of the Levy. 

CIL funds allocated but not yet spent 

3.8 The total amount of CIL receipts, whenever collected, which were allocated but not spent 

during the reported year (2019/20) are shown in Table 3.4. This is the CIL the Council has 

taken receipt of that has been allocated to a specific project but has not yet been spent. 

Table 3.4: Total CIL funds allocated but not yet spent (at 1 April 2020) 

Total CIL funds allocated but not yet spent (at 1 April 2020) 

Year 
Strategic CIL fund 

(80%) 

CIL 

Neighbourhood 

Fund (15%) 

*CIL 

administration 

(5%) 

Total CIL 

committed 

At 1 April 
2020 

£622,500 £130,119 £10,593 £763,212 

*Please note: CIL administration, in accordance with the Regulations, the adopted CIL Spending Protocol allows for the 
provision of 5% of CIL receipts (collected since the adoption of CIL in 2016) to be spent on administration of the Levy. 

  



IFS 2020 

15 

 

CIL funds spent 

3.9 The total amount of CIL expenditure for the reported year (2019/20) is shown in Table 3.5. 

The table also includes previously reported expenditure. CIL is spent in accordance with the 

Council’s CIL Protocol which was adopted by the Council in November 2018. 

3.10 As at 1 April 2020, the Council has spent a total of £79,153 of the CIL, £51,134 of which was 

spent in 2019/20. 

Table 3.5: Total CIL expenditure each year (at 1 April 2020) 

Total CIL expenditure each year (since CIL adoption in 2015/16) 

Year (1 

April to 

31 

March) 

Strategic CIL fund 

(80%) 

CIL 

Neighbourhood 

Fund (15%) 

*CIL 

administration 

(5%) 

Total CIL 

expenditure 

2015/16 £0 £0 £0 £0 

2016/17 £0 £0 £1,053.50 £1,053.50 

2017/18 £0 £0 £4,252.70 £4,252.70 

2018/19 £0 £0 £22,712.82 £22,712.82 

2019/20 £27,565 £0 £12,976.69 £40,541.69 

Total £27,565.00 £0.00 £40,995.71 £68,560.71 

*Please note: 2015/16 time period is 1 February 2015 to 31 March 2016. CIL administration: In accordance with the 
Regulations, the adopted CIL Spending Protocol allows for the provision of 5% of CIL receipts (collected since the 
adoption of CIL in 2016) to be spent on administration of the Levy. 

 



IFS 2020 

16 

 

Strategic CIL Committed Projects in 2019/20 

3.11 In 2019/20 the Council has committed spending to the following infrastructure projects. In total, £622,500 has been committed to 

projects, of which £27,564.50 has been spent. Table 3.6 shows how the Strategic CIL has been distributed to projects in 2019/20. 

Table 3.6: Committed Strategic CIL infrastructure spending (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Committed Strategic CIL infrastructure spending 
(1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Project Amount 

committed (£) 

Amount spent 

(£) 

Amount 

allocated but 

not yet spent 

(£) 

Date project 

completed 

Comment 

Tukes Avenue Play Zone £120,000 £0 £120,000 - The provision of 

playground/exercise equipment 

adjacent to the existing facility. 

Approved at Community Board 

11.09.2019. 

Walpole Park Inclusive Play 

Zone 

£135,000 £0 £135,000 - Additional play equipment for 

inclusive play. Approved at 

Community Board 11.09.2019. 

Grange Farm Office 

Refurbishment 

£35,000 £27,565 £7,436 - Refurbishment to ensure 

continued workplace for the 

Countryside Volunteer Group. 

Approved at Community Board 

11.09.2019. 

Stokes Bay – Gym Equipment £22,500 £0 £22,500 - Individual items of gym 

equipment along Stokes Bay 

frontage, to complement the 

existing Golden Mile. 50% 

funded through CIL. 50% 



IFS 2020 

17 

 

funded through S106. Approved 

at Community Board 

11.09.2019. 

Stokes Bay – Sea Defence £200,000 £0 £200,000 - Total cost of £500,000 with 

£200,000 from CIL. 

Nobes Avenue Open Space – 

New Pavilion 

£110,000 £0 £110,000 - To demolish the existing sports 

pavilion and provide a new 

pavilion. Funded £110,000 from 

CIL and £240,000 from S106. 

Approved at Community Board 

11.09.2019. 

Total £622,500.00 £27,565.00 £594,936.00   

 



IFS 2020 

18 

 

The CIL Neighbourhood Fund 

3.12 The neighbourhood portion represents 15% of the total CIL monies in accordance with the provisions of the CIL Regulations. The 

neighbourhood portion from the Community Infrastructure Levy goes towards a ‘CIL Neighbourhood Fund’, which provides grants of 

£1,500 - £50,000 for infrastructure-related projects. Information on how community and voluntary organisations working in Gosport 

Borough can apply for funding from the CIL Neighbourhood Fund can be found on the GVA website: www.gva.org.uk/grants  

3.13 The spending of Neighbourhood CIL in 2019/20 is detailed in Table 3.7. This is spent in accordance with the Council’s agreement with 

Gosport Voluntary Action as set out in the CIL Spending Protocol. All project detailed below were successful in Round 1 of the CIL 

Neighbourhood Fund (2019/20). 

Table 3.7: Committed Neighbourhood CIL infrastructure spending (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) In accordance with the Council’s agreement with GVA (set 
out in the CIL Spending Protocol) 

Committed Neighbourhood CIL infrastructure spending 
1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020 

Infrastructure project Amount 

committed 

(£) 

Amount 

spent (£) 

Amount 

allocated but 

not yet spent 

(£) 

Date 

completed 

Comment 

BrendonCare: Improvements to 

community facility 

£2,792 £0 £2,792 Not yet 

completed 

Part of a major refurbishment to a 

community facility. 

Bridgemary, Rowner Woodcot 

Community Association (BRWCA): 

Major repairs to community hall 

£12,999 £0 £12,999 Not yet 

completed 

n/a 

Cook’s Bethel: Phase 1 improvements 

to community hall in Town Centre 

(improving accessibility and toilet 

provision) 

£21,600 £0 £21,600 Not yet 

completed 

 

Freedom Church/Y Services: 

Elson/Hardway area: Improvements to 

community facility and to set up youth 

£24,789 £0 £24,789 Not yet 

completed 

n/a 

http://www.gva.org.uk/grants


IFS 2020 

19 

 

Committed Neighbourhood CIL infrastructure spending 
1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020 

Infrastructure project Amount 

committed 

(£) 

Amount 

spent (£) 

Amount 

allocated but 

not yet spent 

(£) 

Date 

completed 

Comment 

facility in hall 

Fleetlands Football Club, Bridgemary: 

New changing/community facility 

£27,000 £0 £27,000 Not yet 

completed 

Has also attracted significant 

external funding from Football 

League. Planning application 

received and granted permission 

for this development 

(20/00061/FULL) 

Gosport Cricket Club: Contribution 

towards refurbishments to pavilion at 

Privett Park 

£10,000 £0 £10,000 Not yet 

completed 

N/a 

Helping Angels: Refurbishments at 

Leesland School swimming pool 

£21,939 £0 £21,939 Not yet 

completed 

N/a 

Southern Domestic Abuse Service: 

Improvements to facilities 

£9,000 £0 £9,000 Not yet 

completed 

N/a 

Total £130,119.00 £0.00 £130,119.00   



IFS 2020 

20 

 

CIL Neighbourhood Fund: Funds available at 1 September 2020 

3.14 Table 3.8 below sets out the money available for the CIL Neighbourhood Fund for Round 2 

(2020/21). 

3.15 A total of £27,674 of Neighbourhood CIL is available to spend. Please note: the money 

available on 1 September 2020 is different to that reported for 31 March 2020. The table 

below fulfils the purpose of reporting to GVA the money available for the next round of 

bidding in the CIL Neighbourhood Fund. 

Table 3.8: CIL funds in the account for the CIL Neighbourhood Fund (1 September 2020) 

CIL Neighbourhood Fund at 1 September 2020 

On the 1 September 2020, the following CIL is available to the Council and has not yet been 

allocated. In accordance with the Regulations the CIL funds are split: 

 

80% £ 147,594 for the Strategic CIL fund 

Available to the Council in the Capital Budget 

setting process. It is imperative that the 

Strategic CIL fund is used for specific 

infrastructure projects and types of 

infrastructure set out in the infrastructure list 

(formerly Regulation 123 list). 

 
15% £ 27,674 for the CIL Neighbourhood Fund 

Allocated through the CIL Neighbourhood 

Fund in association with Gosport Voluntary 

Action. Provides grants of between £1,500 

and £50,000 for infrastructure-related 

projects. 

 

5% £ 9,224 for CIL administration 

To be used for the Council to administer the 

collection and distribution of CIL including the 

Neighbourhood Portion. It will also be used to 

partly fund future reviews of CIL. 

Total CIL funds = £ 184,492 

  



IFS 2020 

21 

 

The CIL Outlook: potential future income 

3.16 The Government recommends that authorities report on estimated future income from CIL, 

where they can do so. This gives communities a better understanding of how infrastructure 

may be funded in the future. The variable trend in housing supply makes it difficult to 

accurately estimate future CIL income. However, using broad assumptions it is possible to 

produce an indicative estimate. Please note, this is an estimate and not a guarantee. 

3.17 The Council estimates the expected CIL coming forward by taking the outstanding CIL to be 

received and working out the potential development liable for CIL that may be permitted and 

built in the coming years. This takes into account sites with existing planning permission that 

have yet to pay CIL and future development in the Housing Trajectory set out in the 

appendix of the Authority Monitoring Report; available online: www.gosport.gov.uk/amr  

3.18 The total potential CIL income for the following three years, 2020/21 to 2022/23 are shown in 

Table 3.9. The total potential CIL income for 2020/21 to 2022/23 is £371,086. 

Table 3.9: Potential CIL Receipts for 2020/21 to 2022/23 

CIL to be received as set out in demand notices at 1 
April 2020 

Sites with planning permission at 1 April 2020 with 

outstanding CIL to pay the Council 

£237,934 

Potential future development sites and indicative CIL liability 

Only includes sites that do not have planning permission at 1 April 2020 but are considered likely to 

come forward and be liable for CIL in the period 2020/21 to 2022/23. These are indicative CIL 

figures, final CIL liability will be set out in a CIL Demand Notice. 

Site 
Dwellings Potential CIL 

liability 
Explanation 

Gosport Waterfront and Town 

Centre 
30 £60,000 

Based on 30 dwellings in CIL zone 2 using 

space standard for 2 bed (3 person home) 

in Design SPD (66 sqm). Figure of 

£180,000 halved to account for potential 

affordable housing. 

9 to 11 High Street, Gosport 

(19/00157/FULL) 
11 £29,530 Based on proposal in CIL zone 2 

17A High Street, Gosport 

(20/00051/FULL) 
9 £43,622 Based on proposal in CIL zone 2 

Total indicative CIL (including existing 

demand notices) 
£371,086  

Administration of the Levy 

3.19 In accordance with the Regulations, the adopted CIL Spending Protocol allows for the 

provision of 5% of CIL receipts, collected since the adoption of CIL in 2016, to be spent on 

administration of the levy. 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/amr


IFS 2020 

22 

 

3.20 Table 3.10 sets out how the Council has spent the 5% on CIL administration since 1 

February 2016. It also sets out the estimated costs for the coming year 2020/21. 

Table 3.10: CIL administration expenditure since 1 February 2016 and estimated costs for 2020/21 

CIL administration expenditure 

Item CIL administration (5%) expenditure 

Expenditure - 1 February 2016 to 31 March 2020 

RICS – BICS Annual review and update £5,732 

GVA – CIL Neighbourhood Fund Administration £5,000 

Staff costs – scheme administration and training £2,197 

Licence for software for administration £28,067 

Sub-total £40,996 

Estimated costs – 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

GVA £2,500 

Staff Costs £1,200 

Licence for software for administration £6,700 

Other costs £1,900 

Sub-total £12,300 

Total 

1 February 2016 – 31 March 2021 
£53,296 



IFS 2020 

23 

 

4. Planning Obligations: 2019/20 

What are Planning Obligations? 

4.1 Planning obligations are attached to planning permission to make development acceptable 

which would otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms. Planning obligations must be 

directly related to the development and be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 

the development. 

4.2 The Council uses two types of planning obligations, Section 106 agreements (Section 106 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)) and Section 278 agreements 

(Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended)). A summary of what these 

mechanisms are is set out below. 

Section 106 (s106) agreements 

4.3 Successive Local Plans covering Gosport Borough have identified infrastructure which has 

subsequently been funded by Section 106 agreement developer contributions. Since 1 April 

2011, the start of the current Local Plan period, a significant number of developer 

contributions have been secured using Section 106 agreements and spent on open space 

projects, local transport improvements and affordable housing provision. 

4.4 Following the introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy by the Government in April 

2010 and its adoption in Gosport Borough in 2016, S106 agreements have largely been 

replaced by CIL. At the time, the government found that only 14% of residential planning 

permissions and 7% of those for offices had planning obligations (such as S106 

agreements) attached to them2, meaning many proposals did not provide a financial 

contribution towards infrastructure. CIL was therefore introduced to unlock additional funding 

for infrastructure from a wider range of development. 

4.5 Following the Government’s introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the 

commencement of the Council’s CIL Charging Schedule in February 2016, Section 106 

developer contributions can only be used in more limited circumstances, this includes: 

 prescribing the nature of development (for example, requiring a given portion of the 

housing is affordable); 

 compensating for loss or damage created by a development (for example, the loss of 

open space); 

 mitigating a development’s impact (for example, ensuring there are sufficient school 

places to serve any extra demand generated by new development); and 

 restricting the development or use of land in a specified way. 

4.6 Section 106 agreements are used where necessary to deliver the contributions expected 

from development towards infrastructure and affordable housing. S106 agreements are 

negotiated between the Council and developer to mitigate the impact of a development or to 

secure a local plan policy requirement as part of a development.  

                                                
2
 Explanatory Memorandum to the CIL Regulations 2010: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/made  

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/made


IFS 2020 

24 

 

4.7 The Council’s specific policy requirements are set out in the Gosport Borough Local Plan 

2011-2029 (GBLP). Appendix 1 of this report also sets out the most appropriate mechanism 

for securing each key type of infrastructure together with the other key Local Plan policy 

requirements that are not forms of infrastructure (such as training initiatives). 

Section 278 (s278) agreements 

4.8 Section 278 agreements (S278) under the Highways Act 1980 are legally binding 

agreements between the Local Highway Authority (Hampshire County Council), and the 

developer to ensure the delivery of necessary highway works. 

4.9 Further information regarding S278 agreements can be found on the Hampshire County 

Council website: www.hants.gov.uk/transport/developers/section-278  

Other mechanisms 

4.10 Bird Aware Solent has been set up to implement measures that mitigate the recreational 

disturbance impacts generated by new residential development within the sub-region on 

internationally important habitats. Bird Aware Solent have produced the Solent Recreation 

Mitigation Strategy which sets out how the partnership (including Gosport Borough Council) 

secures contributions to make development acceptable: https://solent.birdaware.org/strategy  

4.11 The Council’s protocol for receiving Bird Aware payments is available on the Council’s 

website: www.gosport.gov.uk/internationalsites   

4.12 Further information relating to how the Council uses planning obligations and other 

mechanisms is available in the Planning Obligations and Developer Contributions Strategy 

(December 2015), which is available online at www.gosport.gov.uk/cil  

http://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/developers/section-278
https://solent.birdaware.org/strategy
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/internationalsites
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil


IFS 2020 

25 

 

The Section 106 Report 2019/20 

4.13 To comply with the Regulations on the reporting of planning obligations, ‘The Section 106 

Report’ provides a detailed breakdown of what has been collected through S106 

agreements, the projects it is has been allocated to, and how it has been spent. The report 

covers both monetary and non-monetary contributions and is in two parts, part 1 details the 

collecting of S106 contributions and part 2 how they are allocated and spent. In each of 

these parts, the headline figures are presented, and then supplementary details provided.  

Latest Section 106 balance 

Table 4.1: S106 funds in the account (31 March 2020) 

S106 funds in the account* 

On the 31 March 2020, the Council had secured and/or collected the following S106 funds which for 

reporting purposes can be split into the following infrastructure types. These pots have been 

secured through the Local Plan policies and the developer contributions have been sub-divided into 

smaller pots based on the wording of each respective S106 agreement. Funds secured from S106 

agreement must be spent in accordance with the legal agreement. Therefore, many of these funds 

must be spent in specific locations or on specific items. 

£282,577 Sports Facilities (pot 13) 

Money from development for sports facilities anywhere in the Borough 

£110,249 Any Open Space or Open Space facilities in the Borough (pot 1) 

Money to be spent anywhere in the Borough with no time limit stipulated in 

agreement. 

£45,062 Open Space at Priddy’s Hard (pot 31) 

Money to be spent with no time restriction on open space in Priddy’s Hard or 

other areas in the Borough provided GBC notifies the owner. 

£31,484 Open Space facility within the vicinity of the development (pot 28) 

Money to be spent within the vicinity of Royal Clarence Yard on open space 

facilities with no time restriction. 

£2,535 Play Facilities (pot 11) 

Money from development at Middlecroft Gospel Hall to be used for the 

refurbishment of the play facility at Forton Recreation ground. 

£13,545 Policy LP2 (pot 9) 

Money to be spent on infrastructure within the Borough with no time 

restriction. Secured using Policy LP2 of the Local Plan. 

 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/schedule/2/made


IFS 2020 

26 

 

£75,000 Biodiversity Mitigation/Contribution (pot 12) 

Contribution from Rowner development for mitigation at Browndown. 

£10,000 Admiralty Fuel Depot Biodiversity Contribution (pot 7) 

Money for sheet pile mitigation barrier as biodiversity mitigation. To be spent 

by 2023. 

subtotal for non-transport related S106 funds = £ 570,452 

£277,780 Transport 

Funds for transport infrastructure to be used in accordance with Section 106 

wording. Large proportion of this money has been set aside by the Borough 

Council as a contribution towards the Transforming Cities Fund project for 

the Gosport Bus Station. 

£194,836 Cycle Improvements at Daedalus 

Funds from the first phase of the Daedalus Park development for cycle 

improvements in the vicinity of Daedalus. 

£150,000 Huhtamaki Cycle Track 

Funds for the Huhtamaki cycle track as approved at Board in November 

2015. 

£10,000 Public Realm Improvements 

Funds from the redevelopment of Mayfield Buildings to be used for 

improvements in Mumby Road. 

Subtotal for transport related S106 funds = £ 632,616 

Total S106 funds = £ 1,203,068 

*Please note: The S106 pots in this table represent the currently available funds from S106 developer 

contributions for open space. All other S106 developer contribution pots for open space are closed and the 

funds contained within them have been spent on open space projects across the Borough in accordance with 

the requirements of the individual S106 agreement. Future S106 open space pots may be created in 

accordance with each agreement when these come forward. 

  



IFS 2020 

27 

 

Annual summary 

Table 4.2: Total funds secured, collected and spent (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Total S106 spent and collected between 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020 

The total funds secured from S106 agreements, income from S106 and the total S106 expenditure 

between the 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 are: 

Secured and/or received 

Total S106 funds secured and received but 

unavailable to spend due to not yet reaching 

trigger point (at 31/3/20): 

£ 6,710 

Total S106 funds secured but not yet received 

(between 1/4/19-31/3/20): 

GBC: £ 19,842 

HCC: £ 156,000 

Total: £ 175,842 

Total S106 income received (between 1/4/19-

31/3/20): 

GBC: £ 2,000 

HCC: £ 6,000 

Total: £ 8,000 

Allocated and/or spent 

Total S106 available to spend and not yet allocated 

(at 31/3/20): 
£ 1,203,068 

Total S106 allocated but not yet spent (at 31/3/20): £ 424,116 

Total S106 spent (between 1/4/19 - 31/3/20): £ 221,082 

 



IFS 2020 

28 

 

Section 106 - secured and received 2019/20 

4.14 As part of the ‘S106 Report’, the Council is required to report what has been secured and received during the monitoring period. Table 

4.3 provides summary details of all monetary S106 obligations secured in the monitoring period and whether payment has been 

received or not. Table 4.4 provides summary details of all non-monetary S106 obligations secured in the monitoring period and if they 

have been received or not. Both tables provide details of the planning application to which the S106 is associated and the specific type 

of infrastructure or project the obligation is for. 

4.15 Where a payment has been secured but not yet received this is usually due to the progress of a development site. When the trigger 

point in the S106 contribution is met the contribution should then be paid to the Council.  

 Summary of S106 contributions secured/received in 2019/20 

 
S106 secured in 

2019/20 
 

S106 received in 
2019/20 

 

Monetary 

 

GBC: £19,842 

HCC: £162,000 

Total: £181,842 

GBC: £2,000 

HCC: £6,000 

Total: £8,000 

Non-
monetary 

 

Nil Nil 

 

Please note, the CIL Regulations (2019) do not require the Council to retrospectively report on S106 obligations secured or 

received before 2019/20. Table 4.3, therefore, does not report on obligations secured or received before 1 April 2019. This 

information is available upon request.  

  



IFS 2020 

29 

 

Table 4.3: Monetary contributions secured/received by S106 agreements in 2019/20 

Monetary contributions from S106 agreements secured/received (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Source Contribution 

Planning 

application 

Address Amount 

secured 

Date 

secured 

Amount 

received 

Date 

received 

Infrastructure type & purpose 

Contributions secured and received by GBC 

10/00351/FULL Former Royal Engineers 

Depot, Weevil Lane, 

Gosport 

£0 10.11.2010 £500 30.04.2019 Contributions secured in 2010 for 

outdoor playing space (£9,558) and 

transport improvements (£22,470). 

Total received to date for transport 

improvements: £11,570. Total received 

for outdoor playing space: £9,558. 

Total outstanding to pay: £10,900. 

£500 06.08.2019 

£500 01.11.2019 

£500 03.02.2020 

17/00599/FULL Priddy’s Hard, Heritage 

Way, Gosport 

£19,842 26.09.2019 - - Contribution to mitigate recreation 

disturbance pressure on internationally 

important habitats within the Solent. To 

be used towards the cost of the 

Council providing suitable alternative 

natural greenspace in the Alver Valley 

Country Park. To be paid prior to 

commencement of development. 

Sub total  £19,842  £2,000   

Contributions secured and received by/transferred to Hampshire County Council 

18/00118/FULL Haslar Marina, Haslar 

Road, Gosport 

£6,000 05.02.2020 £6,000 10.01.2020 Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to 

update existing double yellow lines to 

incorporate a no loading restriction on 

Haslar Road. To be transferred by the 

Council to HCC. 

https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=L8FNN1HO02500
https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/files/00F06CD518365440710AE5036A9F8AC0/pdf/17_00599_FULL--347454.pdf
https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/files/02C2F07227E4A7168B48F53A159C26BF/pdf/18_00118_FULL--371198.pdf


IFS 2020 

30 

 

Monetary contributions from S106 agreements secured/received (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Source Contribution 

Planning 

application 

Address Amount 

secured 

Date 

secured 

Amount 

received 

Date 

received 

Infrastructure type & purpose 

19/00435/FULL St Marys Church Parish 

Centre, Green Road, 

Gosport 

£6,000 04.03.2020 - - Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to 

implement parking restrictions. To be 

transferred by the Council to HCC. 

17/00203/OUT Hoeford Point, Barwell 

Lane, Gosport 

£150,000 12.09.2019 - - Improvement works to junctions on the 

A32 with Wych Lane and Barwell and 

Lederle Lanes and a Travel Plan. To be 

paid by the developer directly to HCC. 

Sub total  £162,000  £6,000   

Total  £181,842  £8,000   

https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/files/A8951B56BCC6EA6F7C254EE32BF89F49/pdf/19_00435_FULL--376603.pdf
https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OPDIMGHOLGK00


IFS 2020 

31 

 

Table 4.4: Non-monetary contributions secured/received by S106 agreements in 2019/20 

Non-monetary contributions from S106 agreements secured/received (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Source Contribution 

Planning 

application 

Address Amount 

secured 

Date 

secured 

Amount 

received 

Date 

received 

Infrastructure type & purpose 

None to report       

  



IFS 2020 

32 

 

Section 106 - allocated and spent 

4.16 As part of the ‘S106 Report’, the Council is required to report what has been allocated and spent during the monitoring period (including 

money transferred to another person/organisation to spend). Table 4.5 provides summary details of all S106 funds which have been 

allocated or spent in the monitoring period, along with the planning application to which the S106 is associated and details of the 

specific infrastructure project the obligation will be or has been used for. 

 Summary of S106 contributions allocated/spent in 2019/20 

 

S106 allocated 
but not yet spent 

in 2019/20  

S106 spent in 
2019/20 

 

Monetary 

 

£ 424,116 £ 221,082 

Non-
monetary 

 

Nil Nil 

 

Please note, funds that have been allocated or spent in this monitoring period may have been secured and/or received in a 

previous year, before the introduction of the CIL Regulations (2019) and publication of this new Infrastructure Funding 

Statement. Information relating to S106 obligations secured/received before 1 April 2019 is available upon request. 

  



IFS 2020 

33 

 

4.17 The total amount of money from S106 agreements which was spent in the monitoring period (including transferring it to 

another organisation to spend) or allocated but not yet spent is shown in Table 4.5. This is also accompanied by summary details 

of the items of infrastructure on which that money was spent and the amount spent on each item. 

4.18 In 2019/20, £645,198 of S106 funds has been allocated to infrastructure projects. £221,082 of this money allocated was spent in 

2019/20. This leaves £424,116 allocated but not yet spent. 

Table 4.5: Monetary S106 contributions allocated/spent in 2019/20 

Monetary S106 contributions – allocated/spent (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Source Contribution 

Project Name Address Amount 

allocated 

Date 

allocated 

Amount 

spent 

Date 

spent 

Amount allocated 

but not yet spent 

Comment 

Alver Valley – 

Western 

Gateway 

Alver Valley, 

Cherque Way, 

Lee-on-the-

Solent 

£221,082 2019/20 £221,082 31.03.2020 £0  

Provide lighting 

to pathways 

within Leisure 

Parks, Gardens 

and Open 

Spaces 

Various in 

Gosport 

Borough 

£161,616 

(this is the 

outstanding 

allocation of 

a larger 

sum) 

2012 

Carried 

forward to 

2019/20 

£0 - £161,616 A number of these projects 

have been carried out 

since 2012.  This figure 

represents the outstanding 

amount as part of an 

ongoing programme. 

Stokes Bay – 

Gym Equipment 

Stokes Bay £22,500 2019/20 £0 - £22,500 Individual items of gym 

equipment along Stokes 

Bay frontage, to 

complement the existing 

Golden Mile. 50% funded 

S106. 50% funded CIL. 

Approved at Community 

Board 11.09.2019. 



IFS 2020 

34 

 

Monetary S106 contributions – allocated/spent (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

Source Contribution 

Project Name Address Amount 

allocated 

Date 

allocated 

Amount 

spent 

Date 

spent 

Amount allocated 

but not yet spent 

Comment 

Nobes Avenue 

Open Space – 

New Pavilion 

Nobes Avenue, 

Gosport 

£240,000 2019/20 £0 - £240,000 To demolish the existing 

sports pavilion and provide 

a new pavilion. Funded 

£240,000 from S106 and 

£110,000 from CIL. 

Approved at Community 

Board 11.09.2019. 

Total  £262,500.00  £221,082.00  £424,116.00  

Repaying money borrowed 

4.19 In 2019/20 there was no money spent on repaying money borrowed. 

Commuted sums 

4.20 In 2019/20 no money was retained at the end of the reported year and allocated for the purposes of longer term maintenance 

(commuted sums). 



IFS 2020 

35 

 

Section 106 monitoring fees 

4.21 From 1st April 2021, Gosport Borough Council will charge a fee for the monitoring, 

reporting and delivery of planning obligations. This section sets out the Borough 

Council’s new monitoring fee and provides the rationale for its introduction. 

4.22 Historically, some Local Planning Authorities have charged monitoring fees for planning 

obligations due to the administrative burden the activity can generate. Gosport Borough 

Council has not previously charged monitoring fees due to the lack of explicit law or national 

policy allowing this. Following a legal challenge in February 2015 (Oxfordshire County 

Council v Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government and Others3) the High 

Court held that administration and monitoring fees imposed in relation to Section 106 

agreements were not necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms and 

thus failed the tests set out in the law. As a result, many local authorities with a monitoring 

fee ceased charging. 

4.23 In 2018/19 the Government acknowledged the administrative burden monitoring Section 106 

agreements can place on local planning authorities. In a ‘technical consultation on draft 

regulations to reform developer contributions’4 the Government proposed to permit 

authorities to seek a proportionate and reasonable monitoring fee towards the monitoring 

and reporting of planning obligations through Section 106 agreements. This was met with 

support by respondents to the consultation and was subsequently introduced as part of The 

Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 which 

became law in September 2019. 

4.24 The change in the CIL Regulations offers the Council the opportunity to introduce a Section 

106 monitoring fee and ensure the appropriate resources are in place to ensure ongoing 

compliance with the Government’s new requirements to publish developer contributions data 

and the Infrastructure Funding Statement.  

                                                
3
 High Court Decision available from: https://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2015/186.html  

4
 Government consultation available from: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/developer-

contributions-reform-technical-consultation  

https://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2015/186.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/developer-contributions-reform-technical-consultation
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/developer-contributions-reform-technical-consultation


IFS 2020 

36 

 

Establishing the monitoring fee 

4.25 To establish the monitoring fee the Council has followed the Government advice set out in 

the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). 

Planning Practice Guidance: How can local authorities fund reporting on planning 
obligations? 

‘Authorities can charge a monitoring fee through section 106 planning obligations, to cover 

the cost of monitoring and reporting on delivery of that section 106 obligation. Monitoring 

fees can be used to monitor and report on any type of planning obligation, for the lifetime of 

that obligation. Monitoring fees should not be sought retrospectively for historic agreements. 

Fees could be a fixed percentage of the total value of the section 106 agreement or 

individual obligation; or could be a fixed monetary amount per agreement obligation (for 

example, for in-kind contributions). Authorities may decide to set fees using other methods. 

However, in all cases, monitoring fees must be proportionate and reasonable and reflect the 

actual cost of monitoring. Authorities could consider setting a cap to ensure that any fees are 

not excessive.’ 

www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations (Paragraph: 036 Reference ID: 23b-036-20190901 Revision date: 01 09 2019) 

4.26 In the Government’s response to the ‘Reforming Developer Contributions’ consultation in 

June 2019, it stated its intention to provide guidance on methods that could be used to 

calculate monitoring costs. No such guidance has been published, nor what ‘fair and 

reasonable’ represents. The Borough Council is therefore required to establish its monitoring 

fee in line with the broad guidance set out in the PPG. 

4.27 Table 4.6 shows a summary of what some local authorities are currently charging. The 

approach varies widely, some authorities use a percentage fee (typically 5%) and others use 

a fixed fee (for example £500 per obligation). It is also worth noting that some authorities do 

not have CIL so use section 106 agreements more regularly. 

Table 4.6: Monitoring fees charged by other local authorities 

Local authority Non-financial obligation Financial obligation 

Portsmouth City 

Council 

£620 £310 for contributions with 

commencement trigger 

£620 for contributions with future 

trigger 

Havant Borough 

Council 

£693 per non-financial head of term 5% of cost per financial head of term. 

Capped at £10,000 

South Downs 

National Park 

£440 per eligible covenant £440 per eligible covenant. 

Exemptions apply 

New Forest 

National Park  

£284 per covenant with percentage 

increase for certain type/size 

thresholds. Capped at £10,000 

£284 per covenant with percentage 

increase for certain type/size 

thresholds. Capped at £10,000 

Hampshire 

County Council 

£500 per obligation £500 per obligation. Capped at 

£10,000 

http://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations


IFS 2020 

37 

 

What does monitoring involve? 

4.28 The monitoring of the receipt and spending of financial developer contributions secured 

through Section 106 agreements is primarily undertaken by the Development Management 

Section within the Planning and Regeneration Unit and the Accountancy Section within the 

Financial Services Unit. The reporting and publishing of information relating to the Council’s 

collection and expenditure of developer contributions is undertaken by the Planning Policy 

Team within the Planning and Regeneration Unit. From start to finish, the process can 

involve many officers across the Council and can therefore be resource intensive. 

4.29 The monitoring of financial obligations involves: 

 Recording the details of the section 106 agreement on an IT system; 

 Recording the triggers for the obligations contained within the agreement; 

 Monitoring the progress of the development to identify when obligations are due to be 

paid, this includes site visits to monitor development progress; 

 Invoicing for financial contributions and ensuring they are paid by the deadline; 

 Recording how financial contributions are spent by the Borough Council; and 

 Publishing detailed information on the collection and spending of financial 

contributions in spreadsheets and the IFS on the Councils website annually. 

Setting a proportionate fee 

4.30 In setting a proportionate fee, the Borough Council considers it fair and reasonable to base 

its monitoring fee on the 5% CIL administration fee used by the Government.  

4.31 The Government allows 5% of CIL receipts to be used for administration of the Community 

Infrastructure Levy. The Borough Council has collected this administration fee since 

introduction of CIL on 1 February 2016. The Government considers this a proportionate fee 

for CIL given the actions local authorities are required to undertake to effectively monitor the 

collection and spending of CIL. Given the Government considers this percentage fee sound, 

the Council considers this a proportionate fee for the monitoring of Section 106 agreements. 

4.32 The Councils use of Section 106 agreements has reduced significantly since the adoption of 

CIL. Nonetheless, Section 106 agreements continue to be used in some circumstances and 

can be more complex to monitor. The Council could therefore consider charging a greater 

amount than 5%, in line with some other local authorities, however, given this is the first time 

the Council will be charging a monitoring fee for Section 106 agreement, it is considered 

appropriate to start with a 5% fee as used for CIL administration. 

4.33 The percentage charge will be reviewed annually to ensure the fee continues to cover 

the costs of monitoring Section 106 agreements. 

4.34 Monitoring fees for section 106 agreements will be secured by way of contractual covenant 

in the Section 106 agreement itself and will be in addition to the legal charge for drafting and 

checking the obligation. Fees will be payable at the same time as any legal costs or on the 

execution of the legal agreement. An overview of the Section 106 monitoring fee will be 

published on the Borough Council’s website. 



IFS 2020 

38 

 

4.35 The total monitoring fee per Section 106 agreement is capped at £10,000. This will 

ensure the fee is reasonable and does not exceed the actual cost of monitoring. 

Exceptions to the monitoring fee 

4.36 Approximately half of the section 106 agreements associated with planning applications 

approved by the Borough Council since 1 February 2016 involve Hampshire County Council 

in some way. From 1 October 2020, Hampshire County Council has introduced a monitoring 

fee for all agreements that it enters into. In addition to making sure the fee is proportionate 

and reasonable, it is important the fee is set at a level that is not likely to significantly impact 

developers and therefore give rise to challenge. The Borough Council will therefore only 

charge a monitoring fee to monitor the financial obligations that it has specifically entered, 

and not for those elements that Hampshire County Council could charge a monitoring fee 

for. This will avoid developers being charged twice for monitoring fees. 

4.37 Any payment secured towards the Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy and any 

subsequent scheme of a similar nature will be exempt from a monitoring fee as methods of 

payment are already established. 

4.38 Any exemptions will be set out on the Borough Council’s website and reviewed regularly to 

ensure the monitoring fee is being applied reasonably. 

4.39 At this stage the Council will not charge for non-financial obligations, but this will be kept 

under review following the experience of any forthcoming non-financial S106 agreements 

secured over the next monitoring period. 

Monitoring expenditure 

4.40 As the Council has not previously charged monitoring fees for planning obligations, in total 

£0 has been collected or spent in 2019/20. Future income and expenditure relating to the 

Section 106 monitoring fee will be reported here.  



IFS 2020 

39 

 

The S106 Outlook 

Expected S106 funds coming forward in the next monitoring period 

4.41 The Government recommends that authorities report on estimated future income from S106, 

where they can do so. This gives communities a better understanding of how infrastructure 

may be funded in the future. 

4.42 Because Section 106 agreements are used less frequently and on a site-specific basis, 

estimating the potential future income with certainty is difficult and subject to change. The 

Council estimates the expected S106 funds coming forward in the next monitoring period 

(2020/21) based on the following: 

 planning applications granted permission since 31 March 2020 (the end of the 

monitoring period for this IFS) with a legal agreement (or subject to a legal 

agreement); and 

 planning applications with permission that are due to reach a trigger point where 

contributions are to be paid (e.g. on the occupation of the 601st dwelling). 

4.43 The expected S106 money coming forward in the next monitoring period, 2020/21, along 

with the assumptions behind this estimate, are shown in Table 4.7. Please note: This 

money has not necessarily been secured by legal agreement at this stage. 

Table 4.7: Expected S106 receipts in 2020/21 

Expected S106 receipts - 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

Planning 

application 

Site name Detail of planning 

obligation 

Amount 

(£) 

Status 

11/00282/OUT 

(K.17976) 

Land at HMS 

Daedalus, Lee-on-

the-Solent 

Key financial contributions 

currently outstanding are: 

 health infrastructure 

contribution (£28,160) 

before occupation of 

101st dwelling 

 community facility 

contribution (£30,000) 

before occupation of 

101st dwelling 

 open space contribution 

for sports pitches and 

other sports facilities 

(£64,638)  

 

 

£28,160 

 

 

 

£30,000 

 

 

£64,638 

Secured in 

S106 – likely to 

reach the 

trigger point 

09/00020/OUT 

(K.17671) 

Grange Road, 

Howe Road and 

Nimrod Drive, 

Rowner, Gosport 

Legal agreement requiring 

the developer to pay 

commuted sum towards the 

provision or improvement of 

sports facilities within the 

£96,614 Secured in 

S106 – likely to 

reach the 

trigger point 

https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=LN4TGWHO03K00
https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=KDIAD1HO01100


IFS 2020 

40 

 

Expected S106 receipts - 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

Planning 

application 

Site name Detail of planning 

obligation 

Amount 

(£) 

Status 

Borough, upon the 

occupation of the 601st 

dwelling. 

17/00599/FULL Priddy’s Hard, 

Heritage Way, 

Gosport 

To be spent within the Alver 

Valley. Contribution to 

mitigate recreation 

disturbance pressure on 

internationally important 

habitats within the Solent. 

£19,842 Secured in 

S106 

19/00435/FULL 

 

St Marys Church 

Parish Centre, 

Green Road, 

Gosport 

Traffic Regulation Order 

(TRO) to implement parking 

restrictions. To be 

transferred by the Council to 

HCC. 

£6,000 Secured in 

S106 – due on 

commencement 

19/00316/FULL Land at 

Brockhurst Gate, 

Cotsworth Road, 

Gosport 

Financial contribution to be 

paid towards off-site 

improvements, relating to 

the provision/improvement 

of football facilities within 

Gosport Borough. 

 

Financial contribution to be 

paid towards improvements 

to the A32 in the vicinity of 

the site. 

£277,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

£25,000 

Permitted 

subject to 

negotiation of 

S106 

agreement 

19/00166/FULL Addenbrooke 

House, Willis 

Road, Gosport 

Permitted subject to Section 

106 agreement relating to: 

 

Affordable housing 

Nitrates mitigation 

Contribution towards public 

open space 

Recreational disturbance 

contribution 

Traffic Regulation Order 

TBC Permitted 

subject to 

negotiation of 

S106 

agreement 

Total £547,254  

  

https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P1D2GBHO07F00
https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/files/A8951B56BCC6EA6F7C254EE32BF89F49/pdf/19_00435_FULL--376603.pdf
https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PUQHA4HOI1F00
https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PPQJMVHOHJ200


IFS 2020 

41 

 

Other Planning Obligations 

4.44 In addition to using Section 106 agreements (both monetary and non-monetary), the Council 

uses other planning obligations to secure developer contributions towards infrastructure 

requirements. This section sets out details for the following planning obligations in this 

monitoring period:  

 

Employment and Training Measures 

4.45 The need to improve the skills base and employability of local residents is a key objective of 

the GBLP. The Borough has significant pockets of deprivation. These areas experience 

higher rates of economic inactivity, lower skill levels and qualification attainment than the 

Borough as a whole, and when compared to national and regional averages. Policy LP17 

seeks to help address this challenge. ESPs are usually secured using planning condition 

rather than Section 106 agreement. However, they can still be considered a non-financial 

contribution and will be reported in this IFS. 

4.46 It has been recognised both locally and within the Solent region that Gosport needs to have 

a more highly trained workforce in order to increase levels of productivity and employment. 

Policy LP17 seeks to secure employment and training measures as part of development 

proposals on appropriate sites using Employment and Skills Plans (ESPs). The policy 

applies to major employment developments including retail, leisure and office development 

greater than 1,000m², industrial developments greater than 2,000m², warehouse 

developments greater than 4,000m² and other developments likely to generate 50 full time 

equivalent jobs or more. In addition, the policy also applies to construction jobs related to 

residential schemes of 40 or more dwellings. 

4.47 There are a number of measures and initiatives which can help to develop the skills and 

training required to help Gosport’s residents secure employment opportunities. These 

include work experience placements, careers promotion to pupils and students, pre-

employment training, apprenticeships and workforce training. 

4.48 To assist developers, contractors and occupiers to comply with Policy LP17, the Council has 

produced its own practice guide outlining the process for securing employment and training 

measures.  In addition, it chairs the Gosport Employment and Skills Partnership (GE&SP) 

whose members, which include employment support agencies, training organisations and 

education establishments operating locally, can help with implementing ESPs. 

4.49 In terms of the ESP framework, the Council was awarded National Skills Academy for 

Construction status in 2014 and so where possible uses the Construction Industry Training 

Board’s (CITB) Client Based Approach (CBA). The benefits of using this framework are that 

it has industry led and agreed benchmarks with target outputs and is a national scheme that 

has been widely adopted across the country.  

Employment and 
Training Measures 

Section 278 
Highway 

Agreements 

Solent Recreation 
Mitigation 

Payment (SRMP) 



IFS 2020 

42 

 

Latest ESPs 

4.50 During the monitoring period 2019/20, no new ESPs were secured but are expected for the 

following planning applications that were submitted or under consideration during 2019/20: 

 17/00599/FULL at Priddy’s Hard (mixed use redevelopment scheme); 

 19/00316/FULL at Land at Brockhurst Gate (4,404 sqm B1c/B2/B8); and  

 19/00483/FULL at Former Police Station (88 flats and 274 sqm commercial 

floorspace). 

4.51 The following ESPs remain ongoing: 

 15/00620/FULL at Royal Clarence Yard (55 dwellings); 

 17/00592/DETS at Land at Former HMS Daedalus, Lee-on-the-Solent (employment-

led mixed use scheme, including 200 dwellings for which the ESP applies); and 

 15/00683/DETS at Royal Hospital Haslar (mixed use regeneration scheme, including 

286 dwellings, 60 bed care home and 244 retirement units).  For the latter there will 

be an ESP for each phase of the multi-year development and a revised one for the 

first phase was agreed with the developer during the monitoring period. 

Case study: Land at Former HMS Daedalus 

In terms of quantifying the local impact and social value of ESPs, currently the most 

significant ESP relates to the 200 dwellings at Land at Former HMS Daedalus being 

implemented by Wates Residential. The CBA ESP and related Wates’ Community 

Investment Plan for the Daedalus Village scheme commenced in June 2018 and is 

scheduled to be completed in March 2021. The outcomes as at 1 April 2020 are: 

 11 work placements (target 16), including from Fareham College that delivers 

construction related traineeships and apprenticeships via its facility at Daedalus 

 101 new job starts onsite are Gosport residents and 303 are from PO postcodes. 

  11 construction careers (target 7), information and guidance related activities 

delivered or supported, engaging with 704 people; and 

 13,197 training weeks onsite (target 522) via Wates’ Building Futures pre-

employment training programme and apprenticeships.  

According to Wates, the social value of this activity equates to 

 £5,922,751 invested in training local people 

 £11,417 invested in supporting education related projects 

 £18,586,928 spend with local businesses, including £791,588 within 5 miles of 

Daedalus and £9,756,199 within 15 miles; and 

 Wates employees volunteering on 7 community projects, equating to 594.5 hours of 

support; and the company has donated £31,000 to local community groups and 

events. 



IFS 2020 

43 

 

Section 278 agreements 

4.52 Section 278 agreements (S278) under the Highways Act 1980 are legally binding 

agreements between the Local Highway Authority (for Gosport Borough this is Hampshire 

County Council), and the developer to ensure the delivery of necessary highway works. 

Gosport Borough Council is not involved in the negotiation and signing of a S278 and does 

not receive or spend any money from the agreement. 

4.53 To provide a complete picture of developer contributions received and spent in the Borough, 

the Borough Council will endeavour to report information from Hampshire County Council 

relating to S278 agreements in this IFS.  

4.54 Table 4.8 provides summary details of the S278 agreements that have been secured in 

2019/20 and information on their implementation where this is known by the Borough 

Council. This information will be retrospectively updated as required when further information 

is received from Hampshire County Council. 

Table 4.8: S278 contributions received and spent by HCC (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) 

S278 contributions received and spent by HCC 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020 

Planning 

Application 

Site Date 

signed 

Obligation Status of 

obligation 

Comment 

18/00177/FULL Land 

South of 

Howe 

Road, 

Gosport 

01/07/2019 Highway works 

including the 

provision of new 

access on Howe 

Road and 

carriageway/footway 

alterations along 

Howe Road. 

Works 

complete 

 

  

https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P7MOX3HOFO700


IFS 2020 

44 

 

Solent Recreation Mitigation Partnership (SRMP) 

4.55 SRMP payment is required in accordance with the Habitats Regulations and to meet the 

requirements of Policy LP42 in the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 in order to 

demonstrate appropriate mitigation and that a proposal will not cause significant ‘in 

combination effects’ on internationally important habitats in terms of recreational disturbance. 

4.56 The Council expects the developer to pay the contribution directly to GBC in its role as the 

‘competent authority’ as defined by the Habitats Regulations. Without this contribution, the 

planning application would be unacceptable. The total money collected for the SRMP during 

the monitoring period is shown below: 

Money received from SRMP – 2019/20 

 

Contributions received: £20,537 

Refunds relating to previous years: £1,729 

Net contribution for monitoring period: £18,808 

4.57 £1,729 of SRMP was refunded during the monitoring period. These refunds can be due to 

developments not commencing within 3 years and planning applications being refused. 

4.58 It is important to note that many SRMP payments are paid by developers on the 

commencement of development, so there is a time delay between planning permission being 

granted and the money being paid. For this reason, the money collected from SRMP may 

not always reflect the planning permissions granted each year. 

4.59 The SRMP contributions received by the Council are transferred quarterly to the Solent 

Recreation Mitigation Partnership. The Partnership sets out the contributions received each 

year and details of all expenditure in an annual statement of accounts which is published 

online: https://solent.birdaware.org/article/28133/Annual-reports 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029
https://solent.birdaware.org/article/28133/Annual-reports


IFS 2020 

45 

 

5. Infrastructure delivered to date 

Review of infrastructure delivery  

5.1 Since the start of the Local Plan period in 2011, there has been a significant amount of 

infrastructure delivered to support new development in Gosport Borough. This section 

provides an overview of the key infrastructure projects completed in this monitoring period 

2019/20, and since the start of the plan period in 2011. 

5.2 The infrastructure delivered each year can vary from large strategic schemes to smaller local 

schemes. As explained in Section 2, schemes are often funded using a variety of funding 

sources and use varying amounts of developer contributions. 

5.3 A full breakdown of schemes delivered since the start of the plan period and information 

relating to the progress of identified schemes along with lead providers, costings and 

timescales, is available in Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Delivery Plan. 

Summary of delivery since 2011 for Gosport Borough Council Schemes 

5.4 Table 5.1 summarises Gosport Borough Council infrastructure schemes which have been 

completed and funded using developer contributions secured by policies in the Gosport 

Borough Local Plan. These schemes are primarily funded from Section 106 contributions 

secured prior to the introduction of CIL in February 2016. All schemes were approved at the 

relevant Council Board and total £1,281,988 of spending. 

Table 5.1: Summary of infrastructure delivered and funded by Section 106 contributions since 1 April 2011 

Location Provision Amount (£) Date Spent 

Alver Valley Western Gateway Car Park, Toilet, Café and Eastern 

Gateway and interpretation signage throughout park. 

640,000 2017/2020 

Lee on Solent Splash Park 122,000  2019 

Pathway Lighting 

Various 

Lighting schemes (Forton Rec, Grove Rd Rec, Lee 

Rec & Privett Park & Bridgemary Park, Cunningham 

Drive) 

33,200 2012/2018 

St Lukes Road St Lukes Road improvement of Land 8,672  2018 

Leesland Play Area Leesland Skatepark equipment & safety railings 8,500  2015 

Stokes Bay Wet & Dry play area replacing Paddling Pool 250,000 2013/2014 

Rowner Copse New Facility - other sports facilities and childrens 

play area 

45,800 2013/2014 

Lee-on-the-Solent Skate Park and youth shelter 14,281 2012/2014 

Privett Park Protective Fence, surfacing of tennis courts and 

cricket nets 

71,191 2012/2014 

Walpole Park Children’s play equipment 7,000  2013 

Elson Rec Play area refurbishment 7,000  2013 

Brookers Field Drainage improvements 70,000  2013 

Nobes Avenue play 

area 

Play equipment 4,000  2012 

Tukes Avenue Playing field 344  2012 

Total  £ 1,281,988  



IFS 2020 

46 

 

Key infrastructure scheme delivered in 2019/20 

Lee-on-the-Solent Splash Park 

Completed July 2019 / Total cost: £551,995 with £122,000 from Section 106 contributions / 

led by Gosport Borough Council. New Splash Park in Lee-on-the-Solent featuring jets, water 

cannons, and suspended water buckets. Project includes a new pump house and Changing 

Places facility. Scheme funded in 2018/19 and delivered in 2019/20. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sample of infrastructure schemes delivered since 2011 

South East Hampshire Bus Rapid Transit South Street/Dock Road 

Completed April 2012 / cost £24,522,000 

from developer contributions, community 

infrastructure funding and HCC funding. The 

scheme saw the construction of a shared bus 

and cycleway from Tichborne Way to 

Redlands Lane. 

Completed March 2016 / cost approx. 

£270,000 with £233,000 from developer 

contributions. Scheme saw the conversion of 

the junction to traffic signal controlled to 

provide pedestrian crossings and improved 

cycle safety. 

  



IFS 2020 

47 

 

Marine Parade West Cycle Track Alver Valley Country Park - Play park 

Completed May 2014 / cost £241,000 from 

developer contributions, Local Sustainable 

Transport Fund and Sustrans grant. 2.5km 

shared use cycleway along Marine Parade 

East with Toucan crossing and landscaping. 

Completed 2015 / £340,000 with funds from 

developer contributions. Located at the 

Western Gateway, close to Cherque Way 

Lee-on-the-Solent. 

  

Stokes Bay Wet and Dry Play Area Improvements to Privett Park 

Completed 2013/14 / cost £250,000 from 

developer contributions. The scheme saw 

the replacement of a poor condition paddling 

pool with a new outside play facility with 

traditional all year round play equipment and 

summer water features. Known as ‘Gosport 

Splash Park’ 

Completed March 2014 / cost £71,191 from 

developer contributions. Included a new 

protective fence, upgrade to surfacing of 

tennis courts and cricket nets  

  



IFS 2020 

48 

 

6. The infrastructure list 

Role of the infrastructure list 

6.1 This section sets out the Council’s ‘infrastructure list’. The infrastructure list sets out 

Gosport Borough Council’s future spending priorities on infrastructure detailing the types of 

infrastructure and specific infrastructure projects which the Council intends to be or may be 

wholly or partly funded by CIL and other developer contributions. 

6.2 The 123 List previously approved by the Council includes generic types of infrastructure that 

Strategic CIL funding can be used for. The production of the IFS allows the Council an 

opportunity to set out specific projects that it wishes to spend developer contributions on. 

6.3 There are a number of parameters that need to be considered when determining how 

developer contributions are spent and this varies depending on which funding source is 

used, this is summarised below: 

 Section 106 developer contributions – the projects must be in accordance with the 

Section 106 agreement. A summary of each S106 funding pot is set out below in 

Table 6.2. 

 Strategic CIL – the Council’s CIL Spending Protocol (approved 14 November 2018) 

includes the following paragraphs: 

It is imperative that the use of strategic CIL is clearly identified for specific 

infrastructure projects which are compliant with the 123 List, as the spending will 

need to be listed within the Council’s ‘CIL Annual Financial Statement5’, which are 

required to be produced on an annual basis. Preferably any projects would also have 

been identified in the following: 

o The latest version of the Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan6 

o Any approved Council strategy or action plan 

o Any approved strategy or action plan of an infrastructure provider 

It is essential for reporting and monitoring purposes that the CIL funds are ring-

fenced for the types of infrastructure set out in the 123 List and that this list accords 

with Government legislation. 

 Neighbourhood CIL – the CIL Regulations set out a wider range of projects that can 

be funded using Neighbourhood CIL. The Council’s approach is detailed in the 

Economic Development Board Report of 3 July 2019. 

6.4 The requirement for the Council to maintain a CIL Regulation 123 list has been removed as 

part of the new CIL Regs 2019 and the Council’s infrastructure list replaces the Regulation 

123 list. However, the 123 List is considered still to be relevant as it is based on the evidence 

used to support the Adopted Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Council’s CIL 

Charging Schedule. The evidence will be refreshed for the forthcoming Gosport Borough 

                                                
5
 This is now incorporated into Section 3 of the IFS 

6
 This is now incorporated in Appendix 2 of the IFS 



IFS 2020 

49 

 

Local Plan 2036 and a revised CIL Charging Schedule will be published. Consequently, the 

Council’s 123 List will be carried forward as the Council’s Infrastructure List until such time it 

is reviewed as part of the forthcoming review of CIL or any alternative arrangements 

introduced by the Government’s Planning for the Future White Paper (published August 

2020). 

The infrastructure list 

The following types of infrastructure projects will be funded at least in part by the Community 

Infrastructure Levy or planning obligations: 

Community Facilities (including cultural and built leisure) excluding: 

 the replacement of such facilities lost as a result of new development; and/or 

 where a site specific measure is required to secure the future use of an existing 

building for a community use (for example a historic building); and/or 

 facilities are required for a major residential development (normally over 100 

dwellings) where it may be necessary to provide community buildings on the site or 

close by to serve the new community. 

Education excluding any specific identified measures required to serve a major 

development. 

Flood management excluding specific flood risk measures required to facilitate the 

alleviation of flood risk in relation to the development site. 

Open space excluding the provision of on-site open space and maintenance arrangements 

for developments of 50 or more dwellings or off-site provision in-lieu of this provision (to be 

specified by a Section 106 agreement within the locality of the development). 

Transport schemes. A number of schemes have been identified in liaison with Hampshire 

County Council as being most suited for CIL: 

 BRT Improvements within Gosport Borough; 

 Strategic improvements to the capacity and management of existing traffic signal 

controls on the A32 Fareham Road, except where a development proposal would 

require specific highway or signal improvement; 

 Military Road to Browndown Road off-road shared cycle track (south side); 

 Improvements in cycle access from Rowner to Daedalus



IFS 2020 

50 

 

Money available (not yet allocated for any project) 

6.5 This section sets out the latest amount of developer contributions available to spend on 

infrastructure. In summary, the following is available to spend: 

 CIL Strategic Fund - Table 6.1 identifies that £147,594 is currently available and 

unallocated and could be considered as part of the Council’s capital programme 

providing it is on infrastructure set out in the infrastructure list and accords with the 

principles set out in the Council’s CIL Spending Protocol; 

 Section 106 Developer Contributions – Table 6.2 identifies the unallocated sums in 

each of the S106 pots which need to be spent on infrastructure as stipulated in the legal 

agreement itself.  In total £570,452 is available for open space and biodiversity projects 

and £632,616 is available for transport infrastructure. 

6.6 Table 6.1 provides a summary of the total money from CIL and Table 6.2 the total S106 

money that is available to spend (not yet allocated for any project) on 1 April 2020. For a 

detailed breakdown of these figures, see Section 3 and Section 4 of this report. Please note, 

the money available to spend may be subject to caveats and other particulars. 

6.7 For CIL, the total money available on 1 September 2020 is also included as this is the date 

the money becomes available for the CIL Neighbourhood Fund. The Council communicate to 

GVA the amount of money in the CIL Neighbourhood Fund on 1 September each year. 

Table 6.1: Total money available (not allocated for any project) on 1 April 2020 and 1 September 2020 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) - Total money available (not allocated for any 
project) at 1 April 2020 and 1 September 2020 

Funding source Amount at 1 

April 2020 (£) 

Amount at 1 

September 

2020 (£) 

What can the money be used for? 

Strategic CIL 

(80%) 

 

£ 180,412 £ 147,594 Available to the Council in the Capital Budget 

setting process. It is imperative that the 

Strategic CIL fund is used for specific 

infrastructure projects and types of 

infrastructure set out in the infrastructure list. 

CIL 

Neighbourhood 

Fund (15%) 

 

£ 24,765 £ 27,674 Allocated through the CIL Neighbourhood 

Fund in associated with Gosport Voluntary 

Action. Provides grants of between £1,500 

and £50,000 for infrastructure-related projects. 

The maximum for 2020/21 is £10,000. 

Administrative 

CIL (5%) 

 

£ 0 £ 9,224 To be used for the Council to administer the 

collection and distribution of CIL including the 

Neighbourhood Portion. It will also be used to 

partly fund future reviews of CIL. 

Total available £ 205,177 £ 184,492  

  



IFS 2020 

51 

 

Table 6.2: Total S106 money available (not allocated for any project) on 1 April 2020 

S106 funds in the account* 

On the 1 April 2020, the Council had secured and/or collected the following S106 funds which for 

reporting purposes can be split into the following infrastructure types. These pots have been 

secured through the Local Plan policies and the developer contributions have been sub-divided into 

smaller pots based on the wording of each respective S106 agreement. Funds secured from S106 

agreement must be spent in accordance with the legal agreement. Therefore, many of these funds 

must be spent in specific locations or on specific items. 

£282,577 Sports Facilities (pot 13) 

Money from development for sports facilities anywhere in the Borough 

£110,249 Any Open Space or Open Space facilities in the Borough (pot 1) 

Money to be spent anywhere in the Borough with no time limit stipulated in 

agreement. 

£45,062 Open Space at Priddy’s Hard (pot 31) 

Money to be spent with no time restriction on open space in Priddy’s Hard or 

other areas in the Borough provided GBC notifies the owner. 

£31,484 Open Space facility within the vicinity of the development (pot 28) 

Money to be spent within the vicinity of Royal Clarence Yard on open space 

facilities with no time restriction. 

£2,535 Play Facilities (pot 11) 

Money from development at Middlecroft Gospel Hall to be used for the 

refurbishment of the play facility at Forton Recreation ground. 

£13,545 Policy LP2 (pot 9) 

Money to be spent on infrastructure within the Borough with no time 

restriction. Secured using Policy LP2 of the Local Plan. 

£75,000 Biodiversity Mitigation/Contribution (pot 12) 

Contribution from Rowner development for mitigation at Browndown. 

£10,000 Admiralty Fuel Depot Biodiversity Contribution (pot 7) 

Money for sheet pile mitigation barrier as biodiversity mitigation. To be spent 

by 2023. 

subtotal for non-transport related S106 funds = £ 570,452 

 



IFS 2020 

52 

 

£277,780 Transport 

Funds for transport infrastructure to be used in accordance with Section 106 

wording. Large proportion of this money has been set aside by the Borough 

Council as a contribution towards the Transforming Cities Fund project for 

the Gosport Bus Station. 

£194,836 Cycle Improvements at Daedalus 

Funds from the first phase of the Daedalus Park development for cycle 

improvements in the vicinity of Daedalus. 

£150,000 Huhtamaki Cycle Track 

Funds for the Huhtamaki cycle track as approved at Board in November 

2015. 

£10,000 Public Realm Improvements 

Funds from the redevelopment of Mayfield Buildings to be used for 

improvements in Mumby Road. 

Subtotal for transport related S106 funds = £ 632,616 

Total S106 funds = £ 1,203,068 

*Please note: The S106 pots in this table represent the currently available funds from S106 developer 

contributions for open space. All other S106 developer contribution pots for open space are closed and the 

funds contained within them have been spent on open space projects across the Borough in accordance with 

the requirements of the individual S106 agreement. Future S106 open space pots may be created in 

accordance with each agreement when these come forward. 



IFS 2020 

53 

 

7. Monitoring and further information 

Publishing developer contributions data 

7.1 Gosport Borough Council is committed to working with the local community and other 

stakeholders to ensure that planning contributions are used fairly and transparently to 

maximise the benefits and opportunities arising from development in the Borough.  

7.2 In accordance with the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), any 

local planning authority that has received developer contributions is required to publish an 

Infrastructure Funding Statement annually. This IFS fulfils the Government’s requirements 

and provides a comprehensive report of all money collected by the Council from developers 

for infrastructure and how it is spent. To collect data for the IFS, the Government 

recommends that local authorities monitor data on Section 106 planning obligations and CIL 

in line with the government's data format and publishes the data regularly. 

7.3 The Council publishes its developer contributions data in 3 separate spreadsheets (known 

as CSV files), along with the IFS, as recommended by the Government. The data and the 

IFS can be found online: www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure  

Monitoring and review 

7.4 The information in the IFS will feed into the ongoing review of the Gosport Borough Local 

Plan 2036 and future CIL reviews to ensure that policy requirements for developer 

contributions remain realistic and do not undermine the deliverability of the Plan. 

Further information 

A list of all relevant pages on the Council’s website can be found below: 

Infrastructure Funding Statement (including Infrastructure Delivery Plan) and published 

Developer Contributions Data: www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure  

Community Infrastructure Levy: www.gosport.gov.uk/cil  

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029: www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029  

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2036 (ongoing review): www.gosport.gov.uk/gblp2036  

Authority Monitoring Report: www.gosport.gov.uk/amr 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/gblp2036
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/amr


IFS 2020 

54 

 

Appendix 1 – Mechanisms to secure infrastructure 

The most appropriate mechanism for securing each key type of infrastructure is outlined below 

together with the other key Local Plan policy requirements that are not forms of infrastructure (such 

as training initiatives). A summary is provided in Table A1. For further detail including caveats and 

exceptions please see Section 4 of the Planning Obligations and Developer Contributions Strategy 

(December 2015) available online: www.gosport.gov.uk/cil  

Table A1: Summary of potential mechanisms to secure infrastructure and non-infrastructure policy 
requirements 

Requirement Most likely 
mechanism(s) 

Relevant policies in 
the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029 
(in addition to Policy 
LP2 and the relevant 
sites-specific policy 
(Policy LP4-LP9) 

Transport 

Strategic off-site transport infrastructure 

(for example strategic highway and Bus 

Rapid Transit) 

CIL – although planning 

obligations may be 

required for major sites 

generating significant 

travel demands (for 

example to provide a 

major upgrade in the local 

highway network)7 

LP21 

Site specific highway works in the vicinity 

and access arrangements to the site 

Planning obligation and/or 

Section 278 and/or 

planning condition 

LP21, LP22, LP23 

On-site access requirements Section 278 and/or 

planning conditions 

LP21, LP22, LP23 

Travel Plan and associated measures (not 

covered above) 

Planning obligation and/or 

planning condition  

LP21, LP22, LP23 

Housing 

Affordable housing Planning obligation 

(although certain 

requirements have been 

secured solely through the 

use of a planning 

condition) 

LP24 

Education and Training 

                                                
7
 Such S106 requirements could not be included on the CIL ‘Regulation 123 List’ 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil


IFS 2020 

55 

 

Requirement Most likely 
mechanism(s) 

Relevant policies in 
the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029 
(in addition to Policy 
LP2 and the relevant 
sites-specific policy 
(Policy LP4-LP9) 

Primary School CIL – although planning 

obligation may be 

required for major 

residential sites 

generating significant 

demand8 

LP32 

Secondary School 

Other training and education facilities 

Employment and Training Plans and 

associated in-kind measures and/or 

developer contributions for training 

initiatives (non-infrastructure) 

Planning obligation LP17 

Community Facilities 

Medical and health CIL – although planning 

obligation may be 

required for major sites9 

for a variety of reasons10 

LP32 

Indoor sports, leisure and recreation 

Multi-functional community halls 

Care/creche facilities 

Cultural facilities 

Flood Management 

Flood management infrastructure CIL although planning 

obligation/planning 

conditions will be required 

for major regeneration 

sites as well as very site 

specific measures for 

smaller sites where flood 

management measures 

will be essential to deliver 

a safe scheme11. 

LP41, LP45 

Evacuation Plans Planning 

obligation/planning 

condition 

LP45 

                                                
8
 Such S106 requirements could not be included on the CIL ‘Regulation 123 List’ and as at September 2015 

no specific requirements have been identified 
9
 For the purposes of this requirement, the justification text of Policy LP32 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 

2011-2029 describes major developments as normally over 100 dwellings. 
10

 Such S106 requirements could not be included on the CIL ‘Regulation 123 List’ 
11

 Such S106 requirements could not be included on the CIL ‘Regulation 123 List’ 



IFS 2020 

56 

 

Requirement Most likely 
mechanism(s) 

Relevant policies in 
the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029 
(in addition to Policy 
LP2 and the relevant 
sites-specific policy 
(Policy LP4-LP9) 

Utilities 

Gas, electricity, water supply, waste water, 

telecommunications and broadband 

Bilateral agreements with 

utility provider. In some 

instances a planning 

condition and/or planning 

obligation agreement may 

be appropriate depending 

on whether there are any 

specific site issues. 

LP20, LP38, LP39, LP40 

Open Space 

Open space (play space, amenity space, 

natural/semi-natural) for sites of under 50 

dwellings 

CIL LP34 

Open space (play space, amenity space, 

natural/semi-natural) for sites of 50 or 

more dwellings 

Normally on-site provision 

secured by planning 

condition. 

 

In instances where it is 

more applicable for off-

site provision for a specific 

project in the vicinity it will 

be necessary to secure a 

contribution by planning 

obligation. 

Allotments CIL 

Outdoor sports facilities and pitches CIL 

Maintenance of open space and green infrastructure 

Maintenance On-site open space 

provision secured on 

sites of 50 or more 

dwellings will need to be 

managed and 

maintained for a period 

of 25 years and can be 

secured by a planning 

LP34, LP41 



IFS 2020 

57 

 

Requirement Most likely 
mechanism(s) 

Relevant policies in 
the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029 
(in addition to Policy 
LP2 and the relevant 
sites-specific policy 
(Policy LP4-LP9) 

condition or a planning 

obligation to be 

negotiated with the 

developer. 

 

Other forms of on-site 

green infrastructure will 

also require to be 

maintained for 25 years 

and can be secured by 

a planning condition or a 

planning obligation to be 

negotiated with the 

developer. 

 

Sustainable drainage 

systems will require a 

longer term 

management scheme to 

be agreed by the 

relevant agencies. 

Biodiversity 

Solent Recreation and Mitigation 

Partnership (SRMP) initiatives to mitigate 

recreation disturbance impacts on 

internationally important habitats 

Planning 

obligation/planning 

condition for any on-site 

measures (normally for 

identified impacts 

generated ‘alone’ by the 

development). 

 

Direct payments as part 

of a scheme to 

demonstrate appropriate 

mitigation under the 

LP41, LP42 



IFS 2020 

58 

 

Requirement Most likely 
mechanism(s) 

Relevant policies in 
the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029 
(in addition to Policy 
LP2 and the relevant 
sites-specific policy 
(Policy LP4-LP9) 

Habitats Regulations for 

in-combination 

mitigation identified by 

the Solent Recreation 

Mitigation Partnership. 

On-site measures (not related to 

recreational disturbance) following an 

ecological report (which could include an 

appropriate assessment relating to 

potential impact on internationally 

important sites). 

Planning conditions 

and/or obligations 

LP41, LP42, LP43, LP44 

Off-site measures (not related to 

recreational disturbance) following an 

ecological report (which could include an 

appropriate assessment relating to 

potential impact on internationally 

important sites). 

Planning 

obligation/planning 

condition 

Heritage 

Archaeology Normally planning 

conditions are sufficient to 

secure on-site research 

and mitigation. 

LP11, LP13 

Interpretation (boards, display, exhibitions) Planning conditions 

and/or planning obligation 

depending on necessary 

arrangements for 

interpretation. 

 

Use of building (such as making available 

for public use) 

Planning conditions 

and/or planning obligation 

depending on 

arrangements required. 

 

Use of resources: Energy 

Energy efficiency Building Regulations  

On-site measures Planning condition and/or 

planning obligation 

depending on the nature 

LP38 



IFS 2020 

59 

 

Requirement Most likely 
mechanism(s) 

Relevant policies in 
the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029 
(in addition to Policy 
LP2 and the relevant 
sites-specific policy 
(Policy LP4-LP9) 

and scale of measures. 

Use of resources: Water 

Water consumption measures Planning condition LP39 

Use of resources: Waste and Material Resources 

Site Waste Management Plans Planning condition LP40 

Waste and recycling storage Planning condition LP40 

Contaminated Land 

Contamination remediation Planning condition LP47 



IFS 2020 

60 

 

Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 



Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 

  

 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029  

 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE  
DELIVERY PLAN 

 
 

 November 2020 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 1  
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 The Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (GBLP) was adopted by the Council on 14th October 2015. The new development 

promoted by the GBLP will require various types of infrastructure to support it. The Council has prepared this Infrastructure Delivery 

Plan (IDP) which sets out the latest identified scheme details, lead providers, costings and timescales (where these are known). The 

IDP is a ‘living document’ which can be updated on a regular basis as new information becomes available about the progress of 

identified schemes as well as new infrastructure proposals. 

 

1.2 The IDP is divided into a number of key infrastructure areas including: transport, education, community facilities and open space. The 

document represents a snap shot at a particular point in time and will be updated as schemes are completed and new information about 

future schemes becomes available. The base period for information in this IDP is 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 unless 

specifically stated.  

 

1.3 The IDP Report links to the Infrastructure Assessment Report (2014) which was prepared as evidence for the Local Plan. This will be 

updated for the new Local Plan 2036 which will take into account the latest long term infrastructure requirements beyond 2029 and the 

findings of the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Gosport Infrastructure Investment Plan (February 2019) which is available to 

view online: https://solentlep.org.uk/media/2543/gosport-infrastructure-investment-plan-feb-2019.pdf 

 

1.4 Under the provisions of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) there is now a requirement for Local 

Authorities to prepare an Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS). The IFS is published annually and sets out how the money collected to 

provide infrastructure within Gosport Borough has and will be used in the future. This IDP is published with the IFS and is available 

online: www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure.

https://solentlep.org.uk/media/2543/gosport-infrastructure-investment-plan-feb-2019.pdf
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/infrastructure


 

Page 2  
 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan - Scheme Progress 2020 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

TRANSPORT 

Schemes delivered since April 2011 

Public Transport 

 
South-East Hampshire Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) - Phase 1 
Shared bus and cycleway from Tichborne Way to Redlands 
Lane  

 
Transport for South 
Hampshire 
 
Hampshire County 
Council as delivery 
agency 

 
Total £24,522,000 
 
Community Infrastructure Funding 
£20m 
 
Circa £4million funding from HCC 
 
£543,000 Developer Contribution 
 

 
Completed April 2012 

 
BRT Enhancements between Rowner Road / Busway and 
Gosport Ferry (in Gosport Borough):- 
 
Anns Hill Road / Bury Road junction capacity 
improvements to reduce delays to buses and general traffic 
 

 
 

 
£290,000 Local Sustainable Transport 
Fund / Developer Contributions 

 
Completed July 2016 

 
Bus stop infrastructure improvements– Lee-on-the-Solent 
New bus shelters and raised kerbs serving Daedalus and in 
Newgate Lane. 
 

 
Transport for South 
Hampshire 

 
£130,000 (includes works in 
Stubbington within Fareham Borough 
Council area) Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund. 

 
Completed March 2014 

 
BRT Bus stop infrastructure – Improved bus shelters, 
information and CCTV on Eclipse routes between Fareham 
and Gosport bus stations including Creek Road. 

 
Transport for South 
Hampshire 

 
£200,441 
Local Sustainable Transport Fund 

 
Completed September 
2013 



 

Page 3  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 
Rowner to Gosport Ferry priority bus stops (within 
Gosport) 
New shelters, branding, real time information services, CCTV 
and other infrastructure improvements to improve quality of 
selected bus stops on Eclipse on-road routes 
(Better Connected South Hampshire Project) 
 

 
Solent Transport / 
HCC 

 
£219,000 allocated 

 
Installation of phase 1 
and 2 of new bus stop 
shelters was completed 
on site in February 2017 

 
Bus Priority Measures - Brockhurst Roundabouts 
Bus priority lanes and signals, improved cycle facilities 
(TDP 2013) 
 

 
Transport for South 
Hampshire 

 
£688,000 
Better Bus Area Fund 

 
Completed September 
2013 

 
Bus Priority Measures – Lees Lane  
Bus Contra-Flow (TDP 2013) 
 

 
Transport for South 
Hampshire 

 
Better Bus Area Fund 

 
Completed September 
2013 

 
BRT Phase 1 Bus Passenger Information 
New broadcast units and Eclipse branding at the terminus 
points at Fareham and Gosport bus stations 

 
 

 
£205,000 
LSTF Grant / LTP 
(Large Project Package) 
 

 
Completed July 2014 

 
Bus Stop Infrastructure – Newgate Lane / Daedalus 
phases 2 and 3 
Bus stop infrastructure improvements 
 

  
£260,244 
Developer Contributions / LSTF Grant 

 
Completed March 2015 

 
BRT Enhancements on A27 (outside Gosport Borough): - 
(Western Way Bus Gate Project Appraisal, Nov. 2013) 
 
A27 Western Way Bus Gate 
To improve journey time reliability by providing direct access 
for buses to Western Way avoiding delays at Quay Street 

 
 
 
 
 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
 
 
 
 
£250,000 allocated 
Better Bus Area / HCC LTP 

 
 
 
 
 
Completed 2014 
 



 

Page 4  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Roundabout.   
 
A27 Western Way Bus Priority Lane 
Dedicated bus lane and improvements to Station Road 
Roundabout. 
 

 
 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
 
£840,000 allocated from Local Growth 
Fund 

 
 
Completed 2014 

 
Portsmouth, The Hard Interchange Improvements 
(outside Gosport Borough) 
Improvements to bus / rail / ferry interchange to maximise 
public transport accessibility, improve public realm and support 
local redevelopment  
(TDP 2013 and SSEP 2014 LTB Prioritised Scheme). 

 
Portsmouth City 
Council 

 
£6.8 million from the following 
sources: 
 
£2.0 million from Portsmouth City 
Council and; 
 
£4.8 million from Solent Local 
Enterprise 
 

 
Scheme completed and 
operational.  

 
BRT – Additional Bus Stops 
Two new bus stops to be implemented (north/southbound) on 
the BRT Eclipse route at Vian Close 
 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/brtbusst
ops 
 

 
 
HCC 

 
 
Estimated cost - £116,000 

 
 
Works completed 

Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes 

 
Smart Ticketing (sub-regional project) 
Inter-operable smart ticketing for bus and ferry travel. 
(Better Connected South Hampshire Project). 
 

 
TfSH 

 
£9.3 million allocated from LSTF 
(Large Project Package) 

 
Solent Go Smartcard 
Implemented August 
2014 

 
Area-wide and corridor-specific Travel Choice 
interventions (with Gosport as part of a sub-regional 
project) 

 
TfSH 

 
LSTF (Large Project Package) 

 
Completed 2014 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/brtbusstops
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/brtbusstops


 

Page 5  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

My Journey travel planning initiatives including targeted areas 
in Gosport to encourage uptake of public transport, walking 
and cycling. 
(Better Connected South Hampshire Project). 
 

Ferry Infrastructure 

 
Gosport Ferry Pontoon 
New and improved structure for pedestrians and cyclists using 
ferry to Portsmouth. 
 

 
 
Gosport Borough 
Council 
 

 
 
£4.5 million project costs funded by 
GBC.  The pontoon has been leased 
to the Gosport Ferry Company. 
 

 
 
Completed June 2011 

Walking and Cycling 

 
Stokes Bay Cycle Route (The Ray Reece Cycleway) 
Strategic cycle track from Bay House School along Stokes Bay 
to Anglesey Road forming part of NCN2. 
 

 
 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
 
The £400,000 scheme was funded by 
SUSTRANS who were commissioned 
by the Department for Transport 
through Cycling England. 
 

 
 
Completed Summer 2011 
 

 
Tichborne Way to Gosport Leisure Centre Cycle Track 
Strategic cycle link to the BRT busway / cycle track and the 
new Gosport Leisure Park, improving access between Gosport 
and Fareham. 
 

 
 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
 
£72,200 
Developer Contributions and other 
sources of funding. 

 
 
Completed August 2012 

 
Marine Parade East Cycle Track 
2.5m shared use cycleway along Marine Parade east between 
Portsmouth Road and Lee-on-the Solent. Works also include 
the conversion of the pelican crossing to a Toucan crossing 
and hard landscaping 
 

 
 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
 
£241,000 
Developer Contributions / LSTF / 
Sustrans Grant  

 
 
Completed  
May 2014 

    



 

Page 6  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Marine Parade West Cycle Track 
A shared use  extension of the Marine Parade East cycle track 
to Salterns Promenade 
 

 
Hampshire County 
Council 

£290,000 
LSTF / Sustrans Grant / LTP 

Completed  
June 2014 

 
Alver Way Cycle Track  
A shared use cycle track in the Alver Valley Country Park from 
Apple Dumpling Bridge to Privett Road 
 

 
 
GBC 

 
 
£44,000 
GBC / PfSH 

 
 
Completed 
March 2015 

 
Alver Way – Kingfisher Path 
Improvement to existing footpath between Privett Road and 
Browndown Road 
 

 
 
GBC  

 
 
£16,000 Solent LEP Growth Deal  

 
 
Works completed during 
2015/16 

 
Carters Copse Cycle Track 
A shared use cycle track from Grange Road to the Alver Valley 
 

 
 
GBC 

 
 
£12,500 Solent LEP Growth Deal 

 
 
Works completed by 31

st
 

March 2016  
 

 
Privett Road (LHTF 2015-16) 
Military Road to Browndown Road improve existing footway to 
provide shared cycle track on the southern side. Including 
works to the Cocked Hat Roundabout. 
 

 
 
HCC 

 
 
£24,000 HCC Minor Works LR-LHTF 

 
 
Works completed by 31

st
 

March 2016 

 
Privett Road (adj. Grange Road Roundabout) 
Refuge to provide access from shared cycle track to Alver 
Valley.  Refuge constructed as part of the Privett Road 
scheme 
 

 
 
HCC  

 
 
£12,000 HCC Minor Works Budget  

 
 
Works completed 1

st
 April 

2016 

 
Rowner Road/Grange Road (LHTF 2015-16) 
Pedestrian and cycle access and crossing improvements.  

 
 
HCC  

 
 
£25,000 HCC Minor Works LR-LHTF 

 
 
Works completed March 



 

Page 7  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Including the Widening of central island on Rowner Road to 
accommodate cyclists and resurfacing works and reapplication 
of red surface to highlight the cycle crossing on Tichborne Way 
 

2016  

 
South Street/Dock Road 
Covert existing priority junction to traffic signal control to 
provide controlled pedestrian crossings and improve cycle 
safety 
 

 
 
HCC 

 
 
£233,000 developer contribution 
(£42,500) / HCC Safety Budget 

 
 
Works completed 17

th
 

March 2016 

 
Leesland Park 
Provision of a shared use path across Leesland Park (Gosport 
Borough Council Land) linking Leesland Schools to Lavinia 
Road.  The path will provide for pedestrians and cyclists as 
part of the Safer Routes to Schools initiative. 

 
 
HCC  with  GBC 
 

 
 
£39,000 HCC Minor Works – LHTF 
2016-17 

 
 
Scheme completed 4

th
 

November 2016 

Highway Improvements in Support of Development 

 
Access Improvements to Daedalus Enterprise Zone 
 
Junction at Hangars West / Gosport Road 
 
Junction at Hangars East / Broom Way 
 

 
 
 
Developer (Homes 
and Communities 
Agency) 

 
 
 
Developer funded 

 
 
 
Completed 2012 
 
Completed 2013 

 
Daedalus Drive - Link to existing junction at Broom Way / 
Cherque Way to form principle access to the Enterprise Zone 
and internal access roads. 
 

 
Developer (Homes 
and Communities 
Agency) 
 
 
 

 
£7.09 million allocated from Growing 
Enterprise Fund for essential 
infrastructure, including roads and 
services, at Daedalus 
 

 
Completed 2017 
 

 
New junction on Marine Parade West at Ross House to form 
secondary access 

  
Government / Homes and 
Communities Agency funding  

 
Signalised junctions in 
place and currently 



 

Page 8  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

providing access to Ross 
House only.  The junction 
is expected to open fully 
once the Daedalus roads 
have been Adopted by 
HCC. 
 

Strategic Highway Improvements to Gosport and Fareham –predominately outside the Borough but serving Gosport Borough 

residents 

 
Newgate Lane Northern Section Improvements 
Palmerstone Drive to Tanners Lane (outside Gosport 
Borough) 
New junction to Collingwood, additional traffic lanes and 
capacity improvements at Speedfields Park and Longfield 
Avenue junctions to improve journey time reliability and 
pedestrian and cycle accessibility. (STIP 2013 and SSEP 
Transformational Scheme) 
 

 
TfSH 

 
£6.9 million allocated Growth Point 
Fund /HCC/Developer contributions 

 
Completed and 
operational since Autumn 
2015 

 
Newgate Lane Southern Section Improvements 
Tanners Lane to Peel Common Junction (predominately 
outside Gosport Borough) 
To improve local access and strategic access to Gosport and 
to provide a cycle track.  A key scheme in delivering suitable 
access to the Daedalus Enterprise Zone 
(STIP 2013 and SSEP Transformational Scheme). 
 

 
TfSH 

 
£9 million Local Growth Fund 
committed 

 
Completed Spring 2018 

 
Peel Common Interim Junction Improvements 
(predominantly outside of Gosport Borough boundary) 
Traffic signals on Broom Way, Rowner Road and Newgate 
Lane to better control traffic demands and congestion.  To 
include pedestrian and cycle facilities on the south side of the 

 
TfSH 

 
£3.25 million Local Growth Fund / 
HCC 

 
Complete and has been 
operational since May 
2016 



 

Page 9  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

roundabout.  Additional works or amendments will likely be 
required when Stubbington bypass progresses (ref STIP 2013 
and SSEP Transformational Scheme) 
 

 
A27 St Margaret’s Lane Roundabout, Fareham  
Works to improve the management of traffic to ease 
congestion at peak times and improve facilities for pedestrians 
and cyclists including additional traffic lanes and signalisation 
of roundabout.  
 

  
£4.85 million 

 
Works complete and has 
been operational since 
2nd June 2016. 

 
A27 Segensworth to Titchfield Improvement Scheme 
Upgrading of single carriageway sections to dual carriageway 
and provision of cycle facilities.  Improved access form A27 
Southampton Road to Segensworth Roundabout. (ref SSEP 
2014 Pipeline Major Scheme). 
 

  
£10.265 million  

 
Completed and 
operational since August 
2018 

 
Bishopsfield Rd – Station Roundabout  
Changes to Station Road roundabout to improve traffic flows 
and access for pedestrians and cyclists to railway station and 
improved bus stop facilities and modifications to subway, 
Widening  of  The Avenue (A27) to increase westbound 
capacity. (SSEP 2014 LTB Prioritised Scheme). 
 

  
£6.6million 

 
Works complete 

 
Local Access Schemes 
Various minor schemes have been completed in Gosport since 
April 2011. 
 

 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
Schemes falling into this category 
have been detailed in GBC’s Authority 
Monitoring Reports. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page 10  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Strategic Public Transport Improvements 

Interchange Improvements 
 
Gosport Bus & Ferry Interchange Improvements 
(in Gosport Borough) 
Replacement of bus station and improved multi-modal access 
for cycles, buses, taxis and ferry passengers in conjunction 
with the proposed Waterfront redevelopment proposals 
(TDP 2013). 

 
 
 
Hampshire County 
Council / Gosport 
Borough Council 

 
 
 
Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) and 
other funding sources.  
 
£5.2million of TCF Funding allocated 
for the Gosport Interchange transport 
schemes 

 
 
 
Award of TCF Funding 
announced on the 28

th
 

September 2020. 
 
Programme currently 
being developed. 
 
TCF Funding deadline is 
end of March 2023 
 

BRT Busway Extensions, Gosport to Fareham 
 
The following bus way extensions are proposed to build upon 
the step change in service levels and reliability achieved by 
BRT phase 1 and the Eclipse bus services and improve 
access to planned developments at Waterfront and Welborne 
(TDP 2013, STIP 2013 and SSEP 2014 Transformational 
Scheme) :- 
 
Phase 1B – extension south to Rowner Road (in Gosport 
Borough) 
Dedicated bus / cycleway Tichborne Way to Rowner Road 
along route of existing cycle track 
 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/brtphase
ii  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Solent Transport 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A bid for funding from the National 
Productivity Investment Fund has 
been successful.  
 
A further £1.4million has been 
secured from Tranche 1 of the 
Transforming Cities Fund 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The scheme was re-
designed in order to 
provide an improved 
option for connecting the 
busway to Rowner Road 
which retains the Rowner 
Road bridge and 
pedestrian/cycle 
underpass.  
 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/brtphaseii
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/brtphaseii


 

Page 11  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Phase 2 – extension north to A27 / Fareham Rail Station 
(outside Gosport Borough) 
Dedicated bus / cycleway from Redlands Lane to A27 / 
Railway Station on route of disused railway line. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Solent Transport 

 
 
 
 
 
 
£20 million (est.) 
Local Growth Fund or other 
government funding required. 
 

The scheme is currently 
under construction by 
Dyer and Butler and 
works commenced June 
2020. 
 
STIP indicates post 2026. 
Not being progressed at 
this time. 
 

BRT / South East Hampshire Bus Rapid Transit Future Phases 
 
BRT – Future Phase serving Welborne (outside Gosport 
Borough):- 
Extension of Eclipse BRT service from Fareham Rail Station 
through Fareham town centre to Welborne and links to new 
bus routes to Portsmouth via the A27 and M27 using a 
package of measures, including priority measures at junctions 
and sections of bus lane. 
(Fareham Borough Council’s The Welborne Plan – Adopted 
June 2015, Policy WEL26 and SSEP 2014 Transformational 
Scheme / Gosport – Fareham Growth Package). 
. 

 
Developer 

 
S106 / Local Growth Fund 

 
Consistent with progress 
of the Welborne site 
development. 

Strategic Highway Improvements 

Motorway Improvements 
 
M27 Smart Motorways Junctions 4 to 11 (outside Gosport) 

The M27 smart motorway scheme stretches from junction 4 

(M3 Interchange) to junction 11 (Fareham), and will directly 

connect to the M3 junction 9 (Winchester / A34 Interchange) to 

junction 14 (M27) smart motorway scheme. The scheme is 

24km (15 miles), and all links on the M27 between junction 4 

 
Highways England 
(HA) 

 
£244 million 

 
Scheme under 
construction and works 
expected to be complete 
by end of 2020/21 
. 



 

Page 12  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

to 11 will be upgraded to smart motorway, dual four all-lane 

running. The hard shoulder will be retained between junctions 

7 and 8. 

The scheme will involve: 

 permanent conversion of the hard shoulder to create a 
fourth lane and changing the junction slip roads to 
accommodate this 

 new CCTV cameras and electronic information signs and 
signals on gantries - these will show variable mandatory 
speed limits and manage traffic flow and incidents 

 emergency refuge areas throughout the length of the 
scheme 

 the hardening of the central reserve and installation of a 
reinforced barrier to improve safety 

https://highwaysengland.co.uk/projects/m27-junctions-4-to-11-
smart-motorway/ 

 

 
M27 Junctions Improvements, Junctions 9, 10 and 11. 
 
Access to Welborne /  Improvements to Junction 10 
The proposed improvements for M27 Junction 10 include the 
provision of a new underpass underneath the M27 west of the 
existing junction; the provision of two new slip west facing 
roads and a replacement for the existing west-bound off-slip to 
create an all moves junction. Pedestrian and cycle facilities will 
be provided for throughout the scheme and a new dedicated 
BRT link will be provided.  Further information can be found 
at:- 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/m27junc

 
 
 
Developer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
To be confirmed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Amended planning 
application resubmitted 
December 2018 to 
include revised scheme 
for M27 Junction 10, a 
revised public transport 
strategy, and a revised 
walking and cycling 
strategy.  
 

https://highwaysengland.co.uk/projects/m27-junctions-4-to-11-smart-motorway/
https://highwaysengland.co.uk/projects/m27-junctions-4-to-11-smart-motorway/
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/m27junction10


 

Page 13  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

tion10  
 
https://bucklanddevelopment.com/A%20Simple%20Guide%20t
o%20the%20Planning%20Application%20-%20FINAL%20-
%20December%202018.pdf  
 
 
M27 Junction 9 and Parkway South (Whiteley) 
Improvement scheme to widen Junction 9 of the M27 as well 
as the Parkway South roundabout (first roundabout 
approaching Whiteley) to reduce congestion and unlock 
economic development potential. 
 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/m27junc
tion9 
 
 
M27 Junction 11. 
The delivery or funding of necessary off-site improvements to 
the M27 including junctions 9 and 11 to mitigate the impacts of 
development at Welborne and Whiteley.  
(Ref. Draft Welborne Local Plan Published Feb. 2014, Chapter 
7 and Policy WEL24 Strategic Road Access) 
(ref. SSEP 2014 Transformational Scheme to provide access 
to strategic sites in Gosport and Fareham Area as part of 
Gosport / Fareham Growth Package) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Highway England / 
HCC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Developer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total scheme cost of £23 million: - 
 
£13.8million from Highways England 
£9.2million from HCC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Developer Funding / Local Growth 
Fund 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Completion expected 
summer 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A27 Corridor / Western Access Improvements 
 
A27 Corridor Improvements (outside Gosport Borough) 
Schemes as follows to improve western access to Fareham-
Gosport and address traffic congestion and improve BRT / 
Eclipse bus services including junction improvements to 
improve accessibility to development areas including the 
Daedalus Enterprise Zone  

  
Funding from Local Growth Fund / 
HCC / Developer Funding 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/m27junction10
https://bucklanddevelopment.com/A%20Simple%20Guide%20to%20the%20Planning%20Application%20-%20FINAL%20-%20December%202018.pdf
https://bucklanddevelopment.com/A%20Simple%20Guide%20to%20the%20Planning%20Application%20-%20FINAL%20-%20December%202018.pdf
https://bucklanddevelopment.com/A%20Simple%20Guide%20to%20the%20Planning%20Application%20-%20FINAL%20-%20December%202018.pdf
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/m27junction9
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/m27junction9


 

Page 14  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

(STIP 2013 & SSEP 2014, Transport Proposals). 
 
 
A27 Titchfield Gyratory to Gudge Heath Lane 
Upgrading single carriageway to dual carriageway and junction 
improvements (SSEP 2014 Pipeline Major Scheme). 
 

 
 
  
Not programmed 

 
Stubbington Bypass, Peel Common Junction to Titchfield 
Road (Gosport Western Access) (outside Gosport 
Borough) 
 
New bypass to north of Stubbington and improvements to 
existing roads including Titchfield Gyratory.  The scheme will:- 
 

 Divert Traffic around the outskirts of Stubbington and 
reduce journey time and peak hour congestion onto 
and off the Gosport Peninsula 

 Remove transport barriers to growth and encourage 
investment and regeneration, including the Solent 
Enterprise Zone at Daedalus 

 Improve connectivity and provide additional network 
resilience. 

The Bypass proposals comprise: 
 

 Construction of a new single carriageway road 
between the B3354 Titchfield Road and Gosport 
Road, passing to the north and east of Stubbington 

 On-line widening of Titchfield Road between the 
Bypass and the A27 

 Improvements of the A27 Titchfield Gyratory and 
further improvements to the Peel Common 
Roundabout (Gosport Road Arm) 

 Traffic Management measures in Stubbington Village 

 
 
 
 
 
HCC Strategic 
Transport / Major 
Schemes teams 

 
 
 
 
 
£34 million – comprising: 
 

 £8.5m from HCC (approved 
September 2016) 

 £25.7 m from Local Growth 
Fund 3 (February 2017) 

 
 
 
 
 
Scheme currently under 
construction. 
 
For accurate updates 
please refer to HCC’s 
website: 
 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/
transport/transportschem
es/stubbingtonbypass 
 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/stubbingtonbypass
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/stubbingtonbypass
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/transportschemes/stubbingtonbypass


 

Page 15  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 Improved cycle infrastructure. 
 

Local Highway Improvements 

 
Access to Daedalus Enterprise Zone (Outside and within 
Gosport Borough) 
Existing points of access at Drake Road and Brambles Road 
to be reopened. 
 

  
Unknown 

 
Linked to triggers in the 
Planning consents 

 
Access to Daedalus Enterprise Zone (Outside and within 
Gosport Borough) 
 
New junction on Marine Parade West at Ross House to form 
secondary access 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Developer (Homes 
England) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Funded as part of the Daedalus 
Infrastructure works. 
 
Government / Homes England 

 
 
 
 
Awaiting adoption of 
roads by HCC before the 
junction is fully opened.  
Currently allows access 
to Ross House for 
residents only. 
 

 
A32 Junction Improvements (within Gosport Borough) 
Measures as follows to reduce delays and improve journey 
time reliability :- 
 
Improved traffic signal control / demand management on 
A32 Fareham Road to improve junction efficiency 
(GBC Transport Statement) 
 
 
 
 
Wych Lane / A32 Fareham Road Right Turn Lane 
Improvements to southbound right turn lane to reduce delays. 

 
 
 
 
 
HCC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HCC 

 
 
 
 
 
£800,000 (est) 
Developer Contributions / CIL funding 
required. 
 
 
 
 
£1.5million 
Funding to be provided from the Safer 

 
 
 
 
 
To be investigated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The necessary land and 
funding have been 



 

Page 16  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

(GBC Transport Statement & HCC Scheme Tracking Report 
April 2014) 
 
A32 – M27 junction 10 to Gosport Town Centre.  Safer 
Road Fund 
 
Sign rationalization – removing unnecessary road sign 
furniture, enhancement of remaining signing and lining to 
increase road users’ awareness of road layout ahead, 
providing passively safe structures/sign posts and new signing 
to improve delineation.  An emphasis will be placed on 
providing consistency throughout the route. 
 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/news/june27roads  
 

Road Fund phase 2 allocation 
awarded to HCC 
 
 
 
£149,000– Safer Roads Fund Phase 
1 bid (£149,000) 

secured. Scheme to be 
delivered during 2021. 
 
 
  
To be delivered by 2021 

Walking & Cycling 

 
Shoot Lane, Cycle Track & Traffic Management Measures, 
Rowner to Daedalus  
To provide a safer route to Lee on the Solent, Alver Valley, the 
CEMAST college and Daedalus Enterprise Zone from Rowner 
for pedestrians and cyclists. 
(GBC Transport Statement). 
 

 
 
 
HCC 

 
 
 
Not known at this stage 

 
  
 
Original scheme not 
being progressed – 
alternatives to be 
considered through the 
emerging Local Cycling 
and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan  
(LCWIP) for Gosport 
 
 

 
Fareham Road Cycle Track, Heritage Way to Rowner Road 
Conversion of east side footway to shared use.  
(GBC Transport Statement). 
 

 
HCC 

 
£40,000 required. 
Developer Contributions 

 
Not programmed 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/news/june27roads


 

Page 17  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
(relevant strategies / plans) 

Lead Provider 
(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known / Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 
Daisy Lane Cycle Track, St Andrew’s Road to Whitworth 
Conversion of footpath to shared use to improve access to 
local schools, Stoke Road shops and town centre  
(GBC Transport Statement). 
 

 
HCC 
 
 

 
Not known at this stage 
 

 
Not programmed 

 
Huhtamaki Cycle Track 
Construction of shared use path between Grange Road and 
the existing cycle track to the west of Brune Park School.  
HCC detail this as a Safer Routes to School 
 

 
 
GBC / HCC 

 
 
Developer Contributions (£150,000 
with a £30,000 contingency) 

 
 
Awaiting transfer of land 
from Huhtamaki to GBC. 

  



 

Page 18  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

EDUCATION 

Schemes delivered since April 2011 

Primary Education 

 
Refurbishment of Siskin School 
 

 
Hampshire County 
Council as Education 
Authority 

 
£2,500,000 to refurbish Siskin 
Federation school. This scheme is 
adjacent to the Alver Village 
Regeneration Area. New facilities 
include multi-function hall, parent 
room, music and drama studio and 
library/computer room. 
 

 
Completed 2012/13 

 
Leesland CE (Controlled) Junior School – expand school 

 
Hampshire County 
Council as Education 
Authority 
 

 
£1,000,000 

 
Completed 2015/16 

Post-16 Education 

 
The Centre for Engineering Advanced Skills Training (whilst 
located within Fareham Borough Council area it will provide 
training for local residents employed by companies on sites 
such as Daedalus) 
 
 
Relocation of the Quayside Education Centre (now called The 
Key Education Centre) from Mill Lane to Tukes Avenue. 

 
Fareham College  
 
 
 
 
Young Persons  
Learning Agency 
 

 
Skills Funding Agency, HCC, 
Fareham College and the Solent LEP 
have contributed to the required £12 
million new building 
 
Unknown 

 
Opened September 2014 
 
 
 
 
Opened 2013 

Nursery Schools 

 
Demand led privately funded provision – no additional public 
sector facilities planned. 

 
Private provision 

 
Unknown – further provision likely to 
be demand-led and funded privately.   

 
On-going throughout the 
plan period 



 

Page 19  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Primary Education 

Replacement of Grange Junior School Hampshire County 
Council as Education 
Authority 

£7.924m Planned to start in 
2020/21 

 
Demand led provision 

 
Hampshire County 
Council as Education 
Authority 

 
Funding requirements unknown – but 
developer contributions would 
continue to support need for 
additional spaces in accordance with 
the HCC Policy incorporated into 
GBC Planning Policy. 
 

 
As and when additional 
school places are 
required. 
 
Ongoing throughout the 
plan period 

Secondary Education 

 
Demand led provision 

 
Hampshire County 
Council as Education 
Authority 

 
Funding requirements unknown – but 
developer contributions would 
continue to support need for 
additional spaces in accordance with 
the HCC Policy incorporated into 
GBC Planning Policy. 
 

 
As and when additional 
school places are 
required. 
 
Ongoing throughout the 
plan period 

HEALTH / CARE 

Local Health Care 

Schemes Delivered Since April 2011 

 
Merger of neighbouring doctors’ surgeries in Manor Way  
 

 
Fareham & Gosport 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 
 
 

 
Unknown 

 
Completed April 2019 



 

Page 20  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 
Provision at Daedalus 

 
Fareham & Gosport 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

 
Unknown 

 
Early stages of 
assessment. Delivered 
potentially over the next 5 
years 
 

Supported Accommodation 

 
Redevelopment of the Addenbrooke Older Person’s Home to 
provide 60 extra care units and community facilities. 

 
Hampshire County 
Council in partnership 
with Gosport Borough 
Council, and private 
sector providers 
 

 
Potential sources of funding include 
HCC Capital Programme, Homes 
England, GBC, developer funding. 

 
Planning application 
19/00166/FULL approved 
subject to conditions and 
Section 106 agreement at 
Regulatory Board 22

nd
 

July 2020. 
 
Construction expected to 
commence within 3 years 

 
Schemes to meet other needs of those accessing various 
forms of supported accommodation.  
 
 
 

 
Hampshire County 
Council and Gosport 
Borough Council 
 

 
Unknown 

 
On-going throughout the 
Plan Period subject to 
demands placed on the 
services. 

Potential at Haslar Regeneration Site 

 
Health / Care schemes as part of the Haslar Hospital site 

 
 
 
 

 
Private developer  

 
Unknown 

 
Within 3-7 years  
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page 21  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES (including Cultural and Built Leisure) 

Schemes Delivered Since April 2011 

Sports Centres and Swimming Pools 

 
Gosport Leisure Centre- New leisure centre with swimming 
pool, indoor courts, outdoor pitch facilities and a gym. 
 

 
GBC 

 
£7 million. Funding for Phase 1 is 
provided by GBC Capital Programme 
(£6 million) and £1 million from the 
enabling development. 
 

 
Completed December 
2012 

 
Bay House School – replacement sports hall and multi-use 
artificial turf pitch. School facility with some public usage 
 

 
Bay House School 

 
School facilities  

 
Opened September 2015 

Other schemes identified 

Community facilities 

 
Re-use of specific buildings on major developments for 
community use- including at 

 Daedalus   

 Haslar 
 

 
Developers 

 
Developer contributions 
 
Service provider  

 
Throughout the Plan 
Period as opportunities 
arise  

Other Indoor Sports facilities 

 
None identified at this stage 
 

   

Libraries 

 
HCC have published a Library Strategy to 2020. In January 
2020, Hampshire County Council launched a consultation on 

 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
Service provider 
 

 
HCC plans for the 
majority of library 



 

Page 22  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Proposed Changes to Hampshire’s Library Service. Following 
this consultation, the County Council approved the closure of 
eight libraries in Hampshire. Two of these libraries, Elson and 
Lee-on-the-Solent, are in Gosport Borough.  
 
The report detailing the outcome of the consultation and the 
decision to close these libraries can be read online: 
https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=66
4&MId=6936  

 

 
Community-led initiatives are aiming 
to ensure a seamless handover from 
HCC to community groups to maintain 
a library service and community 
asset.  This is being supported by 
GBC. 

closures to take effect 
from 1

st
 January 2021.  

 

OPEN SPACE 

Schemes delivered since April 2011 

Alver Valley Country Park 

 
Eastern gateway- Play park  
 

 
GBC 
 

 
Developer contributions. A total of 
£640,000 of developer contributions 
has been spent on the Alver Valley 
Western Gateway, Eastern Gateway 
and interpretation signage throughout 
the park. 
 

 
Completed 2015 

 
Alver Way - Pedestrian/cycle path 

 
GBC  

 
PfSH funded scheme 
 

 
Completed 2015  
 
 

 
Western Gateway access road, car park, associated paths, 
interpretation boards and welcome sign 
 

 
GBC 

 
Government’s Growth fund via the 
Solent LEP and GBC capital funds 
and developer contributions. A total of 
£640,000 of developer contributions 
has been spent on the Alver Valley 
Western Gateway, Eastern Gateway 

 
Completed June 2016 

https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=6936
https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=6936


 

Page 23  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

and interpretation signage throughout 
the park. 

 
Eastern Gateway refurbished and extended car park, new 
pedestrian and cycle link with associated access paths, 
interpretation board and welcome signs 
 

 
GBC 

 
Government’s Growth fund via the 
Solent LEP/ and GBC capital funds 
and developer contributions. A total of 
£640,000 of developer contributions 
has been spent on the Alver Valley 
Western Gateway, Eastern Gateway 
and interpretation signage throughout 
the park. 
 

 
Completed August 2016 

 
Eastern Gateway- international standard BMX track and a new 
pump track 
 

 
GBC 

 
Sport England 

 
Completed 2017 
 

 
Western Gateway- Premier play areas and picnic area 

 
GBC 

 
GBC/Developer contributions. A total 
of £640,000 of developer 
contributions has been spent on the 
Alver Valley Western Gateway, 
Eastern Gateway and interpretation 
signage throughout the park. 
 

 
Completed October 2017 
 

 
Noah Lake improvements- new viewing platform, bird hide and 
sand martin nesting area 
 

 
GBC 

 
GBC/ Developer contributions. A total 
of £640,000 of developer 
contributions has been spent on the 
Alver Valley Western Gateway, 
Eastern Gateway and interpretation 
signage throughout the park. 
 
 
 
 

 
Completed Spring 2018 



 

Page 24  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Children’s Play Facilities 

 
Splashpark at Stokes Bay (splashpool and dry play facilities) 

 
GBC 
 

 
Developer contributions secured by 
Section 106 Agreements 
£250,000 
 

 
Completed June 2013 

 
Re-provision of sports pitches at Grange Lane and Stokes Bay 
to replace senior pitches at Gosport Leisure Park 

 
GBC 

 
Developer contributions secured by 
Section 106 Agreements. As part of 
redevelopment of Gosport Leisure 
Park which includes a new sports 
centre and outdoor 5-a-side and 7-a-
side pitches 
 

 
Completed Autumn 2013 

 
Bridgemary School- new 3G floodlit synthetic sports pitch for 
school and community use 
 
 

 
Bridgemary School 

 
Developer contributions secured by 
Section 106 Agreements 
 
School facilities 
 

 
Autumn 2014  

 
GBC 
 

 
Developer contributions 

 
Completed 2015 

 
Gosport Park - Additional equipment 
 

 
GBC 

 
Developer contributions 

 
Completed 2015/2016 

 
Walpole Park - Gym equipment installed 
 

 
GBC 

 
Developer contributions 

 
Completed 2013 

 
Elson Recreation Ground Play Area- Area refurbished 
 

 
GBC 

 
Developer contributions 

 
Completed 2013 

 
Grange Road Football Pitches  

 
GBC 

 
Developer contributions 

 
Playable from 2014 



 

Page 25  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Football Season 
 

 
Privett Park Cricket Practice Nets 

 
GBC/Gosport 
Borough Cricket Club 
 

 
Developer contributions 

 
Completed 2013 

 
Pathway Lighting Schemes at Forton Recreation Ground, 
Grove Recreation Ground, Lee-on-the-Solent Recreation 
Ground, Privett Park and Bridgemary Park Cunningham Drive 
 

 
GBC 

 
Developer contributions, £33,200 
spent so far. £166,616 allocated for 
ongoing spending. 

 
Completed 2015-2019 
and on-gong scheme 

 
Leesland Play Area- Skatepark equipment & safety railings 

 
GBC 
 

 
Developer contributions £8,500 

 
Completed 2015 

 
St Nicholas Avenue Play Area refurbishment 
 

 
GBC 

 
Developer contributions 

 
Completed 2016 

 
Bridgemary Park Skate Park Facility 
 

 
GBC 

 
Veolia Grant 

 
Completed 2017 

 
Lee-on-the-Solent Recreation Ground Play Area, replacement 
of Multi Play area 
 

 
GBC 

 
GBC 

 
Completed 2017/18 

 
Grove Road Recreation Ground Play Area refurbishment 
 

 
GBC 

 
GBC 

 
Completed 2018 

 
Splash Park at Lee-on-the-Solent 
 

 
GBC 

 
Funding provided through developer 
contributions £122,000 
 

 
Completed 2019 

Alver Valley Country Park Western Gateway Car Park 
Extension 

GBC Funding through developer 
contributions. A total of £640,000 of 
developer contributions has been 

Completed 2019/2020 



 

Page 26  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

spent on the Alver Valley Western 
Gateway, Eastern Gateway and 
interpretation signage throughout the 
park. 

Other schemes identified 

Alver Valley Country Park 

 
Alver Valley Country Park Western Gateway Toilet (Changing 
Places Standard)/Cafe 

 
GBC 

 
Funding through developer 
contributions 

 
Nearing completion 
November 2020 
 

 
Grange Farm gateway proposals 

 
GBC/developer 

 
Private scheme 

 
Planning application 
currently under 
consideration 2021 
 

 
Apple Dumpling Bridge-flooding issue 
Linked with Beach Management Scheme (see Flood Defences 
section) 

 
GBC 

 
Circa £250,000k GBC.  Possible 
funding sources include Environment 
Agency, environmental grants, 
developer contributions. 
 

 
Not currently 
programmed 

Other Green Infrastructure Projects 

 

 Extension of Millennium Promenade (as identified in 
the Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 
Supplementary Planning Document) 

 

 Priddy’s Hard, Ramparts Park 
 

 Improve appearance and quality of access around the 

creeks (Haslar Lake, Workhouse Lake and Stoke 

 
Lead provider is 
scheme dependant.  
Some will be 
developer led as part 
of specific 
development 
schemes, whereas 
others will be led by 
the Borough Council 

 
Private Investment / Developer 
Contributions / CIL 

 
Unknown at this stage 



 

Page 27  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Lake 

 

 Walpole Park Cockle Pond, refurbishment of footway 
and water circulation 

 

Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) related projects 

 
Gosport Lines (as identified in the Gosport Waterfront and 
Town Centre Supplementary Planning Document) 
 

 
Historic England, 
Hampshire Property 
Services and GBC 

 
Approx. £500,000 

 
By March 2024 

 
Alver Valley Trail 

 
Gosport Voluntary 
Action and GBC 

 
£15,000 potentially from GBC funding 
 

 
By March 2024 

 
Improvement to land west of Fort Brockhurst 
 

 
English Heritage and 
GBC 

 
Unknown at this time. Potential for 
English Heritage funding, GBC 
funding and/or developer 
contributions.  

 
By March 2024 

 
Creekside Walk at Haslar Lake 

 
GBC 

 
Unknown at this time. Potential for 
GBC funding and/or developer 
contributions from Town Centre 
development. 
 

 
By March 2024 

Allotments 

 

 Enhanced facilities on existing sites 

 Creation of additional allotment plots 
 
 

 
GBC in liaison with 
key stakeholders 
including the Gosport 
Allotment Holders 
and Gardeners 
Association 
 

 
Potential for GBC funding and/or 
developer contributions. 
 
Local groups may be able to access 
certain types of funding sources for 
site improvements. 
 

 
Not known at this stage 



 

Page 28  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 

 
Manor Way, Lee-on-the-Solent Open Space and Allotments 
 

 
GBC 

 
Unknown 

 
Public consultation 
undertaken 
 

Sports Pitches, Other Outdoor Sports, Parks and Play Space 

 
Tukes Avenue Open Space Play Zones – the provision of 
playground/exercise equipment adjacent to the existing 
facility. Approved at Community Board 11.09.2019. 
 

 
GBC 

 
£120,000 from developer 
contributions, 100% funded from CIL. 

 
1-5 years 

 
Stokes Bay Gym Equipment – individual items of gym 
equipment along Stokes Bay frontage to complement the 
existing Golden Mile. Approved at Community Board 
11.09.2019. 
 
 

 
GBC 

 
£45,000 from developer contributions 
including £22,500 from S106 
contributions (50%) and £22,500 from 
CIL (50%). 
 

 
1-5 years 

 
Nobes Avenue New Pavilion – demolition of existing pavilion 
to provide new facility. Approved at Community Board 
11.09.2019. 

 
GBC 

 
£350,000 from developer 
contributions including £240,000 from 
S106 contributions and £110,000 
from CIL. 
 

 
1-5 years 

 
Walpole Park Inclusive Play Zone – Additional play equipment 
for inclusive play. Approved at Community Board 11.09.2019. 
 

 
GBC 

 
£135,000 from developer 
contributions, 100% funded from CIL. 

 
1-5 years 

 
Other small-scale schemes to be identified by GBC  
 

 
GBC 

 
Funding to be provided through 
developer contributions, either S106 
contributions or CIL. 

 
On-going throughout the 
plan period 
 



 

Page 29  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

PUBLIC SERVICES 

Schemes delivered since April 2011 

Waste 

 
Gosport Household Waste Recycling Centre – Refurbishment 
works 
 

 
Hampshire County 
Council 

 
Funding of £475,000 from Hampshire 
County Council Capital Programme 

 
Completed 2011 
 
 
 
 

Other schemes identified 

Cemeteries 

 
Additional capacity to be provided at the existing Ann’s Hill 
Cemetery. Considering other sites for further capacity. 
 

 
GBC 

 
GBC  

 
Work on-going 

EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Police 

 
The Police Service relocated from the Police Station in 
Gosport to Gosport Town Hall.  
 

 
Hampshire 
Constabulary 

 
N/A 

 
Complete 2016/17 

Ambulance 

 
The Ambulance Station at Privett Road Gosport is used as a 
location point for Patient Transport Services  

 
South Central 
Ambulance Service 
(NHS Trust) 
 

 
Specific costs not defined 

 
Completed   



 

Page 30  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Fire and Rescue 

 
None identified 
 

 
Hampshire Fire and 
Rescue Service 
 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

UTILITIES 

Gas 

 
No response received to date 
 

 
Scotia Gas Networks  

 
Unknown at this stage 

 
Unknown at this stage 

Electricity 

 
Reinforcement of EHV (Extra High Voltage) network 
 
 
 
 

 
Scottish and 
Southern Energy 

 
Funding requirement unknown, but 
developers would be liable 

 
Unknown. The extent of 
any requirement will be 
evaluated at the time of 
application when 
anticipated loads are 
better understood. 
 

Water Supply 

 
Individual development sites may need local mains 
reinforcements, but Portsmouth Water will work with 
developers to deliver this.  
 

 
Portsmouth Water 

 
Costs unknown at this stage  

 
Phased as each 
development progresses 

Wastewater 

 
Improvements to wastewater treatment works 
 

 
Southern Water 

 
Will be funded by Southern Water 
through the price review process 
 

 
In parallel with 
development 
 
 



 

Page 31  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 
Sewerage network reinforcement will be required for a number 
of proposed development sites in advance of occupation. This 
will need to be delivered in phase with the development.  

 
Southern Water 

 
Will be funded through the New 
Infrastructure Charge. Any additional 
investment required will be funded 
through Southern Water’s Capital 
Works programme.  
 

 
Phased as each 
development progresses 

Telecommunications – British Telecom 

 
Roll-out of Super-fast Fibre Access exchange using “Fibre to 
the Cabinet” (FTTC) infrastructure 
 

 
Openreach (British 
Telecom) 

 
Unknown at this stage 

 
On-going 

Telecommunications – Mobile Operators 

 
Provision will be demand led – Mobile operators provide 
annual roll-out plans 
 

 
Various private 
mobile phone 
companies 
 

 
No specific details defined 

 
On-going throughout the 
plan period via annual 
roll-out plans 
 

FLOOD DEFENCES 

 

The River Hamble to Portchester Flood and Coastal Erosion 

Risk Management Strategy has been developed by the ESCP 

on behalf of Gosport and Fareham Borough Councils. It was 

adopted by Gosport Borough Council in Spring 2015 and 

Approved by the Environment Agency in Spring 2016. 

 
The Strategy 
identifies a series of 
Strategic 
Management Zones 
(SMZ). SMZ2 covers 
the shoreline from 
Fareham Creek to 
Gilkicker Point and 
SMZ3 covers the 
area from Gilkicker 
Point to Titchfield 
Haven. A high level 

 
It is recognised that a large proportion 
of the funding required to deliver the 
Strategy will have to come from 
funding sources other than Flood and 
Coastal Risk Management Grant in 
Aid. Financial contributions may take 
some years to be realised through 
investment plans, community funding, 
Local Authority contributions and 
coastal re-development opportunities. 
There will be a requirement to think 
creatively and deliver differently to 

 
None of the schemes or 
works identified below 
are guaranteed. Funding 
must be sought and 
identified and further 
staged technical and 
financial assurance will 
need to be sought from 
the Environment Agency. 
 
For full details of the 
Strategy please visit 



 

Page 32  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

summary of the flood 
defence infrastructure 
required is set out 
below. For the 
shorter term priority 
works, information 
has been progressed 
beyond the strategic 
level therefore more 
detailed information 
is presented. Only 
projects planned for 
delivery within the 1st 
epoch of the Strategy 
are shown below 
(2015-2030). 
 

ensure that the Strategy’s 
recommendations are implemented 
for the communities of Gosport and 
Fareham 

www.escp.org.uk/strategy  
 

SMZ2: Upper Quay (Fareham) to Fort Monckton (Gosport) 

 

Priority Scheme - Seafield Flood & Coastal Erosion Risk 

Management Scheme (Option Development Unit 17) 

 

The aim of this scheme is to provide the recommended 1% 
Annual Exceedance Probability [AEP] (1:100 year) standard of 
protection, immediately reducing present day tidal flood risk to 
72 Seafield homes and 8 residential properties at risk from 
erosion in the short term (less than 20 years). In 50 years the 
scheme will protect 141 residential properties at risk from a 
1% AEP coastal event and 30 residential properties at risk of 
longer term (above 20 years) erosion. 

 

GBC 

 

£4,500,795 cash costs including 95% 

risk contingency and inflation. 

 

Secured Funding Sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid (£130,802 

including contingency was 

secured for outline design). 

 

Potential Funding sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid 

(£1,682,450 including 30% 

contingency applied for Detailed 

 

Business case seeking 

funding for options 

appraisal submitted to 

Environment Agency in 

Spring 2016. 

 

FCERM 4 submitted in 

August 2017 seeking 

contingency funds. 

 

FCERM 4 submitted to 

EA in 2018 for funds to 

http://www.escp.org.uk/strategy


 

Page 33  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Design and Construction to be 

applied for later with OBC 

submission). 

 

- £3,014,053 external contribution 

needed 

 

- GBC Capital Investment  

 

External - at least 15% even if fully 
grant funded. 
 

undertake enhanced 

outline design. 

 

Pending funding 

Approval: 

 

Detailed Design 

2021/22 – 2023/24  

 

Construction 

2026/27 – 2028/29. 

 

Priority Scheme - Alverstoke Flood & Coastal Erosion 

Risk Management Scheme (Option Development Unit 17) 

 

The aim of this scheme is to provide the recommended 1% 

Annual Exceedance Probability [AEP] (1:100 year) standard of 

protection, immediately reducing present day tidal flood risk to 

99 Alverstoke homes and 9 commercial properties. In 50 

years the scheme will protect 121 residential properties at risk 

from a 1% AEP coastal event and 9 commercial properties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GBC 

 

£1,291,623 cash costs including 30% 

contingency and inflation. 

 

Secured Funding Sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid (£129,502 

including contingency was 

secured for outline design). 

 

Potential Funding sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid 

(£1,291,623 including 30% 

contingency will be applied for 

Detailed Design and 

Construction). 

 

- External - at least 15% even if 

fully grant funded. 

 

Business case seeking 

funding for options 

appraisal submitted to 

Environment Agency in 

Spring 2016. 

 

FCERM 4 submitted in 

August 2017 seeking 

contingency funds. 

 

Seeking funding for 

detailed design and 

construction to be 

submitted to Environment 

Agency in March 2018. 

 

Planning application 



 

Page 34  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

submitted to GBC (no. 

20/00298/FULL) and 

under consideration at 

October 2020.  

 

Pending funding 

Approval: 

 

Detailed Design 

2018/19 – 2019/20 

 

Construction 

2020/21 

 

 

Priority Scheme - Forton Flood & Coastal Erosion Risk 

Management Scheme (Option Development Unit 11) 

 

The aim of this scheme is to provide the recommended 1% 

Annual Exceedance Probability [AEP] (1:100 year) standard of 

protection, immediately reducing present day tidal flood risk to 

66 Alverstoke properties. In 50 years, the scheme will protect 

211 residential properties and 16 commercial properties at risk 

from a 1% AEP coastal event. 

 

GBC / Private 

 

£1,060,213 cash costs including 30% 

contingency and inflation. 

 

This figure is for flood risk scheme 

only and will require further 

engagement with St Vincent College 

who have their own development 

aspirations. 

 

Secured Funding Sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid (£129,244 

including contingency was 

secured for outline design). 

 

- Regional Flood & Coastal 

 

Business case seeking 

funding for options 

appraisal submitted to 

Environment Agency in 

Spring 2016. 

 

FCERM 4 submitted in 

August 2017 seeking 

contingency funds. 

 

Project will be paused for 

6 months from December 

2017 to allow College’s 

scheme to develop and 

the objectives of both 



 

Page 35  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Committee (£157,000 approved 

for Detailed Design and 

Construction). 

 

Potential Funding sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid (£531,180 

incl. 30% contingency. 

 

-  Further contribution required 

(£347,000 Inc. contingency) for 

funding shortfall). This will 

require third party funding from 

relevant landowners. 

 

External - at least 15% even if fully 

grant funded. 

parties to be aligned. 

College not able to 

contribute or be part of 

the scheme. 

 

Pending funding 

Approval but additional 

funding may be required 

for construction 

 

Detailed Design 

2018/19 – 2019/20 

Construction 

2021/22 

 

Gosport Waterfront (Option Development Units 13-16) 

 

Private / GBC 

 

£5,093.00 – Strategic costings only 

including contingency. 

 

Potential Funding sources 

Developer contributions and work in 

kind, LEP Growth fund, private 

owners. 

 

Timing dependent upon 

development 

opportunities coming 

forward. 

SMZ3: Fort Monckton (Gosport) to Hill Head Sailing Club (Fareham) 

 

Hill Head to Portsmouth Harbour Entrance Beach 
Management Plan (Option Development Units 21 + 22) 

 

GBC / Fareham 
Borough Council / 
HCC / Private 

 

£95,900 including contingency to 

develop the Beach Management Plan 

Study. 

 

 

Business case seeking 

funding to develop Beach 

Management Plan was 

submitted to Environment 



 

Page 36  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 

Secured Funding Sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid (£95,900 

incl. contingency was secured 

for the study). 

 

Potential Funding sources 

- FCERM Grant in Aid – not 

guaranteed. 

 

- GBC / Fareham Borough 

Council Capital Investment 

 

Agency in 2016. 

 

FCERM 4 submitted in 

December 2017 seeking 

contingency funds, 

approved January 2018. 

 

Operational works 

subject to funding from 

2023/24 subject to 

securing circa £500,000. 

 

Other Potential Works/Projects 

 

Gosport property level protection flood risk mitigation 

schemes – in various Option Development Units sites across 

GBC – to be investigated from 2021 

 

 

 

 

Private / GBC  

 

 

£186,000 cash costs 

 

Potential Funding sources 

FCERM Grant in Aid – not 

guaranteed. 

External - at least 15% even if fully 

grant funded. 

Private homeowners 

 

 

From 2022/23 subject to 

funding 

 

 

Gosport property level protection Scheme option 

development unit 11 (Lichfield Drive to Parham Road at 

Parham Road) – Property level protection is required to 

address flood risk to a small number of properties at the 

seaward end of Parham Road. To be investigated from 2021. 

 

Private / GBC 

 

Potential Funding Sources 

FCERM Grant in Aid – not 

guaranteed.  

GBC Capital Investment 

External - at least 15% even if fully 

 

From 2022/23 subject to 

funding 



 

Page 37  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

 grant funded. 

Private homeowners 

 

Gosport property level protection Scheme option 

development unit 15 (Rope Quays to Haslar Bridge) – 

Present day flood risk is localised and can be managed 

through property level protection until 2030. To be investigated 

from 2021. 

 

GBC / EA / Private 

 

Potential Funding sources 

FCERM Grant in Aid – not 

guaranteed.  

GBC Capital Investment 

External - at least 15% even if fully 

grant funded. 

Private homeowners 

 

 

From 2022/23 subject to 

funding 

 

Gosport property level protection scheme option 

development unit 17 (Wills Road to Dolphin Crescent) – 

Property level protection is required to address flood risk until 

2030, alongside capital works. To be investigated from 2021. 

 

GBC / EA / Private 

 

Potential Funding sources 

FCERM Grant in Aid – not 

guaranteed.  

GBC Capital Investment 

External - at least 15% even if fully 

grant funded. 

Private homeowners 

 

 

From 2022/23 subject to 

funding 

 

Gosport property level protection Scheme option 

development unit 19 (Park Road to Haslar Royal Naval 

Cemetery) – Property level protection is required to a small 

number of properties at St Mark’s Road. To be investigated 

from 2021. 

 

GBC / EA / Private 

 

Potential Funding sources 

FCERM Grant in Aid – not 

guaranteed.  

GBC Capital Investment 

External - at least 15% even if fully 

grant funded. 

Private homeowners 

 

 

From 2022/23 subject to 

funding 

    



 

Page 38  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

Capital Replacement Schemes – At sites where defences 

have reached the end of their lives or have failed and are 

likely to require capital expenditure for replacement. Not 

funded by central government grant given no properties at 

risk. Objectives driven by environment, Health and safety 

amenity, access, recreation. E.g. Stokes Bay Sea Wall. 

 

In addition to these identified schemes, there will also need to 

be site-specific measures, which will be sought through the 

Development Control processes. 

 

GBC 

 

 

Cockle Pond is a seawater fed saline lagoon. The policy for 

this unit is to maintain existing structures to address the 

localised flood and erosion risks, with capital works from 2060 

to mitigate the increasing flood risk as sea levels rise. Works 

for the Cockle Pond will be split into two phases; Footway 

repair (Phase 1) and Drainage improvements (Phase 2).                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Cockle Pond is currently in poor to very poor condition, with an 

estimated length of time before failure of 1- 5 years. 

 

GBC Secured Funding Sources 

£200,000 GBC Capital Investment 

 

Potential Funding Sources 

External 

 

Works required currently 

being reviewed. Unlikely 

to be led by the ESCP. 

Stokes Bay Seawall Study - A scoping study has been 

completed. The project is now awaiting funds to carry out a 

feasibility study. Options Appraisal will form part of this study 

to identify the preferred option. 

 

GBC / EA / HCC 

 

Potential Funding Sources 

 

FCERM Grant in Aid – not 

guaranteed. 

 

Regional Flood & Coastal Committee  

 

GBC Capital Investment 

 

External - at least 15% even if fully 

Emergency short term 

works phase 1 complete.  

Significant phase 2 

maintenance works 

required following further 

failure 2019/20 

construction works early 

2021 for 100m section of 

seawall. 

Options appraisal and 



 

Page 39  
 

Scheme Type and Details 
Lead Provider 

(S) 

Known or Estimated Costs / 
Known/Potential Funding 

Sources 
Timing / Progress 

grant funded 

  

outline design study to 

commence in late 

2020/21 subject to 

funding.  

Current contributions 

from HCC and GBC, 

seeking additional 

funding from Southern 

Regional Flood and 

Coastal Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Page 40  
 

Abbreviations and Glossary 

 
BRT Bus Rapid Transit 
CIL Community Infrastructure Levy 
EA Environment Agency 

ESCP Eastern Solent Coastal Partnership 
FCERM Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 

GBC Gosport Borough Council 
GBLP or GBLP 2011-2029 Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (Adopted October 2015) 

HAZ Heritage Action Zone 
HCC Hampshire County Council 
IDP Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
IFS Infrastructure Funding Statement 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 
LSTF Local Sustainable Transport Fund 

LTP Local Transport Plan 
PfSH Partnership for South Hampshire 
S106 Section 106 
SMZ Strategic Management Zones 

Solent Strategic Transport Investment Plan Published May 2016. Available from: www.solentlep.org.uk/media/1514/tip-final-web-
version.pdf  

SSEP Draft Solent Economic Plan (2014) 
www.solentlep.org.uk/media/1121/solent_strategic_economic_plan.pdf  

STIP Fareham and Gosport Strategic Transport Infrastructure Plan (October 2013) 
TCF Transforming Cities Fund 
TDP Transport Delivery Plan (February 2013), published by Transport for South Hampshire 

(now Solent Transport). Available from: http://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport-for-
south-hampshire/TransportDeliveryPlan.pdf  

TfSH Transport for South Hampshire (also known as Solent Transport). www.solent-
transport.com/about  

Transforming Solent Solent Strategic Economic Plan. Available from: 
www.solentlep.org.uk/media/1121/solent_strategic_economic_plan.pdf 

 

http://www.solentlep.org.uk/media/1514/tip-final-web-version.pdf
http://www.solentlep.org.uk/media/1514/tip-final-web-version.pdf
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport-for-south-hampshire/TransportDeliveryPlan.pdf
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport-for-south-hampshire/TransportDeliveryPlan.pdf
http://www.solent-transport.com/about
http://www.solent-transport.com/about
http://www.solentlep.org.uk/media/1121/solent_strategic_economic_plan.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting of the Economic Development Board held on 23/09/2020
	6 Draft Economic Development Strategy
	06 Appendix A GosportEDStrategyConsultationFeedback
	06 Appendix B Strategy Review Document

	7 Interim Local Development Scheme for the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2036
	07 LDS -Gosport LDS November 2020- Final version

	8 Infrastructure Funding Statement
	08 Infrastructure Funding Statement  IDP 2020
	Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020.pdf
	1. Introduction
	Role and structure of the Infrastructure Funding Statement
	National Context
	Reporting on developer contributions

	Sub-regional Context
	Partnership for South Hampshire
	Solent Local Enterprise Partnership
	Gosport Infrastructure Investment Plan

	Local Planning Policy
	The Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and supporting evidence
	The Gosport Borough Local Plan 2036


	2. Gosport’s Infrastructure Programme
	Infrastructure
	Planned Growth to 2029

	Funding the cost of Infrastructure
	How can planning fund infrastructure?


	3. Community Infrastructure Levy: 2019/20
	What is the Community Infrastructure Levy?
	The CIL Report 2019/20
	CIL receipts
	Annual summary
	CIL to be received
	CIL funds allocated but not yet spent
	CIL funds spent
	Strategic CIL Committed Projects in 2019/20

	The CIL Neighbourhood Fund
	CIL Neighbourhood Fund: Funds available at 1 September 2020
	The CIL Outlook: potential future income
	Administration of the Levy


	4. Planning Obligations: 2019/20
	What are Planning Obligations?
	Section 106 (s106) agreements
	Section 278 (s278) agreements
	Other mechanisms

	The Section 106 Report 2019/20
	Latest Section 106 balance
	Annual summary

	Section 106 - secured and received 2019/20
	Section 106 - allocated and spent
	Repaying money borrowed
	Commuted sums

	Section 106 monitoring fees
	Establishing the monitoring fee
	What does monitoring involve?
	Setting a proportionate fee
	Exceptions to the monitoring fee
	Monitoring expenditure

	The S106 Outlook
	Expected S106 funds coming forward in the next monitoring period

	Other Planning Obligations
	Employment and Training Measures
	Latest ESPs

	Section 278 agreements
	Solent Recreation Mitigation Partnership (SRMP)

	5. Infrastructure delivered to date
	Review of infrastructure delivery
	Summary of delivery since 2011 for Gosport Borough Council Schemes
	Key infrastructure scheme delivered in 2019/20
	Sample of infrastructure schemes delivered since 2011


	6. The infrastructure list
	Role of the infrastructure list
	The infrastructure list
	Money available (not yet allocated for any project)

	7. Monitoring and further information
	Publishing developer contributions data
	Monitoring and review

	Appendix 1 – Mechanisms to secure infrastructure
	Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)

	Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2020
	Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)
	Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029
	INFRASTRUCTURE
	DELIVERY PLAN
	November 2020




